
THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA 
PUBLIC NOTICE 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
REGULAR MEETING 

The Board of Commissioners of the City of Madeira Beach, Florida will meet at City Hall, 
located at 300 Municipal Drive, Madeira Beach, Florida to discuss the agenda items of City 
Business listed at the time indicated below. 

6:00 P.M. TUESDAY, JUNE 14, 2016 COMMISSION CHAMBERS  

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – COMMISSIONER TERRY LISTER 

C. ROLL CALL 

D. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 

E. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

DAIS LOG REVIEW 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT – LIMITED TO THREE (3) MINUTES 

G. CONSENT AGENDA – NONE  

H. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1. ORDINANCE 2016-05  
A SECOND AND FINAL READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA, CREATING ARTICLE IV OF 
CHAPTER 42 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO SYNTHETIC DRUGS; PROVIDING FOR INTENT, DEFINITIONS, 
SYNTHETIC DRUG SUBSTANCE DETERMINATION, PROHIBITED ACTS, ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

I. CONTRACTS/AGREEMENTS 

1. APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT WITH PINELLAS COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD REGARDING BICENTENNIAL PARK  
2. APPROVAL OF JOINT USE AGREEMENT WITH PINELLAS COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD 
3. APPROVAL OF EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES CONTINUING MEDICAL EDUCATION AGREEMENT 
4. AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE FINANCIAL AUDIT ENGAGEMENT LETTER FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

WITH WELLS, HOUSER & SCHATZEL, PA IN ACCORDANCE WITH RFP NO. 15-1100. 
5. AWARD OF RFP 2016.01 (MADEIRA BEACH FERRY SERVICES) TO HUBBARD’S MARINA. 

J. NEW BUSINESS 

1. DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (HOLIDAY ISLE MARINA) 
A PUBLIC HEARING AND CONSIDERATION OF AN APPLICATION TO ENTER IN A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH AND C&T ENTERPRISES, INC. AND MHH ENTERPRISES, INC. CONTINGENT ON THE APPROVAL OF 
ORDINANCE 2015-18 TO REZONE THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 555 AND 565 150TH AVENUE FROM C-4, MARINE COMMERCIAL 
TO PD, PLANNED DEVELOPMENT. 

2. DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (MADEIRA BEACH TOWN CENTER) 
A PUBLIC HEARING AND CONSIDERATION OF AN APPLICATION TO ENTER IN A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH AND MADEIRA BEACH DEVELOPMENT CO, LLC CONTINGENT ON THE APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE 
2016-01 TO REZONE MULTIPLE PROPERTIES LOCATED ON 150TH AVENUE, MADEIRA WAY, AND GULF BOULEVARD FROM 
RETAIL COMMERCIAL (C-3) TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (PD) DISTRICT.  

3. ORDINANCE 2016-01 
A SECOND AND FINAL READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA, REZONING CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS 15026 MADEIRA WAY, 0 GULF BLVD, 0 150th AVENUE, 15023 GULF BLVD, 15031 GULF 
BLVD, 0 MADEIRA WAY, 15000 MADEIRA WAY, 15006 MADEIRA WAY,15015 MADEIRA WAY, 15040 MADEIRA WAY,15042 
MADEIRA WAY, 0 150th AVENUE, 200 150th AVENUE, 206 150th AVENUE, 210 150th AVENUE, 212 150th AVENUE, 352 150th 
AVENUE, 388 150th AVENUE, 390 150th AVENUE, 410 150th AVENUE, 420 150th AVENUE, FROM RETAIL COMMERCIAL (C-3) 



Any person who decides to appeal any decision of the City Commission with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and 
for such purposes may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is 
to be based.  The law does not require the City Clerk to transcribe verbatim minutes; therefore, the applicant must make the necessary arrangements with a private 
reporter or private reporting firm and bear the resulting expense. In accordance with the Americans with Disability Act and F.S. 286.26; any person with a disability 
requiring reasonable accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should call 727-391-9951 or fax a written request to 727-399-1131.       

Posted June 10, 2016 

TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (PD) DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR READING BY TITLE ONLY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE THEREOF.  

4. PUBLIC HEARING FOR ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE PERMIT 
A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE PERMIT APPLICATION #2016-03 FOR A 4COP LICENSE (BEER, WINE, 
AND LIQUOR; SALE BY THE DRINK FOR CONSUMPTION ON PREMISES AND PACKAGE SALES IN SEALED CONTAINERS) AT A 
RESTAURANT LOCATED AT 4330 DUHME ROAD. 

5. PUBLIC HEARING FOR ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE PERMIT 
A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE PERMIT APPLICATION #2016-04 FOR A 2COP LICENSE (BEER AND 
WINE ONLY; SALE BY THE DRINK FOR CONSUMPTION ON PREMISES AND PACKAGE SALES IN SEALED CONTAINERS) AT A BAR 
LOCATED AT 13437 GULF BOULEVARD. 

6. RESOLUTION 2016-21 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET BY INCREASING 
GENERAL FUND REVENUE IN THE AMOUNT OF $39,000; INCREASING GENERAL FUND CAPITAL OUTLAY EXPENDITURES IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $18,000; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

A. WAIVER OF BID REQUIREMENTS AND AUTHORIZATION OF EXPENDITURES 
A WAIVER OF BID REQUIREMENTS AND AUTHORIZATION OF EXPENDITURES IN THE AMOUNT OF $16,625 TO MEND IT 
ASPHALT & CONCRETE SERVICES, INC. FOR JOHN’S PASS PARKING AREA PROJECT RELATED TO RESOLUTION 2016-21. 

7. RESOLUTION 2016-22 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET BY DECREASING 
SANITATION FUND CAPITAL OUTLAY EXPENDITURES IN THE AMOUNT OF $202,000; DECREASING MARINA FUND CAPITAL 
OUTLAY EXPENDITURES IN THE AMOUNT OF $50,000; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

K. REPORTS/CORRESPONDENCE 

 CITY COMMISSION 

 CITY ATTORNEY 

 CITY MANAGER 

 CITY CLERK 

L. ADJOURNMENT  



  



Agenda Item: H-1. 

 

 

MADEIRA BEACH BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

June 9, 2016 – Agenda Report 

FROM: Sea Marshall-Barley, Administrative Support Specialist 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE 2016-05:  CREATING ARTICLE IV OF CHAPTER 42 OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES RELATING TO SYNTHETIC DRUGS; PROVIDING FOR INTENT, 

DEFINITIONS, SYNTHETIC DRUG SUBSTANCE DETERMINATION, PROHIBITED ACTS, 

ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 

PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

BACKGROUND: At the February Workshop, Lieutenant Dan Zsido from the Narcotics Division of 

the Pinellas County Sheriff’s Office made a presentation to the Board about the 

increase in usage for synthetic narcotics in the County.  Vice-Mayor Poe and 

Deputy Luckett had also previously with the City Attorney met regarding the issue 

and how it could be addressed by ordinance. 

After the February Workshop presentation, the Board gave its consensus for the 

City Attorney to move forward and draft an ordinance to address synthetic drugs.  

The first reading of this ordinance on April 12, 2016 was approved by a Board of 

Commissioners vote of 5-0. 

This is the second and final reading for the final approval of this ordinance.   

BUDGETARY 
IMPACT:  N/A 

RECOMMENDED 
BY STAFF: 

Staff recommends approval of the first reading of Ordinance 2016-05.  

ATTACHMENT(S): Ordinance 2016-05 

 



ORDINANCE 2016-05 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA, CREATING ARTICLE IV OF 
CHAPTER 42 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO SYNTHETIC DRUGS; PROVIDING 
FOR INTENT, DEFINITIONS, SYNTHETIC DRUG SUBSTANCE DETERMINATION, PROHIBITED 
ACTS, ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
A REPEALING CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Article VIII of the Florida Constitution and Section 166.021, Florida Statutes, 

the City of Madeira Beach possesses the police power to enact ordinances in order to protect the health, 
safety and welfare of its citizens; and 

WHEREAS, synthetic drugs are commonly marketed for sale to young adults and teenagers as a safe 
and legal alternative to marijuana or other controlled substance; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the City of Madeira Beach has been advised by the 
Pinellas County Sheriff’s Office of a significant increase in the use of synthetic drugs and substances by 
young adults and teenagers; and 

WHEREAS, synthetic cannabinoids, bath salts, and other dangerous chemicals commonly referred 
to as synthetic drugs, are being added by producers and manufacturers to products in an effort to mimic 
the effects of illegal drugs when ingested into the human body; and 

WHEREAS, due to the manner in which these substances are marketed, the manufacture or 
production of synthetic drugs is not regulated by the Federal Drug Administration; and 

WHEREAS, synthetic drugs may be more potent and dangerous than the controlled substances they 
are designed to mimic due to the unapproved chemicals and chemical compounds contained therein; and 

WHEREAS, ingestion of synthetic drugs has been known to produce undesired and dangerous side 
effects such as headaches, agitation, nausea, vomiting, hallucinations, loss of consciousness, elevated blood 
pressure, tremors, seizures, paranoid behavior, anxiety, increased heart rate, and even death; and 

WHEREAS, according to the American Association of Poison Control Centers, 5,230 cases of 
exposure to, or ingestion of synthetic drugs were reported to poison control centers in 2012, 2,668 cases 
in 2013, 3,682 cases in 2014, 7,794 cases in 2015 and 567 cases in the first two months of 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the manufacture, sale and use of synthetic drugs has become a major problem 
negatively effecting the health, safety and welfare of the citizens and visitors of Madeira Beach; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida, in an attempt to curtail the marketing, sale and consumption of 
synthetic drugs has added in Section 893.03, Florida Statutes, several dozen of the chemicals and chemical 
compounds used in the manufacture of synthetic drugs as controlled or prohibited substances; and 

WHEREAS, the Pinellas County Sheriff’s Office has been determined that the manufacturers and 
producers of synthetic drugs can slightly alter the molecular make-up of the chemicals or chemical 
compounds to avoid regulation under the state statutes; and 

WHEREAS, due to the ease of making slight molecular alterations of these chemicals or chemical 
compounds, law enforcement agencies have found it extremely difficult to bring criminal charges against 
the manufacturers, producers and marketers of synthetic drug products; and 

WHEREAS, undercover investigations by the Pinellas County Sheriff’s Office into the manufacture, 



Ordinance 2016-05  Page 2 of 7 

 

marketing, sale, use and consumption of synthetic drugs have proven to be lengthy, costly and man-power 
intensive; and 

WHEREAS, continued enforcement of synthetic drugs under the state statutes has been, and 
continues to be, hampered merely by the slight changing of the molecular make-up or recipe of the 
chemicals or chemical compounds used in the manufacture of synthetic drugs in order to defeat law 
enforcement investigations; and 

WHEREAS, it is not the intent of this ordinance to interfere with legitimate actions and conduct of 
individuals which are protected under the constitutions and laws of the United States and the State of 
Florida. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA 
BEACH, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. That Article IV of Chapter 42 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Madeira Beach is 
hereby created to read as follows: 

ARTICLE IV. – SYNTHETIC DRUGS 

Sec. 42-40. – Intent. 

It is the intent of the City of Madeira Beach to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the public by 
prohibiting the possession, sale, and manufacture of synthetic drugs as defined herein which, when 
consumed, mimic the effects of narcotics or controlled substances. Due to the dangerous medical and 
health effects the products prohibited by this article can have on the user of the product, each 
violation shall be considered a serious threat to the public health, safety, and welfare of the public. 

 

Sec. 42-41. – Definitions. 

Synthetic drug means synthetic chemical, synthetic chemical compound, synthetic cannabinoids, 
synthetic cathinones, and those substances meeting two or more of the factors described in Section 42-
42.  

Synthetic chemical or synthetic chemical compound refers to a chemical or chemical compound whose 
molecular composition is substantially similar to, or mimics any of those substances listed as controlled 
substances in F.S. § 893.03, and whose intended use when introduced into the human body is to mimic 
the effects of a controlled substance. "Substantially similar" to a controlled substance is described as a 
"controlled substance analog" in F.S. § 893.0356.  

Synthetic cannabinoids means any herbal, vegetal or liquid material which has been soaked, sprayed, 
blended, combined or otherwise enhanced with a synthetic chemical or synthetic chemical compound 
that enables the herbal, vegetal or liquid material, or the smoke or vapor emitted from its burning, or 
vaporization, to mimic or simulate the effects of a controlled substance, tetrahydrocannabinol (THC), 
when inhaled, ingested, or otherwise introduced into the human body or otherwise affects the function 
of the human body. Any herbal, vegetal or liquid material described above shall be considered a synthetic 
cannabinoid regardless of the labeling posted on the packaging for the material and regardless of 
whether the labeling states that its contents are "not for human consumption," "not for smoking," or 
other similar statement. The fact that a herbal, vegetal or liquid material, packaged and advertised as a 
food additive, potpourri, herbal incense, etc., has been soaked, sprayed, blended, combined or 
otherwise enhanced with a synthetic chemical or synthetic chemical compound which has no legitimate 



Ordinance 2016-05  Page 3 of 7 

 

relation to the advertised use of the product may be considered in determining whether the product is 
considered a synthetic cannabinoid. This term specifically does not include any herbal, vegetal or liquid 
material containing synthetic chemicals or chemical compounds which: require a prescription; are 
approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration; and are dispensed in accordance with 
Florida and federal law.  

Synthetic cathinones, also known as bath salts, means any granular, crystalline. powdered, pill, 
encapsulated, stick, or block material form of synthetic chemical or synthetic chemical compound that 
enables the material, or the smoke or vapor emitted from its burning or vaporization, to mimic or 
simulate the effects of a narcotic or other controlled substance when inhaled, ingested, injected or 
otherwise introduced into the human body or otherwise affects the function of the human body. Any 
material described above shall be considered a synthetic drug regardless of the labeling posted on the 
packaging for the material and regardless of whether the labeling states that its contents are "not for 
human consumption," "not for smoking," or contains some other similar statement. This term specifically 
does not include any legitimate, traditional materials known as bath salts or Epsom salts containing 
synthetic chemicals or chemical compounds which may:  

a. Require a prescription; 

b. Are approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration; or 

c. Are dispensed in accordance with Florida and Federal law. 

Controlled substance means any substance defined or listed in Schedule I, II, III, IV or V of F.S. § 893.03, 
including any analogues, isomers, esters, ethers, salts, and salts of isomers, esters and ethers of such 
substances.  

Drug means an article or substance that is intended to affect the structure or any function of the body 
of humans as defined in F.S. § 499.003.  

Misbranded drug means a drug that is misbranded pursuant to F.S. § 499.007, including, but not limited, 
to drugs for which (a) the label is in any way false or misleading; (b) the label does not bear the name 
and place of business of the manufacturer, repackager, or distributor of the finished form of the drug; 
(c) the label does not bear adequate directions for use; or (d) the label does not bear adequate warnings 
against use.  

Drug paraphernalia means other than devices to ingest or inject prescription drugs, any object used, 
intended for use of designed for use in ingesting, inhaling or otherwise introducing illicit drugs or 
controlled substances into the human body. In determining whether an object is drug paraphernalia, a 
court may consider any of the factors enumerated in F.S. § 893.146. 

 

Sec. 42-42. – Determination of a substance as a synthetic drug. 

The following factors, taken in the totality of the circumstances, may be considered in determining 
whether a product, substance, or other material, should be classified as a synthetic drug. For the 
purposes of enforcement of this article, the establishment of two or more of these factors shall 
constitute prima facie evidence that the product is a synthetic drug. 

(a) Marketing. The substance is advertised to be a product for which it is rarely, if ever, suitable 
to be used for (such as, but not limited to, incense, potpourri, food additive, therapeutic 
bath crystals, plant food, insect repellant, communication device screen cleaner, jewelry 



Ordinance 2016-05  Page 4 of 7 

 

cleaner, glass cleaner).  

(b) Sales location. Products, whether displayed or not, but offered or sold in, or through, 
businesses such as liquor stores, smoke shops, and gas/convenience stores where such 
products are not typically sold.  

(c) Labels and packaging.  

1. Products marketed as common non-consumable products which contain warnings 
not normally found on such products. The warnings may be similar, but not limited 
to, "not for human consumption", "not for purchase by minors"; or  

2. Products containing notices on the package not normally found on similar products 
such as, but not limited to, "does not contain any chemical compounds prohibited 
by state law," "contains no prohibited chemicals," "product is in accordance with 
state and federal laws," "product is in compliance with new Florida Law HB 1175," 
"does not contain AM2201 or any DEA banned substance," "legal herbal substance," 
"aromatherapy only," "legal in 50 States," "100% compliant guaranteed".  

3. Products whose package labeling or design suggests the user will achieve a "high", 
euphoria, relaxation, mood enhancement, or that the product has other drug-like 
effects on the body or otherwise affects the function of the human body.  

4. Products using brand names and packaging designed to make the product appear 
similar to illicit street drugs or commonly used street slang for illicit drugs or their 
effects or employs symbols, terms or effects of illegal drugs, such as marijuana leaf, 
blunts, red eyes or crossed-out eyes.  

5. Packages are misleading, deceptive or misbranded, including but not limited to: 

i. The label is in any way false or misleading; 

ii. The label does not bear the name and place of business of the 
manufacturer, repackager, or distributor of the finished form of the drug;  

iii. The label does not bear adequate directions for use; or 

iv. The label does not bear adequate warnings against use and/or the product 
contains contradictory warnings/directions for the product's use, which is 
not consistent for the type of product advertised. (Example: "For fragrance 
or aromatherapy only" which requires human inhalation and/or "blueberry 
flavor" upon packages that also read "not for human consumption" or 
similar statements.)  

(d) Price. The price of the product is incongruent with other similar products marketed for 
legitimate use, such as incense, potpourri, food additive, therapeutic bath crystals, plant 
food, insect repellant, communication device screen cleaner, jewelry cleaner, glass cleaner.  

(e) Similarity to illicit street drugs. Products designed to make the substance appear similar to 
illicit street drugs (such as, but not limited to, a white powder made to resemble, in color 
and texture, cocaine, or dried vegetal material resembling marijuana).  

(f) Ingredients. A product which is, or has been enhanced with, a synthetic chemical or synthetic 
chemical compound that has no legitimate relation to the advertised use of the product but 



Ordinance 2016-05  Page 5 of 7 

 

mimics the effects of a controlled substance when the product, or the smoke or vapor from 
the burned or vaporized product, is introduced into the human body.  

(g) Verbal or written representations. Verbal or written representations made at the place of 
sale or display regarding the purpose, methods, use, or effect of the product on the human 
body.  

(h) Co-sale. Offers or suggestions to purchase products such as cigars, pipes, cigarette papers 
or e-cigarettes that are used with synthetic drugs and demonstrate intent for human 
consumption.  

(i) Subterfuge. Use of passwords, signs, vouching or other means to vet purchasers and hiding 
product from general view or offsite to evade law enforcement as to the product's presence. 

 

Sec. 42-43. – Prohibited acts. 

The following are prohibited within the city:  

(a) The possession with intent to sell, sale, distribution, production, or manufacture of synthetic 
drugs.  

(b) The display for sale, marketing, advertisement, or other offer for sale or trade of synthetic 
drugs in retail stores.  

(c) Allowing or permitting any person under the age of 18 to enter or remain on the premises 
of any place of business selling or displaying drug paraphernalia, unless the minor person is 
accompanied by his or her parent or guardian. Such premises must prominently display a 
sign posted at the entrance, stating that drug paraphernalia is located within the premises, 
and prohibiting persons under 18 from entering the establishment without their parent or 
guardian. 

 

Sec. 42-44. – Laboratory analysis. 

The city may utilize laboratory analysis or expert testimony (chemistry and/or pharmacology) to test 
suspected synthetic drugs. Any laboratory analysis of suspected synthetic drug shall be conducted by an 
ISO state certified laboratory, competent to provide expert testimony in a court of law as to the chemical 
contents of the product. 

 

Sec. 42-45. – Enforcement and penalties. 

(a) Primary responsibility for the enforcement of this article shall be with any law enforcement 
officer. Any products found to be synthetic drugs possessed in violation of this section may 
be seized and held by the city as evidence to be used in any further proceeding.  

(b) This article may be enforced administratively as a code violation pursuant to Article VII of 
Chapter 2 of the Code of Ordinances. This article is administratively enforceable against any 
person or legal entity. For the purposes of administrative enforcement, law enforcement 
officers are specifically authorized and designated to enforce this article within the city limits 
to the extent such authorization/designation is required by law.  



Ordinance 2016-05  Page 6 of 7 

 

(c) Each violation shall be considered a separate offense, which can be prosecuted separately. 
For the purposes of administrative enforcement of this article, each package containing a 
synthetic drug or misbranded drug shall be considered a separate code violation. A violation 
of this article shall result in the assessment of a $250.00 penalty per offense. In any order 
finding a violation of this article, the violator shall be ordered to pay, in addition to the 
penalty, for any laboratory analysis and expert testimony costs incurred by the city in the 
enforcement of this article.  

(d) Nothing contained herein shall prevent the city from taking such other action in law or equity 
as may be necessary to remedy any violation of, or refusal to comply with, any part of this 
article including but not limited to:  

1. Pursuit of injunctive and/or declaratory relief in a court of competent jurisdiction; 

2. Initiating an action to recover any and all damages that may result from a violation 
of, or a refusal to comply with, any part of this section; or  

3. Utilizing any other action or enforcement method allowable by law. 

SECTION 2. If any word, phrase, clause, paragraph, section or provision of this ordinance of the 
application hereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid or unconstitutional, such 
finding shall not affect the other provisions or applications of this ordinance that can be 
given effect without the invalid or unconstitutional provision or application, and to this end 
the provisions of this ordinance are declared severable. 

SECTION 3.  All ordinances or parts of ordinance in conflict herewith are to the extent of such conflict 
hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4.  That this Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[REMAINDER OF THE PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

  



Ordinance 2016-05  Page 7 of 7 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA, this  
14th  day of JUNE , 2016. 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

 

TOM TRASK, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 

 

TRAVIS PALLADENO, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 

 

AIMEE SERVEDIO, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 

PASSED ON FIRST READING: 04/12/2016 

PUBLISHED: 05/27/2016 

PASSED ON SECOND READING: 06/14/2016 
 

 
 

 
 



LEGAL NOTICE

303536-1

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FL

In accordance with the City of Madeira Beach Code of Ordinances, the City of
Madeira Beach Charter, and Florida Statutes §166.041 (3)(c)(2):
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, the Board of Commissioners of the City of Madeira
Beach will conduct a second and final reading of Ordinance 2016-5 on Tuesday,
June 14, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. City of Madeira Beach Commission Chambers, located
at 300 Municipal Drive, Madeira Beach, FL 33708.
The title of said Ordinance is as follows:

ORDINANCE 2016-05
A FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH,
FLORIDA, CREATING ARTICLE IV OF CHAPTER 42 OF THE CODE OF
ORDINANCES RELATING TO SYNTHETIC DRUGS; PROVIDING FOR INTENT,
DEFINITIONS, SYNTHETIC DRUG SUBSTANCE DETERMINATION, PROHIBITED
ACTS, ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE;
PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
Copies of the proposed Ordinance are available for inspection in the Office of the
City Clerk between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday.
All persons are hereby advised that any presentation they make to the Board
of Commissioners will be encouraged to be as precise as possible. The Board
of Commissioners may limit the time of each individual to permit maximum
participation by the public at large. Any person who decides to appeal any
decision of the Board of Commissioners with respect to any matter considered at
this meeting will need a record of proceedings, and for such purposes may need to
ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes
the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. Therefore,
the applicant must make the necessary arrangements with a private reporter or
private recording firm and bear the resulting expense. Any person with a disability
requiring reasonable accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should
call (727) 391-9951 or fax a written request to (727) 391-1131.

Aimee Servedio
City Clerk
5/27/16



 



Agenda Item: I-1. 

 

 

MADEIRA BEACH BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

June 9, 2016 – Agenda Report 

FROM: Shane B. Crawford, City Manager 

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT WITH PINELLAS COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD 

REGARDING BICENTENNIAL PARK. 

BACKGROUND: This is for continued use of Bicentennial Park and to use it as a pickup location for 

possible water taxi service for functions at the City Centre. 

BUDGETARY 
IMPACT:  

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 
BY STAFF: 

The City Manager recommends approval of the agreement with the Pinellas 
County School Board regarding Bicentennial Park. 

ATTACHMENT(S): Agreement with Pinellas County School Board 

 













Agenda Item: I-2. 

 

 

MADEIRA BEACH BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

June 9, 2016 – Agenda Report 

FROM: Shane B. Crawford, City Manager 

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF JOINT USE AGREEMENT WITH PINELLAS COUNTY SCHOOL 

BOARD. 

BACKGROUND: Agreement solidifies use of school amenities for summer programs and other city 

related programs at the Middle School property. 

BUDGETARY 
IMPACT:  

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 
BY STAFF: 

The City Manager recommends approval of the joint use agreement with the 
Pinellas County School Board. 

ATTACHMENT(S): Joint Use Agreement 

 

















Agenda Item: I-3. 

 

 

MADEIRA BEACH BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

June 9, 2016 – Agenda Report 

FROM: Derryl O’Neal, Fire Chief 

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES CONTINUING MEDICAL 

EDUCATION AGREEMENT. 

BACKGROUND: Execution of Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Continuing Medical Education 

(CME) Agreement with Pinellas County EMS System and Madeira Beach Fire 

Department. The CME training program will be conducted under joint auspices of 

the Pinellas County EMS System and the Contractor for the first responders and 

ambulance services. This is a two (2) year agreement with possibility of renewal 

for two (2) additional years and one (1) year at the end of the initial term.  

BUDGETARY 
IMPACT:  

This allows our firefighters to train others and the City to be reimbursed for our 
personnel cost.   

RECOMMENDED 
BY STAFF: 

The Fire Chief recommends approval of the Emergency Medical Services 
Continuing Medical Education Agreement.  

ATTACHMENT(S): Emergency Medical Services Continuing Medical Education Agreement 

 

























  



I-4.

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

BUDGETARY 

IMPACT: 

RECOMMENDED 
BY STAFF: 

MADEIRA BEACH BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

June 9, 2016 - Agenda Report 

Vincent M. Tenaglia, Assistant City Manager 

AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE FINANCIAL AUDIT ENGAGEMENT LETTER FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 WITH WELLS, HOUSER & SCHATZEL, 

P.A., IN ACCORDANCE WITH RFP N0.15-1100. 

Included in the annual audit process is a requirement of the Board of 

Commissioners to approve the auditor's scope of work. The attached engagement 

letter dated June 3, 2016 includes the auditor's proposed service agreement. 

Broadly stated, the agreement includes an understanding that the auditor's primary 

responsibility is to express an opinion as to whether the City's year-end financial 

statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, and in conformity with 

generally accepted accounting principles. The engagement letter also identifies the 

activities, schedules, and reports which are inherently related to the assessment of 

the financial statements. The auditor's scope of work generally includes limited 

procedures relating to such items. 

In accordance with the terms and conditions of the original RFP, the auditor's 

proposed fees are as follows: 

• Audit of basic financial statements: $26,400 

• CAFR preparation assistance: $7,000 

• Single Audit, if applicable: $5,800 

Finance staff recommends authorization to execute the engagement letter. 

ATTACHMENT(S): Engagement letter dated June 3, 2016 

Agenda Item: ------



WELLS, HOUSER & SCHATZEL, P.A. 
CPA AND CONSULTING FIRM 

June 3, 2016 

To the Honorable Mayor, Board of Commissioners, 
City Manager and Assistant City Manager 

City of Madeira Beach 
300 Municipal Drive 
Madeira Beach, FL 33708-1916 

John B. Houser, CPA 
Peter C. Schatzel, CPA 
Peter B. Wells, CPA 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide the City of Madeira Beach, 
Florida for the year ended September 30, 2016. We will audit the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information, including the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic 
financial statements of the City of Madeira Beach, Florida (the City) as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2016. Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide 
for certain required supplementary information (RSI}, such as management's discussion and analysis 
(MD&A), to supplement the City's basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it 
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited 
procedures to City's RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to 
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by generally accepted accounting principles and will 
be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited: 

1) Management's Discussion and Analysis. 

2) Schedules of Changes to the Net Pension Liability and Related Notes 

3) Other Postemployment Benefits (OPES) Schedules of Employer Contributions and Funding Progress 

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies 
City's financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing 
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
and we will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole, in a report combined 
with our auditor's report on the financial statements: 

1) Schedule of EMS Allowable Costs - Budget and Actual 

2) Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Deepwater Horizon Oil Spill 

The following other information accompanying the financial statements will not be subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements, and our auditor's report will not 
provide an opinion or any assurance on that other information. 

1) CAFR Introductory Section 

2) CAFR Statistical Section 

Audit Objectives 

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly 
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and 
to report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when 

WH&S 
500 94th Avenue North• St. Petersburg, Florida 33702-2406 • Phone: (727) 578-1040 • Fax: (727) 578-1041 • Online: www.whspa.com 

Members: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants - Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants 



considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. Our audit will be conducted in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards for financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States, and will include tests of the accounting records of the City and other procedures we consider 
necessary to enable us to express such opinions. We will issue a written report upon completion of our 
audit of the City's financial statements. Our report will be addressed to Honorable Mayor and Board of 
Commissioners of the City of Madeira Beach, Florida. We cannot provide assurance that unmodified 
opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions 
or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will 
discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are 
unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or may 
withdraw from this engagement. 

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial 
statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by 
Government Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will 
include a paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing 
of internal control and compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal 
control and compliance. The paragraph will also state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
If during our audit we become aware that the City is subject to an audit requirement that is not 
encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to management and those charged 
with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the 
standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards may not satisfy the relevant 
legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements. 

Audit Procedures-General 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be 
examined and the areas to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We will plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, 
whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations 
of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the government or to acts by management or 
employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the determination of abuse is subjective, 
Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting 
abuse. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, 
and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material 
misstatements may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and 
performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or 
governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. 
However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors, fraudulent financial 
reporting, or misappropriation of assets that comes to our attention. We will also inform the appropriate 
level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention, 
unless clearly inconsequential, and of any material abuse that comes to our attention. Our responsibility 
as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to later periods for which we 
are not engaged as auditors. 



Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the 
accounts, and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of 
receivables and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding 
sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We will request written representations from your attorneys 
as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our 
audit, we will require certain written representations from you about your responsibilities for the financial 
statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other 
responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards. 

Audit Procedures-Internal Control 

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, including 
internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to 
design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to 
test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and 
fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting 
from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial 
statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on 
internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued 
pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or 
material weaknesses. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those 
charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under 
AICPA professional standards and Government Auditing Standards. 

Audit Procedures-Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we will perform tests of City's compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, 
regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide 
an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance 
issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

Other Services 

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements and related notes of the City of Madeira Beach, 
Florida in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by 
you. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such 
services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. We will perform the 
services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The other services are limited to the 
financial statement services previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right 
to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed as assuming management 
responsibilities. 

Management Responsibilities 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including 
evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; 
following laws and regulations; and ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and 
properly reported. Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve 
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible 
for the selection and application of accounting principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements and all accompanying information in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles, and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of 
contracts and grant agreements. 

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us 
and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with 



(1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements, (2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of 
the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we determine it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for 
confirming to us in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements 
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are 
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect 
fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) 
management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud 
could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your 
knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in 
communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are 
responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with applicable laws, regulations, 
contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and 
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that we 
report. 

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information, which we have been engaged 
to report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to include our 
report on the supplementary information in any document that contains and indicates that we have 
reported on the supplementary information. You also agree to include the audited financial statements 
with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes our report thereon OR make the 
audited financial statements readily available to users of the supplementary information no later than the 
date the supplementary information is issued with our report thereon. Your responsibilities include 
acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the 
supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary information, 
including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of 
measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have 
changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or 
interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary information. 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit 
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report 
copies of previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits or other studies related 
to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes 
relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from 
those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies. You are also responsible for 
providing management's views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as 
your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that information. 

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related 
notes and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the 
management representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and related 
notes and that you have reviewed and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their 
issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services 
by designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or 
experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility for them. 

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we 
request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing. 



We will provide copies of our reports to the City; however, management is responsible for distribution of 
the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged 
and confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection. 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Wells, Houser & Schatzel, P.A. and 
constitutes confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit 
documentation and appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to 
a regulatory agency or its designee, a federal or state agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the 
U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit 
findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, 
access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Wells, Houser & Schatzel, 
P.A. personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to 
the aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information 
contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies. 

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report 
release date or for any additional period requested by the regulatory agency. If we are aware that a 
federal or state awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) 
contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 

We expect to begin our audit on approximately September 19, 2016 and to issue our reports no later than 
January 31, 2017. John Houser is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the 
engagement and signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them. 

Our fee for these services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs (such as report 
reproduction, word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that we agree that our 
gross fee, including expenses, will not exceed $26,400 for the audit of the basic financial statements, 
$7,000 for the CAFR preparation assistance and if applicable $5,800 for Single Audit procedures and 
reports. CAFR printing and assembly costs will be billed at our actual cost that we estimate not to exceed 
$750. Our standard hourly rates vary according to the degree of responsibility involved and the 
experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit. Our invoices for these fees will be rendered as 
work progresses and are payable on presentation. The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation 
from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during 
the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee 
estimate before we incur the additional costs. 

It is expected this agreement will be renewed annually in accordance with our response to the City of 
Madeira Beach, Florida's RFP 15-1100, Auditing Services. However, both parties agree that the 
agreement may be terminated upon 30 days written notice if either party deems such action to be in its 
self interest. Upon such termination the City agrees to promptly pay the balance of any outstanding 
invoices for services rendered in connection with the corresponding audit engagement. Absent any such 
written notification this agreement will automatically renew for fiscal year 2017. The contract years and 
fees are as follows: 

• 09/30/16 - Audit of basic financial statements $26,400; CAFR preparation assistance $7,000 
and Single Audit if applicable $5,800 

• 09/30/17 - Audit of basic financial statements $27,400; CAFR preparation assistance $7,200 
and Single Audit if applicable $5,900 

In addition, the agreement is renewable for up to two additional one year periods in years 09/30/18 and 
09/30/19 by mutual agreement of the parties. 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the City of Madeira Beach, Florida and believe this letter 
accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us 
know. If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed 
copy and return it to us. 



Very truly yours, 

Wells, Houser & Schatzel, P.A. 
St. Petersburg, FL 
June 3, 2016 

RESPONSE: 

This letter, composed of 6 pages, correctly sets forth the understanding of the City of Madeira Beach, 
Florida. 

Management signature: ----------

Title: -----------------

Date: -----------------

Governance signature: ----------

Title: -----------------

Date: -----------------

Travis Palladeno, Mayor

Shane B. Crawford, City Manager



  



 

MADEIRA BEACH BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Development Agreement – Staff Report 

June 7, 2016  

FROM: Luis N. Serna, AICP, Planning and Zoning 

SUBJECT: Holiday Isle  Marina – Development Agreement 

BACKGROUND: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The attached Development Agreement has been prepared in concert with and to memorialize 
the specific provisions and conditions attendant to the approval of Ordinance 2015-18 rezoning 
the subject property from C-4 (Commercial Marine) to PD (Planned Development). 

The City's Town Center Special Area Plan, Chapter 2, Development Standards, specifically 
requires an application for rezoning in this portion of the Causeway district of the Plan that 
provides for additional density/intensity, to utilize the PD (Planned Development) zoning 
process and seek approval of a Development Agreement. 

The specific provisions enabling the City to consider a Development Agreement are set forth in 
the Comprehensive Plan - Future Land Use Element, Policies 2.1.2, 2.1.3 and 2.1.4; and the 
details by which the Development Agreement process is to be considered are set forth in the 
City's Land Development Regulations - Chapter 82, Section 82-2 and Chapter 86, Article IV, 
Section 86 – 141 through Section 86-149.  Additionally, requirements for development 
agreements are provided in Florida Statutes, Section 163.3227. 

On May 10, 2016, the Board of Commissioners voted 4 to 1 to approve Ordinance 2015-18 to 
amend the zoning designation on the subject property from C-4 (Commercial Marine) to PD 
(Planned Development) consistent with the accompanying Concept Plan, and subject to the 
specific provisions and conditions as set forth in the accompanying Development Agreement.  
The Board of Commissioners also considered the Development Agreement at this hearing.  
However, this item was continued to June 14, 2016. 

At the May 10 hearing, questions were raised by a member of the Commission regarding the 
sufficiency and accuracy of the application materials submitted for the project.  In response, 
staff conducted a complete review of the initial and the subsequent revised submittal materials.  
Based on this review, we have found that the application was determined during the review 
process, and is found upon this review, to be complete and valid as required by the City’s Land 
Development Regulations, Chapter 110, Section 110-389. 

SUMMARY 
DESCRIPTION 

The proposed development agreement under consideration is between the City and 
the owners of the property on which the Holiday Isles project is proposed.  The 
agreement establishes the rights and responsibilities of the parties to the agreement.  
Some of the important features in this agreement include the following: 

 It is valid for a period of up to 10 years from its effective date, or until all phases 
of construction are complete.   

 It is tied to a specific concept plan for the site which is attached as an exhibit to 
the agreement.  



Agenda Item: J-1. Agenda Report Page 2 of 3 

 

 It includes the requirement for future site plan approval of each phase of the 
project consistent with Chapter 110, Article II of the Land Development Code.   

 It details the specific off-site improvements that will need to be completed prior 
to the issuance of Certificates of Occupancy for the project. 

 It specifies that permitting and design costs for the required off-site 
improvements will be paid by the developer.   

 It specifies that the City will dedicate the transportation impact fees collected 
from this project for the design and construction of these improvements.  Any 
costs that are not covered by the City’s contribution will be paid by the 
developer. 

 It allows for reductions in height, density, or intensity by up to 40 percent.  Any 
increases height, density, or intensity, or any reductions greater than 40 percent 
require approval by the Board of Commissioners. 

Subsequent to the February 8 Planning Commission hearing, based on public 
comment at the initial public hearing by the Board of Commissioners on March 16, 
and at the initiative of both the staff and applicant, several changes were made to the 
Development Agreement before the Commission public hearing on April 12, 2016.  
Most were minor editing changes.  The principal substantive changes included the 
following: 

• The final summary Site Data Table - Revised January 28, 2016. 

• Specific provision regarding the requirement for site plan approval for each 
phase of the project consistent with Chapter 110, Article II of the Land 
Development Code. 

• Clarification of the developer's responsibility to provide proof of the 
availability of adequate public water, sanitary sewer, and reclaimed water 
service. 

• Clarification of the requirements to be met prior to Certificate(s) of 
Occupancy. 

• Revision and clarification of the time within which construction must be 
initiated. 

• Provision for a restrictive covenant requiring evacuation of any temporary 
lodging use upon the posting of a hurricane watch. 

• Clarification of the provision requiring the developer to be responsible for all 
off-site roadway and utility improvements. 

• Update of the estimate of impact fees based on the final Concept Plan. 

Following discussions with affected parties, the applicant presented at the May 10th 
hearing amendments to the Development Agreement regarding site access along 
150th Street.  The amended conditions, which have been incorporated into the 
Development Agreement that is attached to this report, are as follows: 



Agenda Item: J-1. Agenda Report Page 3 of 3 

(x) Additional Off-Site Improvements.  The Owner, in coordination with the City, shall
diligently pursue the following action items to enhance access to the Project and
to other residential communities with access along 150th Avenue. Such action
items are not required to satisfy transportation concurrency requirements nor is
approval of this Agreement contingent upon approval of any such action items
by the FDOT.

(a) Owner and City shall coordinate efforts to lobby FDOT, and any other
agency with regulatory authority over same, to modify the opening
schedule for the Bridge on Tom Stuart Causeway to no more than twice per
hour preferably at :15 and :45 past the hour.

(b) Owner and City shall coordinate efforts to lobby FDOT to prohibit any right
turns from Gulf Boulevard to 150th Avenue while the traffic signal is red.

(c) Developer and City shall coordinate efforts to lobby FDOT to allow a traffic
signal to be installed at Madeira Cove and 150th Avenue.

(d) Upon completion of the first phase of development Developer will retain an
independent transportation engineer to complete a Traffic Signal Warrant
Analysis (“Analysis”) to commence in February and conclude at the end of
July.  Nothing herein shall limit the Developer from meeting this obligation
through a contribution to a study in partnership with another developer, so
long as the Analysis takes place within 12 months of the completion of the
first phase of development.   The obligation hereunder is limited to the
Analysis only and shall not extend to or require any other improvements
not otherwise required in this Agreement.

PLANNING 
COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The Planning Commission considered the Development Agreement in conjunction with its 
review of the rezoning request to PD and accompanying Concept Plan at public hearing on 
February 8, 2016. 

The Planning Commission recommended approval of the rezoning request, and to enter into 
the Development Agreement at that hearing by a vote of 7 - 0. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: N/A 

STAFF 
RECOMMENDATION: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Staff recommends the Board of Commissioners approve and authorize execution of 
the attached final Development Agreement for Holiday Isle Marina in support of 
and as a condition to approval of Ordinance 2015-18. 

Proposed Development Agreement 

Correspondence since May 10, 2016

Affected Party Testimony from John L. Lipa dated May 17, 2016

Notice of Intent to be a Party submitted by Timothy Paddock dated June 9, 2016



























































































































May 17, 2016 

 

Mr. Thomas Trask, City Attorney 

City of Madeira Beach, Florida 

 

Re: Affected Party Testimony, June 14, 2016 

 

Dear Mr. Trask:  

 

This is to inform you I will not be able to attend the June 14 meeting and therefore will not be able to testify in person.  I 

ask the comments below be read into the record at the June 14 meeting. 

 

To the Madeira Beach Board of Commissioners 

 

I wish to make clear to the Board of Commissioners I firmly believe that straight forward dialog is important to 

achieving mutually agreeable outcomes.  I have been engaged in straight forward dialogue with City Manager, Shane 

Crawford and developers, Mr. William Karns and Mr. James Holton and the three condo associations on 150th Ave.  for 

several months.  In my opinion this approached has worked. The City Manager, the two, developers and the people 

who live in the condos have been very responsive to my central concern: safe access and exit to and from 150th 

Avenue from the south.  

 

Mr. Karns showed exceptional creativity in suggesting the three condos: Madeira Cove, Boca Vista and Snug Harbor 

think outside the box to develop a common access point while assuring it would be cost neutral to them.  The owners 

at each of the three condos showed a remarkable willingness to take extraordinary steps in a cooperative fashion to 

achieve the safe access they seek. Mr. Holton boldly stepped forward to lead a cooperative effort to find a political 

solution to the challenge of securing safe access. Mr. Crawford showed well developed listening  skills in crafting what 

has become the central working document to address the safety concerns raised: amendment 9.11 in the Madeira 

Beach Town Center Planned  Development  and its counterpart  in the Holiday Isle Marina Planned Development. All 

know it will take a team effort to achieve a win-win outcome.  

 

My testimony, to you, on May 10 and the Planning Commission on April 28 was substantively similar. The facts I 

presented were based on a thorough review of the Madeira Beach Town Center Special Area Plan, Pinellas County 

Sheriff’s Accident Report for 150th Ave, The Florida Department of Transportation Intersection Design Guide, 2015 and 

the result of a face-to face meeting with the City Manager, Mr. Karns and FDOT’s Regional Director. 

 

The challenges mentioned are based on my personal experience and of those who live on the south side of 150th 

Avenue.  These concerns will soon be experienced by those who will live in the proposed new condos on the north 

side of 150th Ave. 

 

I again ask you, as our elected leaders, to join this collaborative team to assure safe access to and from 150th 

Avenue for all users. I ask you to remember the current traffic light at Madeira Way serves more than allowing traffic 

from Madeira Way to safely access 150th Avenue.  It also provides the same safe access to those who live on the south 

side of 150th. When this traffic light becomes a pedestrian crossing only traffic light it will become extremely 

challenging and increasing unsafe for those of us who live on 150th Ave to enter or exit 150th Ave. in to or out of our 

homes. A traffic light, perhaps semi actuated, is required at the new 4 way intersection at 399 150th Avenue and the 

entrance to the Madeira Beach Town Center condominiums appropriate alternative is required. 

 

On behalf of the 314 people who currently live on the south of 150th Ave., as well as, the 180 people who will live in the 

proposed condos on the north side of 150th Ave., please support the recommendations I presented to you and take 

meaningful action to make sure they become reality. You are in a pivotal position. Your endorsement is essential.  

Thank you for your time and consideration. 

 

 

John J. Lipa, Affected or Aggrieved Party 

399 150th Avenue, Unit 117c 

Madeira Beach, FL. 33708 





  



Agenda Item: J-2. Agenda Report Page 1 of 2 

MADEIRA BEACH BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

June 7, 2016 – Agenda Report

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

SUMMARY 
DESCRIPTION: 

Luis N. Serna, AICP, Planning and Zoning 

Madeira Beach Town Center – Development Agreement 

An application to rezone 6.696 acres, located on the northwest side of 150th Avenue (Tom Stuart 
Causeway) from Gulf Boulevard to the City’s Causeway Park, from C-3 (Retail Commercial) to PD 
(Planned Development) is being considered by the Planning Commission/Local Planning Agency.  
This request is for approval of the corresponding Development Agreement required to 
implement the Planned Development/Site Plan in accordance with Section 110-394 of the Code 
of Ordinances.  

The purpose of the development agreement is to establish the development rights and 
conditions for the project, and establish the submitted concept plan as a basis for reviewing 
future development proposals on the site.  Conditions contained in the agreement will help 
ensure that the development will not adversely affect the City of Madeira Beach or the public.   

On May 10, 2016, the Board of Commissioners conducted the first reading of Ordinance 2016-
01, and voted 4 to 1 to amend the zoning designation on the subject property from C-3 (Retail 
Commercial) to PD (Planned Development) consistent with the accompanying Concept Plan, and 
subject to the specific provisions and conditions as set forth in the accompanying Development 
Agreement. 

The proposed development agreement under consideration is between the City and the owners 
of the property on which the project is proposed.  The agreement establishes the rights and 
responsibilities of the parties to the agreement.  Some of the important features in this 
agreement include the following: 

 It is valid for a period of up to 15 years from its effective date, or until all phases of
construction are complete.

 It is tied to a specific concept plan for the site which is attached as an exhibit to the
agreement.

 It includes the requirement for future site plan approval of each phase of the project
consistent with Chapter 110, Article II of the Land Development Code.

 It details the specific off-site improvements that will need to be completed prior to the
issuance of Certificates of Occupancy for the project.

 It specifies that permitting and design costs for the required off-site improvements will
be paid by the developer.

 It specifies that the City will dedicate the transportation impact fees collected from this
project for the design and construction of these improvements.  Any costs that are not
covered by the City’s contribution will be paid by the developer.

 It allows for reductions in height, density, or intensity by up to 40 percent.  Any increases
height, density, or intensity, or any reductions greater than 40 percent require approval
by the Board of Commissioners.



Agenda Item: J-2. Agenda Report Page 2 of 2 

BUDGETARY 
IMPACT: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDATION: The draft development agreement has been reviewed by staff for compliance with Article IV, 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Chapter 86 of the Code of Ordinances.  Staff recommends approval of the attached 
Development Agreement for the Madeira Beach Town Center in support of and as a 
condition of approval of the Planned Development rezoning. 

Memo from City Attorney dated June 9, 2016 

Proposed Development Agreement 

Affected Party Testimony from John L. Lipa dated May 17, 2016

Notice of Intent to be a Party submitted by Timothy Paddock dated June 9, 2016



 

 

1001 South Fort Harrison Avenue, Suite 201  Clearwater, Florida 33756     E-Mail office@cityattorneys.legal     Telephone 727-733-0494      Fax 727-733-2991 
A Limited Liability Partnership 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

M E M O R A N D U M  
 

 
DATE: June 9, 2016 

TO: Mayor Travis Palladeno 
Vice-Mayor Pat Shontz 
Commissioner Terry Lister 
Commissioner Nancy Hodges 
Commissioner Elaine Poe 
 

FROM: Thomas J. Trask, City Attorney 

RE: Development Agreement with Madeira Beach Development Co., LLC 

 
The purpose of this memo is to advise you of additional language that has been incorporated 
in the proposed Madeira Beach Development Co., LLC Development Agreement, scheduled 
for your consideration next Tuesday, June 14, 2016. 
 
I am in receipt of the finalized draft Development Agreement between the City of Madeira 
Beach and Madeira Beach Development Co., LLC. The new paragraph provides for additional 
off-site improvements to enhance access to the Project and to other residential communities 
with access along 150th Avenue. It has been incorporated into the finalized draft, however, 
there are two differences in the verbiage from what was considered by the Planning 
Commission, than what was submitted as the finalized draft. The entire paragraph 9.11 
directly from the finalized draft is as follows, and the two changes made to the language since 
the Planning Commission’s vote are shown in blue underline. 
 

9.11  Additional Off-Site Improvements.  The Developer, in 

coordination with the City, shall diligently pursue the following action items to enhance 

access to the Project and to other residential communities with access along 150th Avenue. 

Such action items are not required to satisfy transportation concurrency requirements nor 

is approval of this Agreement contingent upon approval of any such action items by the 

FDOT.  It is understood that each such action item shall be done in coordination with the 

developer of the project commonly referred to as “Holiday Isle Marina” and the cost 

associated with each such action item shall be addressed by the respective developers by 

separate instrument.  

 

THOMAS J. TRASK, B.C.S.* 

JAY DAIGNEAULT 

RANDY MORA 

ERICA F. AUGELLO 

JOHN E. SCHAEFER 

 
* Board Certified by the Florida Bar in 

City, County and Local Government Law 



June 9, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

 
Trask Daigneault, LLP 

(a) Developer and City shall coordinate efforts to lobby FDOT, 

and any other agency with regulatory authority over same, to modify the 

opening schedule for the Bridge on Tom Stuart Causeway to no more than 

twice per hour preferably at :15 and :45 past the hour. 

 

(b) Developer and City shall coordinate efforts to lobby FDOT 

to prohibit any right turns from Gulf Boulevard to 150th Avenue while the 

traffic signal is red. 

 

(c) Developer and City shall coordinate efforts to lobby FDOT 

to allow a traffic signal to be installed at Madeira Cove and 150th Avenue.  

 

(d) Upon completion of each phase of development which 

requires the completion of Off-Site Roadway Improvements in accordance 

with Exhibit “E”, Developer will retain an independent transportation 

engineer to complete a Traffic Signal Warrant Analysis (“Analysis”) to 

commence in February and conclude at the end of July. If the Analysis 

warrants a traffic signal as established by the Manual on Uniform Traffic 

Control Devices (MUTCD), the Developer and City shall immediately file 

a signed/sealed Traffic Signal Warrant Analysis with FDOT and apply for 

any required FDOT permits for the design and installation of a traffic signal 

at Madeira Cove and 150th Avenue. The obligation to complete an Analysis 

hereunder shall not extend more than five years from execution of the 

Agreement. In the event a traffic signal is warranted, Developer shall 

design, fund and construct a traffic signal at Madeira Cove and 150th 

Avenue.  The obligation hereunder is limited to the design, funding and 

construction of a traffic signal at Madeira Cove and 150th Avenue and shall 

not extend to or require any other improvements not otherwise required in 

this Agreement. 

 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call. 
 
Respectfully submitted. 
 
TJT/jd 
 
cc: Shane Crawford, City Manager 
 Aimee Servedio, City Clerk 
 Michelle Orton, Planning and Zoning Director 



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  

 

 THIS AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") made and entered into this __day of _____________, 

2016, by and between the CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, a municipal  

corporation of the State of Florida (the "City"), and MADEIRA BEACH DEVELOPMENT CO., LLC, 

a Florida limited liability company (the “Developer”) (together the “Parties”).  

RECITALS 

 A. The Developer is the contract purchaser and developer of those certain tracts of 

land located within the City of Madeira Beach, Pinellas County, Florida, hereinafter referred to as the 

"Property" and more particularly described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof as if 

fully set forth herein. 

 B. The Developer desires to develop the Property consistent with the concept plan 

attached hereto as Exhibit “B” (“Concept Plan”) and made a part hereof as if fully set forth herein. 

 C. The Property, approximately 6.6 acres located within the Madeira Beach Town 

Center Special Area Plan – Causeway and Commercial Core Districts, has a land use designation of 

Planned Redevelopment – Mixed Use (“PR-MU”) and a zoning district designation of C-3 Retail 

Commercial (“C-3”). 

 D. The Florida Local Government Development Agreement Act, Florida Statutes 

§§163.3220 – 163.3243, (the “Act”), authorizes local governments to enter into development agreements 

with developers to encourage a stronger commitment to comprehensive and capital facilities planning, to 

ensure the provision of adequate public facilities for development, to encourage the efficient use of 

resources, to reduce the economic cost of development and to provide certainty to developers in the 

approval of development and assurances that they may proceed in accordance with existing laws and 

policies, subject to the conditions of such development agreements. 

 E. Such development agreements strengthen the public planning process, encourage 

sound capital improvements planning and financing, assist in assuring there are adequate capital facilities 

for the development, encourage private participation and comprehensive planning and reduce the cost of 

development. 

 F. The Developer is requesting the City to amend the zoning designation for the 

Property from C-3 to Planned Development (“PD”) to facilitate development of the Concept Plan. 

 G. The Concept Plan shows a mixed-use development consisting of hotel, 

condominium, commercial/retail and marina uses (the “Project”). 

 H. The Developer completed a concurrency evaluation for the Project and 

determined that public facilities and services are sufficient to serve the Project. Accordingly, upon 

approval and full execution of the Agreement, the Developer shall permit the water, wastewater and 

reclaimed water through Pinellas County; permit the stormwater water management system through the 

Southwest Florida Water Management District (“SWFWMD”); permit the solid waste, recreation and 

open space capacity through the City of Madeira Beach; fund the transportation improvements on 150th 

Avenue as required by and the Florida Department of Transportation (“FDOT”); and, fund the 

improvements on Madeira Way pursuant to the City’s concurrency requirements. 



 I. The detailed transportation analysis provided by the Developer to the City 

demonstrates the Project will not lower the transportation levels of service. 

 J. Certain site access improvements that are not required to satisfy concurrency 

requirements but which are required to provide adequate access to the Project (“Off-Site Roadway 

Improvements”), generally described in Exhibit “C” attached hereto and made a part hereof as if fully set 

forth herein, shall be designed, funded and constructed by Developer pursuant to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement and approval by the City. 

 K. The development rights of the Project are subject to the conditions of the 

development rights approval as set forth below. 

 L. The City has determined that the Concept Plan is consistent with the City’s 

comprehensive plan, the Madeira Beach Town Center Special Area Plan, and land development 

regulations as provided for herein. 

 M. The City and Developer acknowledge and agree that Developer intends to 

redevelop and construct improvements on the Property in phases and that any portion of the Property 

separately permitted for development and construction (which may include multiple structures) shall be 

considered a “Phase” or “Phase of Development” herein. Moreover, the Parties understand the 

Developer’s intent to cause each Phase of Development within the Property to be established as a separate 

parcel that is able to be conveyed to and owned and developed by a successor entity (“Designated 

Developer”) as a separate legal lot. Land restrictions that relate to the Agreement, including but not 

limited to cross parking easements, ingress/egress easements, and public access easements must be 

recorded in the public records. The required easements are: 

  (1)  Public use vehicular access easement from 150th Avenue to 

Condominium A, Condominium B, the marina and the dock master building; 

  (2) Public use pedestrian access easement for 10’ wide sidewalk in front of 

Condominium A, Condominium B, the marina and the dock master building; 

  (3) Public use pedestrian access easements (2) to access dock from 150th 

Avenue sidewalk; 

  (4) Public use pedestrian access easement through arcade; 

  (5) Public use easement over entire public plaza; 

  (6) Public use access easement for elevated pedestrian crosswalk on north 

end of parcel upon which Hotel B shall be constructed. 

  (7) Public use access easement for use of a ferry at marina. 

 N. The development rights attached hereto as Exhibit “D” and made a part hereof 

as if fully set forth herein are hereby approved pursuant to this Agreement on the Property and as more 

particularly shown on the Concept Plan (“Development Rights”).  The Developer shall be allowed to 

substitute retail space for restaurant space and restaurant space for retail space as long as the combined 

uses do not exceed the total permitted area of 50,000 square feet and such uses comply with the City’s 



minimum parking requirements. In addition, short term rentals are permitted within either of the proposed 

condominium buildings.  

 O. In consideration of (i) the City’s finding that public facilities and services are 

sufficient to serve the Project and (ii) the Developer’s commitment and obligation to complete the Off-

Site Roadway Improvements, the Developer shall be entitled to apply for and obtain building permits and 

receive certificates of occupancy for development of the Project, including any and all Phases of 

Development, for the Development Rights more particularly described in Exhibit D.  

 P. The Development Rights set forth in this Agreement approval are subject to the 

following conditions: 

 (1) Approval of the related development agreement pertaining to the site 

development of the Property as described and depicted in the Concept Plan. 

(2) Where necessary to accommodate proposed development, the Developer shall be 

responsible for the removal and/or relocation of any and all existing public 

utilities located on the Property or within a Phase of Development, including the 

granting of easements located outside the building footprint as may be required. 

This is regardless of whether the public utilities are known at the time of site plan 

approval or discovered subsequent to such approval. Any required relocation will 

be subject to approval from the City’s Public Works Department. 

(3) All construction associated with the Project shall be subject to the requirements 

of the Florida Building Code, Madeira Beach’s land development regulations, the 

Florida Fire Prevention Code, all other technical codes adopted by the City of 

Madeira Beach, and FEMA in existence at the time of building permit approval.  

(4) All on-site construction activities related to erosion control shall be applied as 

required by the National Pollution Discharge Elimination System, SWFWMD 

and the Madeira Beach Code of Ordinances. 

(5) Proof of SWFWMD Environmental Resource permit approval or exemption of 

the drainage requirements is required prior to a Certificate of Occupancy being 

issued for the first Phase of Development.  

(6) Proof of FDOT Access/Driveway permit approval for the ingress and egress to 

150th Avenue (Tom Stuart Causeway – S.R. 666) is required prior to a Certificate 

of Occupancy being issued for the Phase of Development benefitted by such 

permit approval. 

(7) Proof of FDOT Drainage Connection permits required prior to a Certificate of 

Occupancy being issued for the Phase of Development benefitted by such permit 

approval. 

(8) Final approval of the City’s consulting engineer of the civil and utility site plan 

and construction plans prior to building permits being issued for the respective 

Phase of Development. 



(9) Final approval of the City’s Public Works Department of the plans for solid 

waste collection prior to building permits being issued for the respective Phase of 

Development. 

(10) Final approval of the Fire Chief of the site plan as it relates to fire code issues 

prior to building permits being issued for the respective Phase of Development. 

(11) Final approval of the Community Services Department and the City’s consulting 

civil engineer for the site’s compliance with the site plan requirements of Article 

II of Chapter 110 of the Land Development Code for the respective Phase of 

Development prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. 

(12) Receipt by the City, after diligent effort by the City, of the necessary permits for 

the construction of the Off-Site Roadway Improvements. 

(13) Final approval of the parking count which shall be dependent upon the mix of 

uses but no less than that which is required by the Code’s minimum standards, 

including parking associated with the existing and proposed boat slips. 

(14) Final approval of a phasing plan by the Community Development Department. 

Notwithstanding, the Developer has sole discretion to modify the approved 

phasing plan including, but not limited to, the order of development. Such 

modification of the phasing plan shall not be considered an amendment to this 

Agreement. 

(15) The Developer may increase the number of boat slips from that which is shown 

on the Concept Plan so long as proper permits are secured from the county and 

State, as applicable, and parking allocated to the Marina complies with the 

Code’s minimum standards.  

 (16) The Developer shall be responsible for the construction of the Off-Site Roadway 

Improvements, prior to a Certificate of Occupancy being issued as more 

specifically set forth in Exhibit “E” for the Phase of Development benefitted by 

such Off-Site Roadway Improvements. 

 (17) The Developer may subdivide the Property, as it deems appropriate, consistent 

with the following: 

(a) The proposed Project is contemplated to include multiple components 

including, without limitation, hotel, residential, condominium, retail, restaurant, 

marina, parking, and associated and ancillary uses.  The Property currently 

consists of twenty-one (21) separate lots of record.  In order to facilitate the 

overall development of the Property, Developer may find it appropriate to pursue 

lot line adjustments without re-platting pursuant to Section 86-26, City of 

Madeira Beach Land Development Code.  Similarly, Developer may find it 

appropriate to pursue the division of single lots of record into two separate lots, 

either in connection with or separate from, Developer’s lot line adjustment 

applications.  The sale of one or more lots of record to third parties is expressly 

permitted under this Agreement; provided, however, for so long as this 



Agreement remains in effect, the Property may only be developed in accordance 

with this Development Agreement.   

(b) In connection with the development of the Project, and to facilitate the 

orderly development of the Property by one or more separate owners, Developer 

may find it appropriate to utilize one or more property regimes to implement the 

development plans, to provide for ownership of the project components, and to 

provide for the continued cooperative operation and maintenance of the 

Project.  It is presently anticipated that the Project will be developed utilizing a 

master set of covenants, conditions, easements, and restrictions applicable to the 

entirety of the Property, or to separate portions of the Property, with a separate 

declaration of condominium utilized for the creation of each of the separate 

components intended to be declared to condominium ownership; provided, 

however, nothing in this Agreement shall preclude Developer from utilizing a 

master condominium, land condominium, homeowners association, or other 

structures to create and provide for the ownership, operation, and maintenance of 

the overall Project and the separate Project components. 

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual promises made and agreed to be kept 

hereunder and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 

acknowledged, and in consideration of the approval of certain uses by the City and conditioned on the 

performance in all respects of this Agreement by each of the parties, it is hereby agreed between the 

parties as follows: 

 

THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES 

 

 1.0 Recitals. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein 

by reference.  All exhibits to this Agreement are incorporated by reference and deemed to be part 

hereof. 

 

 2.0 Authority. This Agreement is authorized by Section 163.3220, et seq. F.S. (2011) 

and Sections 86-141 through 86-149 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Madeira Beach. 

 

 3.0 Effective Date. This Agreement shall be effective as of the day after it is fully 

executed and recorded in the Pinellas County public records ("Effective Date"). In the event that there is 

an appeal or legal proceeding challenging this Agreement or challenging the other matters affecting the 

purpose, intent, or the rights of the Developer or the City to develop the Property as contemplated 

hereby, the Effective Date of this Agreement shall be extended and shall commence upon the conclusion 

of such litigation, including appeals and upon all rights of appeal having expired. In the event that a 

Court decision materially changes any aspect of this Agreement or has made the performance of a 

portion of this Agreement impossible or unacceptable to one of the parties, either party may choose to 

terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party and the parties shall 

assist each other in returning each party to the positions and legal status that it enjoyed immediately 

prior to the date of the entry into this Agreement; or, alternatively, the parties shall work together to 

restore the material benefit if such is reasonably possible. 

 

  3.1 In the event that this Agreement is subject to termination pursuant to the 

provisions hereof, either party may record an affidavit signed by all parties hereto or their respective 

successors and assigns in the Public Records of Pinellas County, Florida reflecting that such termination 

has occurred and that this Agreement is thereby terminated and by such affidavit, notice that the 

termination provisions of this Agreement pursuant to this paragraph have occurred. The party recording 



such affidavit shall send a copy of the recorded affidavit to the other party and this Agreement shall be 

terminated and shall be deemed void and of no further force and effect. In the event that the Developer's 

fee simple title is encumbered by any mortgages, liens or other rights of third persons which are not 

subordinated to the terms, conditions, covenants and restrictions set forth in this Agreement, said third 

party encumbrances shall be of no force and effect as to the provisions of this Agreement.  

 

  3.2 This Agreement shall be superior to any mortgages, liens or other 

rights of third Persons.  Any mortgages or liens or encumbrances on the Property created  

contemporaneously or after the effective date of this Agreement shall be subject to and subordinate to the 

terms of this Agreement. 

 

  3.3 In the event that this Agreement is not executed by the Developer on 

or before 5:00p.m. on the 30th day of ________, this Agreement shall be null and void and of no  

further force and effect and any development permissions granted pursuant hereto shall no longer be 

valid. 

 

 4.0 Duration of Agreement. This Agreement shall terminate upon the earlier of the 

following dates: (i) the date on which all phases of construction of the Project are complete and issuance 

of a valid Certificate of Occupancy for the final Phase of Development; or (ii) fifteen (15) years from the 

Effective Date. So long as there is active construction activity on the Property consistent with this 

Agreement, the Agreement shall be deemed effective.  This time period may be extended by mutual 

agreement of the parties. The recordation of a valid and final Certificate of Occupancy by any party 

hereto or their successor in interest shall be conclusive evidence of the termination of this Agreement.   

 

  4.1 Notwithstanding anything in the Code to the contrary, the Parties agree 

that the Developer shall have three (3) years from the Effective Date of the Agreement to file an 

application for building permit for any Phase of Development, subject to receipt of written confirmation 

that the City has the proper state and federal permits for the construction of the Off-Site Roadway 

Improvements.  The City shall apply for such Off-Site Roadway Improvement permits related to the first 

phase of development within 90 days of receipt of notice from Developer to initiate the application 

process. 

  5.0 Third Party Rights. The Parties represent, to their respective best knowledge, that 

nothing herein is barred or prohibited by any other contractual agreement to which it is a party, or by any 

Statute or rule of any governmental agency, or any third party's rights or by the rights of contract vendees, 

lien holders, mortgage holders or any other party with a direct or contingent interest in the Property, 

whether legal or equitable. Any lienholder or mortgagee shall have the right to perform any term, 

covenant or condition and to remedy any default hereunder, and City shall accept such performance with 

the same force and effect as if furnished by Developer. 

  6.0 Law and Ordinance Compliance. The ordinances, policies and procedures of the 

City concerning development of the Property that are in existence as of the approval of this Agreement 

shall govern the development of the Project, and the same shall be in compliance with the applicable 

regulations of County, State and Federal agencies. No subsequently adopted ordinances, policies, or 

procedures shall apply to the Project except in accordance with the provisions of Section 163.3233(2), 

Florida Statutes (2012). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall have the absolute discretion to 

amend and/or adopt life safety codes such as but not limited to fire codes, that may conflict with the 

provisions herein or may impose additional burdens on the Developer as is otherwise authorized by State 

Statutes or the regulations of governmental administrative agencies, provided that such life safety codes 

retroactively apply to all development similar to the Project in the City. The Parties agree that such 

codes may be adopted without any special notice to the Developer and that the Developer shall not be 



entitled to any special hearing relative to the adoption of such codes. Failure of this Agreement to 

address a particular permit, condition, term, restriction, or to require a development permission shall not 

relieve the Developer of the necessity of complying with the law governing said permitting 

requirements, conditions, terms or restrictions in any matter or thing required under existing Ordinances 

of the City or regulations of any other governmental agency, or any other entity having legal authority 

over the Property. Except as provided in this Agreement, all applicable impact fees, development review 

fees, building permit fees and all other fees of any type or kind shall be paid by Developer in accordance 

with their terms and in such amount applicable as they become due and payable. 

  7.0 No Estoppel. The Parties agree that prior to the approval of this Agreement by 

the City Commission, the City's interest in entering into this Agreement, the studies, surveys, 

environmental studies, consultant plans or investigations, the expenditure of substantial funds, the staff 

approval or recommendation relative to the proposed development and any other act in furtherance of this 

Agreement, shall not be used by the Developer or its successors in title in any way whatsoever as 

committing the City legally through a theory of equitable estoppel, action in reliance, or any other legal 

theory as to the approval of such proposed development in the event that this Agreement is not approved 

by the City Commission or for any other reason does not take effect in all material respects.  The Parties 

further agree that any and all action by the Developer or its representatives in negotiation of this 

Agreement, including all acts or expenditures in the implementation of this Agreement or submittals to 

other governmental bodies shall in no way be deemed to be an action in reliance giving rise to an 

equitable estoppel. 

  8.0 No Partnership or Joint Venture. The City and Developer agree that the matters 

contained in this Agreement shall under no circumstances constitute a joint venture, partnership or agency 

between them. No third party shall be deemed to have any beneficial interest in this Agreement or any 

expectation of benefit or property rights or any other rights of any kind arising from this Agreement. 

  9.0 Concept Plan. In order to avoid any adverse impacts from the development of 

the Property on the abutting property owners and on the residents of the City of Madeira Beach, the 

Parties agree that the Property will be developed in substantial conformance with the Concept Plan as 

such Concept Plan may be modified by the requirements of other state and county governmental 

agencies having jurisdiction over the development of the Property. The use of the Property after 

development is the reason that the City Commission exercised its legislative authority and entered into 

this Agreement. Except as may be authorized by the Parties hereto, any substantial deviation from the 

commitments made by the Parties herein shall be considered material defaults in this Agreement unless 

otherwise approved by the City or contemplated herein. The City of Madeira Beach shall not consent to 

any substantial modification unless it deems that such is in the best interest of the public and in its 

discretion in reaching such decision it shall be deemed to be acting in a legislative capacity and within 

its sole and absolute discretion taking into account the public health, safety and welfare. The following 

specific requirements shall also be met: 

   9.1 The Property shall be developed and landscaped in accordance with the 

Concept Plan, however, the landscaping details shall be determined during the permitting process for each 

phase of Development. With the exception of the landscaping located within the public access area 

described as “Madeira Plaza” in Exhibit “B”, the landscaping within the Property shall be maintained by 

the Developer. The City shall maintain the landscaping within the public access area described as 

“Madeira Plaza” in Exhibit “B”.  The purpose of landscaping and the continued development and care of 

the landscaping on the Property is, in part, for the benefit of the abutting property owners and to screen 

light, noise and other possible negative aspects of the development. Such landscaping shall be provided 

prior to a certificate of occupancy being issued for the respective Phase of Development and, with the 



exception of the landscaping located within the public access area described as “Madeira Plaza”, will be 

maintained in good and healthy conditions at all times by the Developer. 

   9.2 With the exception of minor modifications allowed pursuant to Section 

110-396 of the Code, there shall not be any substantial deviation from the provisions of the Concept Plan 

unless such is approved by the City Commission of the City of Madeira Beach at a public hearing 

conducted for such purpose and this Agreement is modified in writing by the Parties thereto for the 

purpose of agreeing to such deviation. 

   9.3 Ingress and egress to the Property shall be as shown on the Concept Plan.  

   9.4 Uses, building heights, setbacks and location will be as shown on the 

Concept Plan. The architectural style reflected in the Concept Plan is conceptual in nature and may be 

modified by the Developer pursuant to the design standards in Section 110-393 of the Code.  

   9.5 This Agreement and the Concept Plan attached hereto specify certain 

minimum setbacks, building heights, sign sizes and similar dimensional requirements and agreements. No 

substantial changes may be made in these agreed upon dimensional requirements except by an 

amendment to this Agreement which revised amendment is legislatively considered by the City 

Commission and agreed to by the City Commission, set forth in writing as an amendment to this 

Agreement and executed by the parties hereto or their successors or assigns. The Developer, and its 

successors and assigns specifically waive and relinquish any right to change the terms of this Agreement 

through any administrative or legal process, including a decision by a court of competent jurisdiction, 

unless agreed to by the Parties.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, minor modifications to the dimensional 

requirements, increases in the number of permitted boat slips, and, reductions in height, density or 

intensity that do not exceed 40% of the permitted dimensional requirements are not contrary to the 

purpose and intent of this Agreement and may be included in the final site plan process without an 

amendment hereto so long as the minimum parking requirement is maintained. If the Developer reduces 

the number of hotel rooms that would otherwise be located on one floor, such reduction shall not require a 

reduction in the total number of floors within the structure as long as the floor being replaced provides 

public parking spaces within the garage. 

 

   9.6 Marina. Marina and boat slips shown on the Concept Plan may be 

modified as required by the state and federal permitting agencies without amendment hereto so long as 

the minimum parking requirement is met as defined in the City of Madeira Beach Code of Ordinances. 

The permitted uses and parking allocation for the Marina are as noted in Exhibit D. The Marina will not 

provide gas or fuel for owners of boats or other recreational facilities using the Marina.  The Marina is 

subject of a Submerged Land Lease between the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust 

Fund of the State of Florida, as Lessor, and W. Barry Loft, as Trustee of the 919 Land Trust Created U/A 

dated December 31, 1996, as Lessee (“Lease”). The Lease, dated March 1, 2011, and for a 10 year term, 

permits 43 wet slips with at least 90% of same required to be available for rent to the general public. The 

Developer reserves the right, subject to permits being approved by the State of Florida, to change the size 

and/or location of the submerged land subject to the Lease, and the use restrictions of the wet slips, as 

long as at least one-half of the current number of wet slips remains available for rent to the public. 

   9.7 Phasing Plan.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that Developer intends 

to redevelop and construct improvements on the Property in phases. The Property may be developed in 

five (5) separate phases in accordance with Exhibit “E”.  Developer shall file an application for building 

permit for the first phase of development within three (3) years of the Effective Date and shall thereafter 

file an application for building permit for each subsequent phase of development within three (3) years of 



the immediately preceding phase of development. The Developer has sole and absolute discretion to 

determine the order of such phased development.  The Parties understand the Developer’s intent to cause 

each Phase of Development within the Property to be established as a separate parcel that is able to be 

conveyed to and owned and developed by a Designated Developer as a separate legal lot. Each phase of 

development shall be subject to final site plan approval and shall comply with the City’s minimum 

parking requirements for the uses included within each such phase of development. The Developer, or 

Designated Developer, shall construct that portion of the Off-Site Roadway Improvements which benefit 

the respective Phase of Development in accordance with Exhibit “E”. Unless the first Phase of 

Development includes either of the proposed hotels, the Developer shall not be obligated to complete all 

of the Off-Site Roadway Improvements prior to or in conjunction with the first Phase of Development. 

Nothing in this Agreement shall obligate Developer to complete construction of a phase of development 

prior to filing an application for building permit for the next phase of development. Developer may file 

applications for building permit for more than one (1) phase of development at any time. 

   9.8 Off-Site Roadway Improvements.  Certain site access improvements that 

are not required to satisfy transportation concurrency requirements but which are required to provide 

adequate access to the Project, as generally described in Exhibit “C” shall be designed, funded and 

constructed by Developer pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The City shall be 

responsible for permitting the roadway improvements located upon, within or across 150th Avenue and 

located upon, within or across Madeira Way. The City shall also be responsible for obtaining the permit 

from FDOT for the elevated pedestrian crosswalk located above and across Gulf Boulevard.  Upon 

completion, the Developer shall convey the elevated pedestrian crosswalk to the City.  Upon conveyance 

to the City, the Developer shall cause to be recorded an easement in favor of the public for that portion of 

the elevated pedestrian crosswalk located upon or within Developer’s property.  Any and all 

improvements required by the FDOT not otherwise described in Exhibit “C” shall not constitute an 

amendment to the Agreement subject to review and approval by the City Commission. 

   9.9 Public Access.   The Concept Plan proposes areas within the Project that 

shall be accessible by the public as generally depicted in Exhibit “F” attached hereto and made a part 

hereof as if fully set forth herein. The Developer shall fund, design, permit and maintain such public 

access areas. Prior to completion of the phase of development upon which such public access areas are 

located, the Developer shall cause to be recorded an access easement in favor of the public. 

   9.10 Design Standard.  The pedestrian sidewalk, landscaping and hardscape 

features shall be consistent with the Concept Plan the details of which shall be determined during the 

permitting process for each phase of development. 

 

9.11  Additional Off-Site Improvements.  The Developer, in coordination with 

the City, shall diligently pursue the following action items to enhance access to the Project and to other 

residential communities with access along 150th Avenue. Such action items are not required to satisfy 

transportation concurrency requirements nor is approval of this Agreement contingent upon approval of 

any such action items by the FDOT.  It is understood that each such action item shall be done in 

coordination with the developer of the project commonly referred to as “Holiday Isle Marina” and the 

cost associated with each such action item shall be addressed by the respective developers by separate 

instrument.  

 

(a) Developer and City shall coordinate efforts to lobby FDOT, and any 

other agency with regulatory authority over same, to modify the opening schedule for the 



Bridge on Tom Stuart Causeway to no more than twice per hour preferably at :15 and :45 

past the hour. 

 

(b) Developer and City shall coordinate efforts to lobby FDOT to prohibit 

any right turns from Gulf Boulevard to 150th Avenue while the traffic signal is red. 

 

(c) Developer and City shall coordinate efforts to lobby FDOT to allow a 

traffic signal to be installed at Madeira Cove and 150th Avenue.   

 

(d) Upon completion of each phase of development which requires the 

completion of Off-Site Roadway Improvements in accordance with Exhibit “E”, 

Developer will retain an independent transportation engineer to complete a Traffic Signal 

Warrant Analysis (“Analysis”) to commence in February and conclude at the end of July. 

If the Analysis warrants a traffic signal as established by the Manual on Uniform Traffic 

Control Devices (MUTCD), the Developer and City shall immediately file a 

signed/sealed Traffic Signal Warrant Analysis with FDOT and apply for any required 

FDOT permits for the design and installation of a traffic signal at Madeira Cove and 150th 

Avenue. The obligation to complete an Analysis hereunder shall not extend more than 

five years from execution of the Agreement. In the event a traffic signal is warranted, 

Developer shall design, fund and construct a traffic signal at Madeira Cove and 150th 

Avenue.  The obligation hereunder is limited to the design, funding and construction of a 

traffic signal at Madeira Cove and 150th Avenue and shall not extend to or require any 

other improvements not otherwise required in this Agreement.  

  10.0 Public Infrastructure. The Developer, or its successor in title, as appropriate, at 

its sole cost, shall design, construct and maintain, until acceptance by the City and conveyance by 

recordable instrument or bill of sale, as appropriate, to the City, all public infrastructure facilities and 

lands necessary to serve the Project which are shown on the Concept Plan, provided that said public 

infrastructure facilities have received construction plan approval and that all applicable review procedures 

have been complied with fully, inspected and accepted by the City. Public infrastructure facilities shall 

include those facilities to be located in rights-of-way or easement areas conveyed to the City, as shown on 

the approved engineering construction drawings. 

   10.1 Public infrastructure facilities necessary to service and that benefit a 

Phase of Development, in accordance with Exhibit E, shall be complete, and approved for acceptance by 

the City and/or the governmental agency having authority, prior to the issuance of a certificate of 

occupancy for the respective Phase of Development. Alternatively, the Developer, or Designated 

Developer, shall provide the appropriate letter of credit in a form satisfactory to the City Attorney, 

drawable on or through a local Pinellas County bank. Said letter of credit shall be deposited with the 

City to guarantee the completion of public infrastructure facilities prior to the time that certificates of 

occupancy are issued for the respective Phase of Development in accordance with Exhibit E and public 

access and facilities to serve the proposed structures are available in accordance with City regulations.   

  11.0 Public Facilities. The City shall cause to be provided to the boundary of the 

Property the following available City owned and operated facilities, to wit: infrastructure and services for 

fire protection, potable water and sanitary sewer to meet domestic and fire flow levels of service as 

required for the Project by City and other applicable regulations. 

 

  12.0 Permits. Development permits, which may need to be approved and issued, 

include, but are not limited to the following: 



 

   12.1 City of Madeira Beach building permits. 

 

   12.2 Southwest Florida Water Management District surface water 

management permit. 

 

   12.3 Pinellas County Utility Permit. 

    

   12.4 Florida Department of Transportation. 

  

   12.5 All other approvals or permits as required by existing governmental 

regulations as they now exist.   

Except as set forth in this Agreement, all development permits required to be obtained by the 

Developer for the Project will be obtained at the sole cost of the Developer and in the event that any 

required development permissions issued by entities other than the City are not received, no further 

development of the Property shall be allowed until such time as the City and the Developer have 

reviewed the matter and determined whether to modify or terminate this Agreement. Permits for the 

Off-Site Roadway Improvements shall be obtained by the City with diligent effort; however, any 

permitting and design costs associated with those improvements shall be the sole cost of the 

Developer.   

  13.0 Impact fees.  The City has estimated the impact fees that the Developer shall pay 

to the City as follows, subject to credits issued for prior development of property: 

 

 

   Hotel A (180 hotel units) =    $ 288,720.00 

   Hotel B (250 hotel units) =     $ 401,000.00 

   90 multifamily condo residential units =   $ 112,320.00 

   43 slip marina =     $     8,316.00 

   Marina Restaurant    $     2,181.00 

   Hotel A Restaurant    $     4,362.00 

   Hotel A Retail     $     6,237.00 

   Hotel B Restaurant    $   26,172.00 

   Hotel B Retail     $   58,212.00 

 

   Rough estimate of charges =    $ 907,520.00 

In consideration for the mutual benefits provided by the design and construction of the Off-Site Roadway 

Improvements, specifically the improvements to 150th Avenue, Gulf Boulevard and Madeira Way as 

shown on the Concept Plan, and the elevated pedestrian crosswalk over Gulf Boulevard as shown subject 

to FDOT approval and final engineering, the City shall contribute 100% from its share of the total 

collected Transportation Impact fees for the construction of the Off-site Roadway Improvements (“City’s 

Contribution”).  In the event the Off-site Roadway Improvements are not paid in full by the City’s share, 

the City will seek additional funding from alternative sources of funding and shall diligently work to 

secure the additional funding from Pinellas County’s share of the transportation impact fee, or some other 

source. The Developer shall be responsible for all costs associated with the permitting and construction of 

the Off-Site Roadway Improvements that exceed the City’s Contribution.  



  14.0 Recycling. The Developer and its successors-in-title will cooperate with City to 

encourage and promote recycling activities within the Project and such commitment will be reflected in a 

covenant running with the Project lands. 

 

  15.0 Annual Review. The City shall review the Project once every twelve (12) 

calendar months from the Effective Date. 

  16.0 Recordation. Not later than fourteen (14) days after the execution of this 

Agreement, the City shall record this Agreement with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in Pinellas County, 

Florida, and a copy of the recorded Agreement shall be submitted to the Florida Department of Economic 

Opportunity within fourteen (14) days after the Agreement is recorded. The burdens of this Agreement 

shall be binding upon, and the benefits of the Agreement shall inure to, all successors and assigns in 

interest to the parties to this Agreement. 

  17.0 Agreement as Covenant. This Agreement shall constitute a covenant running 

with the Property for the duration hereof and shall be binding upon the Developer and upon all persons 

deriving title by, through or under said Developer and upon its successors and assigns in title. The 

agreements contained herein shall benefit and limit all present and future owners of the Property, and the 

City for the term hereof. 

  18.0 Legislative Act. This Agreement is agreed to be a legislative act of the City in 

furtherance of its powers to regulate land use and development within its boundaries and, as such, shall be 

superior to the rights of existing mortgagees, lien holders or other persons with a legal or equitable 

interest in the Property and this Agreement and the obligations and responsibilities arising hereunder as to 

the Developer shall be superior to the rights of said mortgagees or lien holders and shall not be subject to 

foreclosure under the terms of mortgages or liens entered into or recorded prior to the execution and 

recordation of this Agreement. The execution of this Agreement or the consent to this Agreement by any 

existing mortgage holder, lien holder or other persons having an encumbrance on the Property shall be 

deemed to be in agreement with the matters set forth in this paragraph. 

  19.0 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and 

understanding between the parties and no modification hereof shall be made except by written agreement 

executed with the same formality as this Agreement. The parties agree that there are no outstanding 

agreements of any kind other than are reflected herein and, except as is otherwise specifically provided 

herein, for the term of the Agreement the Property shall be subject to the laws, ordinances and regulations 

of the City of Madeira Beach as they exist as of the date of this Agreement. Any reference in this 

Agreement to "Developer" contemplates and includes the fee simple title owners of record of the Property 

their heirs, assigns or successors in title and interest. Any oral agreements, agreements created by written 

correspondence or any other matters previously discussed or agreed upon between the parties are merged 

herein. 

  20.0 Enforcement. The parties agree that either party may seek legal and equitable 

remedies for the enforcement of this Agreement, provided however that neither the City nor the 

Developer may seek or be entitled to any monetary damages from each other as a result of any breach or 

default of this Agreement. In any litigation arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be 

entitled to recover its costs and attorney’s fees at mediation, trial and through any appellate proceedings. 

   20.1 Except as provided above, the Parties agree that any legislative and 

quasi-judicial decisions, if any are required, by the City regarding the appropriate land use or other 

development regulations impacting the Property shall, in no event or under any conditions, give rise to a 



claim for monetary damages or attorney fees against the City and any claim for such damages or fees by 

the Developer or its successors or assigns are specifically waived. 

  21.0 Execution. The Developer represents and warrants that this Agreement has been 

executed by all persons having equitable title in the subject Property. The City represents that the officials 

executing this Agreement on behalf of the City have the legal authority to do so, that this Agreement has 

been approved in accordance with the ordinances and Charter of the City and applicable State law, that 

appropriate approval of this Agreement has been received in a public hearing and that the City 

Commission of the City of Madeira Beach has authorized the execution of this Agreement by the 

appropriate City officials. 

  22.0 Severability. In the event that any of the covenants, agreements, terms, or 

provisions contained in this Agreement shall be found invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect by 

a court of competent jurisdiction, the validity of the remaining covenants, agreements, terms, or 

provisions contained herein shall be in no way affected, prejudiced, or disturbed thereby. 

  23.0 Estoppel Certificates. Within twenty (20) days after request in writing by either 

party or any lender, the other party will furnish a written statement in form and substance reasonably 

acceptable to the requesting party, duly acknowledging the fact that (a) this Development Agreement is 

in full force and effect, (b) there are no uncured defaults hereunder by City or Developer, if that be the 

case, and (c) additional information concerning such other matters as reasonably requested. In the event 

that either party shall fail to deliver such estoppel certificate within such twenty (20) day period, the 

requesting party shall forward such request directly to the City Manager and the City Attorney or to the 

Developer with copies to the Developer's general counsel by certified mail, return receipt requested or 

by Federal Express or other delivery service in which delivery must be signed for. In the case where the 

Developer is the requesting party, the Developer may in its sole discretion but without obligation, appear 

at a public meeting and request the estoppel certificate to insure that the City Manager and staff are 

aware of the request and the Developer may rely on the statement of the City Manager at such public 

meeting or may request that the City Manager be directed by the City Commission to respond to the 

estoppel certificate request in a timely manner. 

  24.0 Venue. Venue for the enforcement of this Agreement shall be exclusively in 

Pinellas County, Florida. 

  25.0 Default. Upon default or breach of any substantive portion of this Agreement by 

any party, the non-defaulting party shall provide written notice via overnight, traceable delivery service of 

the default and opportunity to cure within sixty (60) days to the defaulting party. Upon the failure of the 

Developer to cure such defaults, the City shall provide notice via overnight traceable delivery service to 

Developer of its intent to terminate this Agreement on a date not less than sixty (60) days from the date 

of such notice and upon the expiration of such period, the City, unless ordered otherwise by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, may revoke the then existing development permits issued by it and the Developer 

shall have no claim for damages against the City arising from such revocation. Alternatively, the City 

may proceed in court to obtain any legal or equitable remedies available to it to enforce the terms of this 

Agreement. In the event of any default or breach of any substantive portion of this Agreement by the 

City, the Developer may: (i) give written notice via overnight traceable delivery service to the City of 

said default with an opportunity to cure within sixty (60) days of receipt of such notice. In the event City 

fails to cure within said time period, the Developer may thereafter proceed in a court of competent 

jurisdiction to institute proceedings for specific performance or to obtain any other legal or equitable 

remedy to cure the default of this Agreement by the City. In any litigation arising hereunder, the 



 

prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs and attorney’s fees at mediation, trial and through 

any appellate proceedings. 

  26.0 Notices. All notices and other communications required or permitted to be given 

hereunder shall be in writing and shall be mailed by certified or registered mail, postage prepaid or by 

Federal Express, Air Borne Express or similar overnight delivery services, addressed as follows: 

 

To the Developer: 

Madeira Beach Development Co., LLC 

286 107th Avenue, Suite 300 

Treasure Island, FL 33706 

Attn:  William F. Karns, Manager 

 

With copies to:  

C. Scott Brainard, Esq. 

Corporate Counsel 

William Karns Enterprises, Inc. 

286 107th Avenue, Suite 300 

Treasure Island, FL 33706 

 

To the City: 

Shane Crawford, City manager 

City of Madeira Beach 

300 Municipal Drive 

Madeira Beach, FL 34698 

 

With copies to: 

Thomas J. Trask, Esq. 

City Attorney 

Trask Daigneault, LLP 

1001 S. Ft. Harrison Ave., Suite 201 

Clearwater, FL 33756 

 

Notice shall be deemed to have given upon receipt or refusal. 

  27.0 Binding Effect. The burdens of this Agreement shall be binding upon, and 

the benefits of this Agreement shall inure to, all successors and assigns in interest to the parties of 

this Agreement. 

  28.0 Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no third party 

beneficiaries to this Agreement. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and their respective 

seals affixed as of this ___ day of ____________, 2016. 

 

 

[SIGNATURE BLOCKS ON FOLLOWING PAGES]  



 

 

In the Presence of: MADEIRA BEACH DEVELOPMENT CO., 

LLC, a Florida limited liability company 

  

 

______________________________  By:______________________________ 

Print Name_____________________              William F. Karns, Manager 

______________________________          

Print Name_____________________ 

       

 

STATE OF FLORIDA  

COUNTY OF PINELLAS 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of 

________________, 2016 by William F. Karns, as Manager of Madeira Beach Development Co., 

LLC, a Florida limited liability company, on behalf of the company, who is personally known to 

me or who has produced _____________________________ as identification. 

           

     ________________________________ 

My Commission Expires:   Notary Public 

      Print Name:______________________ 

(NOTARY SEAL) 

 

  



 

 

      CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH 

 

      By: ____________________________ 

             Shane Crawford 

       City Manager 

 

      Attest: 

 

      ________________________________ 

      Aimee Servedio, City Clerk 

 

      Countersigned: 

 

      ________________________________ 

      Travis Palladeno, Mayor 

 

      Approved as to Form: 

 

      ________________________________ 

      Thomas J. Trask, Esq.  

City Attorney 

 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA  

COUNTY OF PINELLAS 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of 

________________, 2016 by Travis Palladeno, as Mayor of the City of Madeira Beach, Florida, 

who is personally known to me or who has produced _____________________________ as 

identification.           

      ________________________________ 

My Commission Expires:   Notary Public 

      Print Name:______________________ 

(NOTARY SEAL) 

 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA  

COUNTY OF PINELLAS 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of 

________________, 2016 by Shane Crawford as City Manager of the City of Madeira Beach, 

who is personally known to me or who has produced _____________________________ as 

identification.           

               _______________________________ 

My Commission Expires:   Notary Public 

      Print Name:______________________ 

(NOTARY SEAL)

 





































































May 17, 2016 

 

Mr. Thomas Trask, City Attorney 

City of Madeira Beach, Florida 

 

Re: Affected Party Testimony, June 14, 2016 

 

Dear Mr. Trask:  

 

This is to inform you I will not be able to attend the June 14 meeting and therefore will not be able to testify in person.  I 

ask the comments below be read into the record at the June 14 meeting. 

 

To the Madeira Beach Board of Commissioners 

 

I wish to make clear to the Board of Commissioners I firmly believe that straight forward dialog is important to 

achieving mutually agreeable outcomes.  I have been engaged in straight forward dialogue with City Manager, Shane 

Crawford and developers, Mr. William Karns and Mr. James Holton and the three condo associations on 150th Ave.  for 

several months.  In my opinion this approached has worked. The City Manager, the two, developers and the people 

who live in the condos have been very responsive to my central concern: safe access and exit to and from 150th 

Avenue from the south.  

 

Mr. Karns showed exceptional creativity in suggesting the three condos: Madeira Cove, Boca Vista and Snug Harbor 

think outside the box to develop a common access point while assuring it would be cost neutral to them.  The owners 

at each of the three condos showed a remarkable willingness to take extraordinary steps in a cooperative fashion to 

achieve the safe access they seek. Mr. Holton boldly stepped forward to lead a cooperative effort to find a political 

solution to the challenge of securing safe access. Mr. Crawford showed well developed listening  skills in crafting what 

has become the central working document to address the safety concerns raised: amendment 9.11 in the Madeira 

Beach Town Center Planned  Development  and its counterpart  in the Holiday Isle Marina Planned Development. All 

know it will take a team effort to achieve a win-win outcome.  

 

My testimony, to you, on May 10 and the Planning Commission on April 28 was substantively similar. The facts I 

presented were based on a thorough review of the Madeira Beach Town Center Special Area Plan, Pinellas County 

Sheriff’s Accident Report for 150th Ave, The Florida Department of Transportation Intersection Design Guide, 2015 and 

the result of a face-to face meeting with the City Manager, Mr. Karns and FDOT’s Regional Director. 

 

The challenges mentioned are based on my personal experience and of those who live on the south side of 150th 

Avenue.  These concerns will soon be experienced by those who will live in the proposed new condos on the north 

side of 150th Ave. 

 

I again ask you, as our elected leaders, to join this collaborative team to assure safe access to and from 150th 

Avenue for all users. I ask you to remember the current traffic light at Madeira Way serves more than allowing traffic 

from Madeira Way to safely access 150th Avenue.  It also provides the same safe access to those who live on the south 

side of 150th. When this traffic light becomes a pedestrian crossing only traffic light it will become extremely 

challenging and increasing unsafe for those of us who live on 150th Ave to enter or exit 150th Ave. in to or out of our 

homes. A traffic light, perhaps semi actuated, is required at the new 4 way intersection at 399 150th Avenue and the 

entrance to the Madeira Beach Town Center condominiums appropriate alternative is required. 

 

On behalf of the 314 people who currently live on the south of 150th Ave., as well as, the 180 people who will live in the 

proposed condos on the north side of 150th Ave., please support the recommendations I presented to you and take 

meaningful action to make sure they become reality. You are in a pivotal position. Your endorsement is essential.  

Thank you for your time and consideration. 

 

 

John J. Lipa, Affected or Aggrieved Party 

399 150th Avenue, Unit 117c 

Madeira Beach, FL. 33708 





  



 
Agenda Item: J-3. Agenda Report Page 1 of 13 

 

 

MADEIRA BEACH BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

June 7, 2016 – Agenda Report 

FROM: Luis N. Serna, AICP – Planning and Zoning Consultant 

SUBJECT: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA, REZONING CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS 15026 MADEIRA WAY, 0 GULF BLVD, 0 150th 
AVENUE, 15023 GULF BLVD, 15031 GULF BLVD, 0 MADEIRA WAY, 15000 MADEIRA WAY, 
15006 MADEIRA WAY,15015 MADEIRA WAY, 15040 MADEIRA WAY,15042 MADEIRA 
WAY, 0 150th AVENUE, 200 150th AVENUE, 206 150th AVENUE, 210 150th AVENUE, 212 
150th AVENUE, 352 150th AVENUE, 388 150th AVENUE, 390 150th AVENUE, 410 150th 
AVENUE, 420 150th AVENUE, AVENUE FROM RETAIL COMMERCIAL (C-3) TO PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT (PD) DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR READING BY TITLE ONLY; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE THEREOF. 

 Property Owners: 

 919 Land Trust 
BLIG, LLC, Trustee 
3409 West Fletcher Avenue 
Tampa, FL  33618 

Madeira Commons, Inc. 
c/o Ross Realty 
4401 West Kennedy Blvd., Suite 100 
Tampa, FL  33609 

 Cajun Buildings, LLC 
15334 Harbor Drive 
Madeira Beach, FL  33708 

Arthur W. Broaderick, Larry M. Starnes, 
and Rhonda T. Starnes 
2910 Pelham Road 
St. Petersburg, FL  33710 

 Applicant:  

 

William F. Karns 
Madeira Beach Development Co., LLC 
286 107th Avenue, Suite 300 
Treasure Island, FL  33706 

 

 Property Address: Parcel ID Numbers: 

 

15026 Madeira Way 
0 Gulf Boulevard 
0 150th Avenue 
15023 Madeira Way 
15031 Gulf Boulevard 
0 Madeira Way 
15000 Madeira Way 
15006 Madeira Way 
15015 Madeira Way 

09-31-15-54180-000-0020 
09-31-15-00000-130-1600 
09-31-15-00000-130-1500 
09-31-15-00000-130-1700 
09-31-15-00000-130-1800 
09-31-15-00000-130-1900 
09-31-15-00000-140-1000 
09-31-15-00000-140-0900 
09-31-15-00000-140-0700 



 
Agenda Item: J-3. Agenda Report Page 2 of 13 

 

15040 Madeira Way 
15042 Madeira Way 
0 150th Avenue 
200 150th Avenue 
206 150th Avenue 
210 150th Avenue 
212 150th Avenue 
352 150th Avenue 
388 150th Avenue 
390 150th Avenue 
410 150th Avenue 
420 150th Avenue 

09-31-15-00000-140-0600 
09-31-15-00000-140-0500 
09-31-15-00000-140-0400 
09-31-15-00000-130-0900 
09-31-15-00000-130-1000 
09-31-15-00000-130-1100 
09-31-15-54180-000-0013 
09-31-15-54180-000-0010 
09-31-15-00000-130-1200 
09-31-15-00000-420-0200 
09-31-15-00000-420-0100 
09-31-15-54180-000-0012 

BACKGROUND: Site Area:  6.696 acres 

Current Designation: 

 Land Use Plan – Planned Redevelopment-Mixed Use (PR-MU) 

 Zoning – Retail Commercial (C-3) 

Flood Zone:  AE (areas within 100-year floodplain); Base Flood Elevations of 10’ and 11’ 
above sea level.  

Present Use:  Retail commercial businesses and eating establishments. 

Proposed Use:  The proposal is for a mixed-use project that will include two hotels (430 
rooms), two condominium buildings (90 units), 50,000 square feet of retail/restaurant 
space, and a marina.  The project encompasses the northwest side of 150th Avenue (Tom 
Stuart Causeway) from Gulf Boulevard to the City’s Causeway Park, and includes both sides 
of Madeira Way.  The project will consist of four primary buildings – two condominium 
buildings of six floors over two levels of parking, and two hotels – one with eight floors over 
three levels of parking and one with seven floors over four levels of parking.  The project 
will include retail/restaurant uses at ground level, a marine store, and a marina. 

The project will feature a publicly accessible plaza at the Gulf Boulevard/150th Avenue 
intersection, pedestrian accesses to Boca Ciega Bay, a pedestrian bridge over Gulf 
Boulevard, and pedestrian enhancements along Madeira Way and 150th Avenue to the 
City’s Causeway Park.  These project features are designed to create a pedestrian friendly 
activity center along Madeira Way and 150th Avenue. 

Other traffic and pedestrian enhancements include the following: 

 Adjusting the traffic signal at Madeira Way and 150th Avenue to provide for 
pedestrian movement and converting this intersection to a right-in/right-out 
intersection 

 Extending the westbound left turn lane from 150th Avenue onto 1st Street East. 

 Constructing an eastbound left turn lane into the project near 150th Avenue near the 
Madeira Cove intersection.  

 Extending the westbound left turn lane from 150th Avenue into Madeira Cove. 

 Extending the westbound left turn lane from 150th Avenue into Boca Vista. 



 
Agenda Item: J-3. Agenda Report Page 3 of 13 

 

A complete listing of the proposed development standards and conditions for the project 
are included in the project concept plan, and they are formalized in the project 
development agreement which is being considered by the Board of Commissioners as a 
separate item. 

Planning Commission Recommendation:  The request to rezone the subject property, from 
C-3, Retail Commercial to PD, Planned Development, and the corresponding Concept Plan 
were reviewed at public hearings by the Planning Commission on March 14, 2016 and April 
28, 2016. 

After receiving testimony from the applicant and the public at the March 14th hearing, the 
matter was continued by the Planning Commission to April 28th in order to allow the 
applicant to address questions and issues raised by staff regarding the development 
agreement details and impacts of the project to public facilities.  These questions and issues 
were addressed in a resubmittal received by the City on April 14th.  In addition to addressing 
the issues raised by staff, the concept plan was revised from the previous submittal to show 
angled parking along Madeira Way rather than parallel parking, and a 10-foot front building 
setback for Hotel A from the previous setback of 0 feet. 

Following the March 14th Planning Commission hearing, the applicants also continued to 
coordinate their proposal with nearby property owners, the City, and the Florida 
Department of Transportation to address traffic and access concerns along 150th Avenue 
due primarily to the proposed removal of the light at 150th Avenue and Madeira Way.  Based 
on these discussions, the applicant submitted prior to the April 28th Planning Commission 
hearing revised conditions for off-site improvements.  These conditions are detailed in the 
development agreement which will be considered by the Board of Commissioners as a 
separate agenda item. 

At the April 28th hearing, the Planning Commission voted 5 to 0 to recommend approval of 
the requested rezoning from C-3 to PD based on the revised accompanying Concept Plan, 
and subject to the provisions contained in the Development Agreement.   

Board of Commissioners First Reading:  On May 10, 2016, the Board of Commissioners 
conducted the first reading of Ordinance 2016-01, and voted 4 to 1 to amend the zoning 
designation on the subject property from C-3 (Retail Commercial) to PD (Planned 
Development) consistent with the accompanying Concept Plan, and subject to the specific 
provisions and conditions as set forth in the accompanying Development Agreement. 

BUDGETARY 
IMPACT:  

N/A 

REVIEW CRITERIA: 

 

 

 

 

The proposed PD development is located within the Planned Redevelopment Mixed Use 
Future Land Use designation which is implemented through the Madeira Beach Town Center 
Special Area Plan (SAP).  According to the SAP, all proposed development and 
redevelopment in the SAP should be reviewed using the Planned Development (PD) process 
to ensure that the proposed uses and designs are consistent with the Town Center SAP.   

Land proposed for development under the PD district may contain a mixture of temporary 
lodging, residential, commercial, recreational, and other uses as permitted by the Future 
Land Use Map designation on the site.  The PD rezoning process and proposed density for 
temporary lodging further require the submittal and approval of a concept plan and a 



 
Agenda Item: J-3. Agenda Report Page 4 of 13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

development agreement to ensure compliance with the proposed development standards.  
Future development on the site will be subject to staff level review and will require more 
detailed site plans which will be reviewed for consistency with the PD conceptual plan and 
the development agreement. 

Within the Town Center SAP, the proposed PD zoning district is located within the 
Commercial Core and Causeway Districts.  Development in these sub-districts of the SAP is 
subject to the following design standards: 

 First story commercial activity is required. 

 Inter-parcel access is required for properties north of Madeira Way. 

 Access should be off of a street other than Gulf Boulevard where possible. 

 Properties qualify for shared parking provisions. 

 All buildings shall be a minimum of two stories. 

 Require easement for bayfront walk on Boca Ciega Bay. 

 No parking is required for the triangle of properties bounded by Madeira Way, Gulf 
Boulevard, and 150th Avenue. 

 Require pedestrian easement from 1st Street East to Municipal Drive for the triangle 
of properties in the parking waiver area bounded by Madeira Way, Gulf Boulevard, 
and 150th Avenue. 

 Consider a pedestrian easement across proposed redevelopment of the Carter 
property to provide access between the parking garage and the civic building area. 

 Residential and/or temporary lodging units must be located on an upper floor 

Additional standards for the SAP and the Commercial Core and Causeway Districts 
address building setbacks, outdoor dining and display, parking lot location and size, 
parking lot landscaping, off-street service and loading areas, and architectural 
guidelines. 

 

I. In accordance with Article V, Division 10, Section 110-393 of the Land Development 
Regulations, in their analysis of the rezoning application and the proposed 
development plan, and prior to official action, the Board of Commissioners shall 
consider the recommendation of the Planning Commission/Local Planning Agency and 
ensure the rezoning application is in conformance with the criteria of Section 110-391.  
These criteria and the findings of staff are as follows: 

(1) Consistency with the comprehensive plan.  All zoning district assignments shall be 
consistent with the comprehensive plan, including the future land use map and 
future land use element goals, objectives, and policies.  The zoning district assigned 
shall be consistent with the land use category of the future land use map. 

The subject parcels are located in the Planned Redevelopment Mixed-Use (PR-MU) 
Future Land Use category which is further implemented through the Madeira Beach 
Town Center Special Area Plan (SAP).  One of the stated objectives of the SAP is to 
increase the number of temporary lodging units and enhance the tourist industry for 
Madeira Beach and its local businesses.  The mixture of condominium, hotel, and 



 
Agenda Item: J-3. Agenda Report Page 5 of 13 

 

commercial uses proposed by this planned development are consistent with this 
objective.  The project also proposes, consistent with the Special Area Plan, first story 
commercial development, pedestrian access along all frontages, and pedestrian 
access to Boca Ciega Bay.  

The PR-MU Future Land Use category establishes a maximum density of 15 units per 
acre for residential units and up to 125 units per acre for temporary lodging.  The 
category further permits a maximum Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of 4.0 and a maximum 
Impervious Surface Area Ratio (ISR) of 0.95.   

The total site area of the proposed project is 6.696 acres.  The project includes 430 
hotel units and 90 condominium units.  The project proposes a residential density of 
13.44 units per acre and a temporary lodging density of 64.21 hotel rooms per acre.  
The proposed FAR is 3.0 and the proposed ISR is 0.73.  The proposed density and 
intensity are consistent with the standards of the Comprehensive Plan. 

Based on the proposed density, intensity, mixture of uses, and pedestrian and traffic 
circulation improvements, the proposed Planned Development has been determined 
to be consistent with the PR-MU Future Land Use category and the objectives and 
standards of the Town Center Special Area Plan. 

(2) Land use compatibility.  The assigning of zoning districts shall promote the 
compatibility of adjacent land uses. 

The project proposes mixed use development on parcels that are currently retail.  
However, the site is surrounded by a variety of uses including other commercial 
businesses and multi-family residential developments that are compatible with this 
mixed use project.   

The project concentrates the proposed tourist related uses such as the hotels, retail, 
and restaurants along Gulf Boulevard near the beaches.  Pedestrian enhancements 
in these areas include the public plaza at 150th Avenue and Gulf Boulevard, and an 
elevated pedestrian crossing over Gulf Boulevard.  Residential uses and the marina 
supporting uses are proposed for location along 150th Street, and will include 
pedestrian connections along 150th Avenue and access to Boca Ciega Bay. 

Although the proposed concept plan will permit development that is significantly 
taller than the existing uses on the property (up to 11 floors maximum), the project 
is not directly adjacent to residential developments that are lower in height.  The 
project is directly across Gulf Boulevard from an existing 11-story residential 
development. 

(3) Adequate public facilities.  The assigning of zoning districts shall be consistent with 
the public facilities available to set the types of uses allowed in the proposed zoning 
districts.  The level of service standards shall be considered in assigning zoning 
districts and there shall be reasonable assurance that the demand for services 
allowed in the proposed zoning district can be met. 

The applicants have coordinated the conceptual development plans with Pinellas 
County Engineering, the Florida Department of Transportation, and the Southwest 
Florida Water Management District.  The applicants have submitted a traffic study for 
the development to FDOT and the City demonstrating there will be no change in the 
level of service with the proposed development. The applicants have met with FDOT 



 
Agenda Item: J-3. Agenda Report Page 6 of 13 

 

to discuss the future improvements required by the department and the 
improvements are shown on the conceptual drawings for the development.  Also, the 
applicants have had a pre-application meeting with SWFWMD to determine the on-
site stormwater management facility permitting requirements. Certificates of 
concurrency and outside agency permitting will need to be obtained prior to any 
development taking place on the site. 

(4) Public interest.  Zoning district designations shall not be in conflict with the public 
interest and will promote the public health, safety, and welfare. 

By proposing hotel and other development that will enhance the tourist industry for 
Madeira Beach and its local businesses, the proposed development has been 
determined to be consistent with and will facilitate the type of development that is 
specifically provided for in the Town Center Special Area plan.  The development will 
help provide needed redevelopment and will help establish a sense of place in the 
Town Center area, which is an objective of the Special Area Plan. 

(5) Consistency with the land development regulations.  Zoning district designations 
shall be consistent with the purpose and intent of these land development 
regulations. 

The PD zoning district allows for flexibility and is intended to accommodate 
integrated and well-designed developments in accordance with approved 
development plans. The district is intended to offer flexibility of design and to 
encourage imaginative, functional, high-quality land planning development for those 
uses consistent with the applicable Future Land Use Plan category and which are 
compatible with adjacent and nearby lands and activities.  The applicants have 
submitted a mixed use project that establishes architectural and landscaping 
standards, and coordinated vehicular and pedestrian access improvements. 

The proposal has been reviewed for consistency and processed in accordance with 
the standards and requirements of Division 10, PD, Planned Development, of Article 
V, Chapter 110 of the Land Development Code.  Accordingly, the applicants have 
conducted the required Neighborhood Information Meeting (Section 110-392) and 
have submitted the required plans and documents demonstrating compliance with 
the Land Development Code. 

 

II. The Board of Commissioners shall additionally review the proposed development plan 
for compliance with the provisions of Chapter 110 of the Land Development 
Regulations Article II, Site Plans, and the following general conditions: 

(1) Land uses within the development shall be appropriate in their proposed location, 
in their relationships to each other, and in their relationships with uses and 
activities on adjacent and nearby properties.  

The project is proposed primarily in the Commercial Core, with a small portion 
located in the Causeway District, of the Town Center Special Area Plan.  The 
Commercial Core is the heart of the Town Center.  Accordingly, the Planned 
Development proposes ground level retail along Madeira Way and enhanced 
pedestrian access throughout the project to help establish a pedestrian scale 
downtown activity hub at one of the City’s gateways.  The proposed hotels are 



 
Agenda Item: J-3. Agenda Report Page 7 of 13 

 

located near the 150th Avenue and Gulf Boulevard intersection in close proximity to 
existing and proposed retail uses and the beaches.  The project includes an elevated 
pedestrian crossing over Gulf Boulevard to the beaches which supports the 
pedestrian focus of the project.  

The project concentrates the two taller (8 floors above 3 levels of parking, and 7 
floors above 4 levels of parking) hotel buildings along Madeira Way and Gulf 
Boulevard directly across from existing 12-story condominium developments.  The 
two proposed condominium buildings (6 floors over 2 levels parking) are proposed 
along 150th Avenue, in an area that includes existing condominium projects which 
range in height from 4 to 8 stories.   

The project proposes a mix of complementary land uses and shared amenities that 
are tied together by common architectural and landscaping themes.  The mixed use 
nature of the project in a centrally located area of the City which is served by transit, 
will allow for internal trip capture and a mitigation of some of the traffic that would 
normally be associated with the proposed uses. 

(2) The development shall comply with applicable city plans and planning policies, and 
shall have a beneficial effect both upon the area of the city in which it is proposed 
to be established and upon the city as a whole.  

The subject parcels are located in the Planned Redevelopment Mixed-Use Future 
Land Use category which is further implemented through the Madeira Beach Town 
Center Special Area Plan (SAP).  One of the stated objectives of the SAP is to increase 
the number of temporary lodging units and enhance the tourist industry for Madeira 
Beach and its local businesses.  The proposed mixed use project is expected to 
promote the vitality of the Town Center by providing temporary and permanent 
dwelling units and supporting activities for residents and tourists.  The project will 
further provide for the redevelopment of one of the City’s gateways and will include 
amenities such as a pedestrian plaza at 150th Avenue and Gulf Boulevard; an elevated 
pedestrian crossing over Gulf Boulevard; public access to Boca Ciega Bay; and traffic, 
pedestrian, and landscaping enhancements along all public street frontages.  The 
proposed redevelopment and the associated improvements will help create a sense 
of place in what is commonly considered the downtown area of Madeira Beach. 

In addition, the development is consistent with the following policies of the 
Comprehensive Plan: 

Policy 1.5.5: 

Promote pedestrian-oriented areas within concentrated development and activity 
areas. 

The project proposes within the Commercial Core 12-foot wide pedestrian 
connections along all street frontages as well as public access over Gulf Boulevard 
and access to Boca Ciega Bay.  The project features a pedestrian plaza and ground 
level retail along Madeira Way. 

Policy 1.5.7: 

Minimize existing and potential traffic hazards by coordinating land use and traffic 
circulation decisions. 



 
Agenda Item: J-3. Agenda Report Page 8 of 13 

 

The project proposes the replacement of multiple, closely spaced curb cuts along 
150th Avenue with a single drive from this street.  The project further addresses 
existing traffic circulation issues at Madeira Way and 150th Avenue by limiting traffic 
at this intersection to right-in/right-out only.  The project provides coordinated 
shared access to what is currently 21 separate parcels. 

The accompanying development agreement addresses overall coordination of traffic 
management issues with the existing development pattern. 

Policy 1.9.1: 

Redevelopment shall be encouraged in the following areas: 

 The area of 137th Avenue Circle, east of Gulf Boulevard. 

 The Madeira Way Redevelopment Area, the area formed by Gulf Boulevard, 
153rd Avenue, Madeira Way, and 150th Avenue to the Tom Stuart Causeway 
Bridge. 

The project proposes redevelopment in the Commercial Core along Madeira Way 
which is a highly visible gateway area of the City, consistent with this Policy. 

Policy 1.10.1: 

The city entranceway areas shall reflect the beach community character of the 
community, water-related activities, and include mixed uses. 

The project proposes mixed use development that includes tourist related, marina 
access, and residential uses in the 150th Avenue gateway area of Madeira Beach.  The 
project will provide pedestrian access to Boca Ciega Bay, and to the beaches via a 
pedestrian bridge over Gulf Boulevard. 

(3) Stipulations of approval of a planned development plan may include requirements 
to construct improvements, dedicate needed property and easements or 
contribute money to improvements to public facilities such as roadways, new 
medians, sanitary sewer and water facilities, drainage facilities, street lighting, 
landscaping, signage, parks and recreational facilities, walkways and sidewalks, 
burying of utility lines along abutting rights-of-way or adopted planned streetscape 
improvements.  

The Concept Plan and the development agreement (See Exhibits C and E of the 
agreement) provide phasing details identifying when specific off-site improvements 
will be made and for which portion of the project.  According to the development 
agreement, the identified improvements must be completed prior to issuance of 
Certificates of Occupancy for the respective phase of development.  The identified 
improvements will be designed and funded by the developers.  The developers will 
receive credit toward transportation impact fees for the project to be applied against 
the cost of the identified roadway improvements. 

(4) A minimum of a five-foot sidewalk shall be provided along any street right-of-way 
or on private property by easement dedication if the right-of-way is of insufficient 
width.  

The project proposes a 12-foot wide pedestrian way along the entire street frontage 
on the north side of 150th Avenue.  The project further provides for a pedestrian 



 
Agenda Item: J-3. Agenda Report Page 9 of 13 

 

arcade from Madeira Way to Gulf Boulevard, a pedestrian access to Boca Ciega Bay, 
and an elevated pedestrian crossing over Gulf Boulevard.  

(5) The total land area within the development and the area devoted to each functional 
portion of the development shall be adequate to serve its intended purpose.  

The total project acreage of the proposed development is 6.696 acres.  The project 
proposes development that is below the maximum allowed densities, impervious 
surface area, and floor area permitted by the site’s PR-MU Future Land Use 
designation. 

The proposed site plan identifies that on-site parking meeting the standards of Article 
VII, Off-Street Parking and Loading, of Chapter 110 of the Land Development Code 
will be provided to serve each phase of the project. 

(6) Streets, utilities, drainage facilities, recreation areas, building heights, sizes and 
yards, and vehicular parking and loading facilities shall be appropriate for the 
particular use involved, and shall equal or exceed the level of design and 
construction quality required of similar land development elsewhere in the city.  

The proposed Concept Plan exceeds minimum standards for development under 
conventional zoning in that it provides for shared and coordinated pedestrian and 
vehicular access improvements, common architectural and landscaping themes, and 
enhanced public amenities that serve the larger area. 

Additionally, by proposing a mixed use project that covers multiple parcels, the City 
is better able to coordinate and address the impacts of the project on public facilities.  
This level of coordination would not be possible without rezoning utilizing the 
Planned Development district and its requirement for an accompanying concept plan. 

The proposed Concept Plan has been reviewed and found in compliance with the 
City’s Land Development Regulations in regard to density and intensity, parking, 
building setbacks, landscaping, and impacts to public facilities.  Future development 
will require site plan review in accordance with Article II, Site Plans, of Chapter 110 
of the Land Development Code.  This development will be further reviewed for 
consistency with the Concept Plan and compliance with the Land Development 
Regulations for every phase of the project.  These reviews will ensure that 
development will equal or exceed the level of design and quality required of similar 
land development elsewhere in the City. 

(7) Visual character and community amenities shall be equal or better in quality than 
that required by standard zoning districts for similar development.  

The Concept Plan provides for common architectural and landscaping standards 
throughout the project that generally exceed the minimum standards required under 
conventional zoning districts.  In addition the project provides amenities such as a 
public plaza located at 150th Avenue and Gulf Boulevard, public access to Boca Ciega 
Bay, a 12-foot wide pedestrian access along the entire frontage on 150th Avenue that 
will be landscaped and include street level retail uses, and a pedestrian access way 
over Gulf Boulevard to the beaches. 

(8) Open space shall be adequate for the type of development and the population 
density of the proposed development.  



 
Agenda Item: J-3. Agenda Report Page 10 of 13 

 

Open space, as expressed through Floor Area Ratio (FAR) and Impervious Surface 
Area Ratio (ISR) exceed the minimum standards of the PR-MU Future Land Use 
category.  The maximum FAR permitted in this category is 4.0, while the development 
proposes a maximum FAR of 3.0.  The maximum ISR permitted by the category is 0.95, 
while the development proposes a maximum ISR of 0.73.  In addition, provision for 
access to the marina and the proposed public plaza as well as the 12-foot wide 
pedestrian ways provide significant open space in this area. 

(9) Outdoor storage of merchandise or materials shall be prohibited. 

No outdoor storage of merchandise or materials is proposed by this development. 

(10) Areas proposed for common ownership shall be subject to a reliable and continuing 
maintenance guarantee.  

The development will require the establishment of an entity or entities that will be 
responsible for maintenance of the project that will be under common ownership.  
Additionally, ownership and maintenance of common areas is addressed in the 
project development agreement. 

(11) All existing nonconforming signs or sign structures shall be removed. 

The project proposes a complete redevelopment of the site.  All nonconforming signs 
or sign structures will be removed as a part of this redevelopment. 

(12) In the case of developments, which are to be constructed in several phases, the 
proposed phases shall be shown on the overall development plan. The proposed 
construction phases shall individually comply with the standards set forth in this 
section in order that, if for any reason construction ceases prior to completion of 
the entire planned development, the resulting partially complete project will 
adequately serve its purchasers and occupants and will not cause a general public 
problem.  

The PD Concept Plan and development agreement identify minimum development 
standards and conceptual phasing for the project.  The proposed phasing plan 
demonstrate that each phase will comply with the required development standards 
in regard to off-site parking and access, and would be capable of standing on its own 
apart from the remainder of the project. 

 

III. Lastly, the Board of Commissioners must review the plans, drawings, and schematics 
for the proposed development plan in detail.  Such drawings shall define the physical 
character of the project, including all building and architectural treatments. The Board 
of Commissioners' review will ensure conformance with the following design 
standards:  

(1) Treatment of the sides and rear of all buildings within the planned development 
shall be compatible in amenity and appearance to treatment given to street 
frontages of the same buildings.  

This project includes multiple street and water frontages.  The architectural 
renderings that are a part of the Concept Plan show that the development has been 
designed with consideration of the high visibility of the site along all frontages. 



 
Agenda Item: J-3. Agenda Report Page 11 of 13 

 

(2) All buildings in the layout and design shall be an integral part of the development 
and have convenient pedestrian access to and from adjacent uses. 

The project proposes a 12-foot wide pedestrian way along Madeira Way, 150th 
Avenue, and Gulf Boulevard including enhanced crosswalks and shading through 
landscaping.  Additionally, pedestrian access is proposed from Madeira Way to a 
public plaza at 150th Avenue via a pedestrian arcade, from 150th Avenue to Boca 
Ciega Bay, and over Gulf Boulevard via a pedestrian bridge.   

(3) Individual buildings shall be related to each other in design, mass, materials, 
placement and connections to provide a visually and physically integrated 
development.  

The project proposes the taller hotel and commercial buildings along Madeira Way 
closer to the taller condominium buildings along Gulf Boulevard in the area that is 
commonly recognized as the downtown area of Madeira Beach.  The relatively 
smaller condominium buildings and open areas are located along 150th Avenue, 
helping preserve the water views from this gateway road.   

The Concept Plan proposes common architectural themes, and elements such as 
landscaping, parking, and pedestrian ways to help integrate the individual buildings 
and uses within the project. 

(4) Landscape treatments for walkways, plazas, arcades, roads, and service and 
parking areas shall be designed as an integral part of a coordinated landscape 
design for the entire project area. The landscape plan submittal shall include the 
anticipated appearance of the trees and landscape materials after five years of 
growth to visually provide their size and proportion relative to the proposed 
buildings, view corridors, curb appeal, pedestrian corridors, etc.  

The Concept Plans submitted by the applicant show the project at build-out with 
mature landscaping.  These plans demonstrate how the proposed landscaping has 
been designed in consideration with the specific site and uses.  These plans show 
how the proposed landscaping will enhance and unite the various buildings and 
uses in the project and will providing shading along the pedestrian corridors and 
other common areas.   

(5) The project's scale, and the size, color and proportion of building elements, 
components and materials are appropriate and harmonious with surrounding 
neighborhood structures.  

The project proposes the two taller (8 floors above 3 levels of parking, and 7 floors 
above 4 levels of parking) hotel buildings along Madeira Way and Gulf Boulevard 
directly across from existing 12-story condominium developments.  The two 
proposed condominium buildings (6 floors over 2 levels parking) are proposed 
along 150th Avenue, in an area that includes existing condominium projects which 
range in height from 4 to 8 stories.  The color palette and finish of the proposed 
buildings, as shown on the submitted architectural renderings, is similar to the 
existing structures in the vicinity of the proposed project. 

(6) All mechanical equipment, electrical equipment, roof top equipment, and refuse 
areas associated with this project shall be screened.  



 
Agenda Item: J-3. Agenda Report Page 12 of 13 

 

The Concept Plan proposes landscaping and other screening of mechanical, 
electrical, and roof top equipment, and refuse areas.  A majority of this equipment 
will be located on building roof tops as shown on the architectural renderings. 

(7) Appropriate building materials are being used. The use or employment of any of 
the following is generally considered inappropriate and will not be permitted 
unless appropriately integrated into a project meeting all other criteria, including 
aesthetic criteria, of this article:  

a.    Corrugated metal siding; 

b. Prefabricated metal buildings or their components; 

c. Primary colors or black; 

d. False windows or doors; and 

e. Unmodified formula and trademark buildings and structures. 

The Concept Plan does not propose to utilize any of the above listed materials or 
design features.  The architectural renderings identify buildings that will have a 
finished appearance that will be similar to and in harmony with the existing 
residential buildings in this area. 

(8) The project's location and design adequately protects or enhances unique site 
characteristics such as those related to scenic views, natural vistas, waterways 
or similar features.  

The project includes preservation of views and public access to Boca Ciega Bay from 
150th Avenue.  Views of the Gulf of Mexico are maintained from Madeira Way.  The 
project further provides for the establishment of a centrally located public plaza at 
150th Avenue and Gulf Boulevard.   

(9) The project appropriately integrates landscape elements into the site plan and 
building design. Plantings shall be of a size to give the appearance that the 
project is settled into a mature landscape. The landscape submittal shall include 
a description of each tree and plant proposed on site by type and details relative 
to maximum height/size and color at maturity.  

The Concept Plan includes a conceptual landscaping design that unifies the project 
under a common design theme.  The proposed landscaping is intended to provide 
shaded and inviting areas for pedestrians and to enhance the overall appearance 
of the buildings and parking areas.  Because of the location of this site at the City’s 
gateway, the landscaping will also serve to enhance the overall appearance of the 
community.  Landscaping construction details, including a specific description of 
each tree and plant will be required during the site plan review process and will be 
reviewed for consistency with the approved Concept Plan. 

(10) Signage and other building appurtenances are integral components of the 
building, appropriately scaled, and consistent in character with the building's 
overall design.  

Overall signage and other building appurtenances, as generally identified on the 
Concept Plan, are integral components of the building, appropriately scaled, and 
consistent with the buildings’ overall design.  No rooftop or other inappropriately 



 
Agenda Item: J-3. Agenda Report Page 13 of 13 

 

scaled signage that would dominate the visual appearance of the buildings are 
proposed with this development. 

(11) The project incorporates defensible space concepts of crime prevention through 
environmental design. A lighting plan shall be provided to review safety 
considerations for pedestrians and motorists, as well as, environmental impacts. 

The project features public spaces along rights-of-way and pedestrian scaled 
development that will promote visibility and safety.  Final site plans for this project 
will be further reviewed for consistency with this requirement. 

STAFF 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 2016-01, to amend the zoning designation on the 
subject property from C-3 (Retail Commercial) to PD (Planned Development) consistent 
with the accompanying Concept Plan, and subject to the specific provisions and conditions 
as set forth in the accompanying Development Agreement. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: Ordinance 2016-01 .................................................................................................1 

  Ordinance 2016-01 ........................................................................... 1 

  Legal Advertisements ....................................................................... 4 

 Relevant Maps .......................................................................................................33 

  Zoning Map ....................................................................................... 33 

  Future Land Use Map ........................................................................ 34 

 Code of Ordinances – Zoning Regulations ...............................................................35 

  C-3, Retail Commercial ..................................................................... 35 

  PD, Planned Development ................................................................ 40 

 Special Area Town Center ......................................................................................48 

  Town Center Character District Map ................................................ 48 

  Commercial Causeway District Standards ........................................ 49 

 Concept & Site Plans  .............................................................................................51 

 Correspondence (Since May 10, 2016) ....................................................................123 

    

 



Ordinance 2016-01 Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE 2016-01 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA, REZONING CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS 15026 MADEIRA WAY, 0 GULF BLVD, 0 150th 
AVENUE, 15023 GULF BLVD, 15031 GULF BLVD, 0 MADEIRA WAY, 15000 MADEIRA 
WAY, 15006 MADEIRA WAY,15015 MADEIRA WAY, 15040 MADEIRA WAY,15042 
MADEIRA WAY, 0 150th AVENUE, 200 150th AVENUE, 206 150th AVENUE, 210 150th 
AVENUE, 212 150th AVENUE, 352 150th AVENUE, 388 150th AVENUE, 390 150th 
AVENUE, 410 150th AVENUE, 420 150th AVENUE, AVENUE FROM RETAIL COMMERCIAL 
(C-3) TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (PD) DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR READING BY TITLE 
ONLY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE THEREOF. 

WHEREAS, the applicant has requested that said property be rezoned to become a Planned 
Development (PD) District; and 

WHEREAS, The City of Madeira Beach Comprehensive Plan has been amended to establish the 
need and basis to further the tourism industry and provide additional flexibility for other types of 
land use; and the PD District is intended to accommodate integrated and well-designed 
developments in accordance with approved development plans; and 

WHEREAS, the PD District is also intended to offer flexibility of design and to encourage 
imaginative, functional, high-quality land planning development for mixed uses and multiple buildings, 
which is compatible with adjacent and nearby lands and activities; and 

WHEREAS, the land proposed for development under the PD District may contain a mixture of 
residential, commercial, recreational and other uses, as permitted by the land use designation on the 
site; and 

WHEREAS, the zoning designations of both C-3 and PD are compatible to the Planned 
Redevelopment-Mixed Use Future Land Use Category; and 

WHEREAS, the property owners of the subject property identified in the legal description and 
further identified as Parcel I.D.’s # 09-31-15-54180-000-0020, 09-31-15-00000-130-1600, 09-31-15-
00000-130-1500, 09-31-15-00000-130-1700, 09-31-15-00000-130-1800, 09-31-15-00000-130-1900, 09-
31-15-00000-140-1000, 09-31-15-00000-140-0900, 09-31-15-00000-140-0700, 09-31-15-00000-140-
0600, 09-31-15-00000-140-0500, 09-31-15-00000-140-0400, 09-31-15-00000-130-0900, 09-31-15-
00000-130-1000, 09-31-15-00000-130-1100, 09-31-15-54180-000-0013, 09-31-15-54180-000-0010, 09-
31-15-00000-130-1200, 09-31-15-00000-420-0200, 09-31-15-00000-420-0100, 09-31-15-54180-000-
0012, and  have applied for a change in zoning from C-3, Retail Commercial, to PD, Planned 
Development; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission serving as the Local Planning Agency of the City of 
Madeira Beach has duly considered the type of zoning on said real property, and has recommended 
that the zoning request be granted; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners has reviewed this rezoning request and finds that a 
rezoning of the subject property from C-3, Retail Commercial, to PD, Planned Development through an 
approved Development Agreement to be in the best interest of the City. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF 
MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1



Ordinance 2016-01  Page 2 of 3 

Section 1.  That the subject property described herein be rezoned from C-3, to PD, Planned 
Development, and that any subsequent proposed development be regulated through 
the Development Agreement process. 

Section 2.  That the provisions of this Ordinance shall be deemed severable. If any part of the 
Ordinance is deemed unconstitutional, it shall not affect the constitutionality of other 
portions of the Ordinance. 

Section 3.    That all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance be hereby repealed insofar as the same affect this Ordinance. 

Section 4.  That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon adoption in the manner 
provided by law, and concurrent with an approved Development Agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]  

2



Ordinance 2016-01  Page 3 of 3 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA, THIS 

________ DAY OF _________________, 2016. 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 
_____________________________________ 
Thomas J. Trask, CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Travis Palladeno, MAYOR 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________ 
Aimee Servedio, CITY CLERK 
 
 

FIRST LEGAL ADVERTISEMENT PUBLISHED: 02/26/2016 

REAL PROPERTY OWNER OF RE-DESIGNATED PROPERTY NOTIFIED BY MAIL: 02/23/2016 

NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 03/09/2016 

PLANNING COMMISSION FIRST READING, QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING: 03/14/2016 

PLANNING COMMISSION SECOND READING, QUASI-JUDICIAL RECOMMENDATION: 04/11/2016 

SECOND LEGAL ADVERTISEMENT PUBLISHED: 04/14/2016 

PLANNING COMMISSION THIRD READING, QUASI-JUDICIAL RECOMMENDATION: 04/28/2016 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FIRST READING, QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING: 05/10/2016 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS SECOND READING AND ADOPTION: 06/14/2016 
 

 
 

 

3



LEGAL NOTICE LEGAL NOTICE

CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA
LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY

AND BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY (THE PLANNING COMMISSION) of the City of Madeira Beach will
hold a PUBLIC HEARING of the Local Planning Agency to consider the Development Agreement between the City of Madeira Beach
and Madeira Beach Development Co., L.L.C. and Ordinance 2016-01, in Madeira Beach City Hall, 300 Municipal Drive, Madeira
Beach, Florida on Monday, March 14, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, the Board of Commissioners of the City of Madeira Beach will conduct the first reading of Ordinance
2016-01, at Madeira Beach City Hall, 300 Municipal Drive, Madeira Beach, Florida on Tuesday April 12, 2016 at 6:00 p.m.
Upon the passage of Ordinance 2016-01, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, the Board of Commissioners of the City of Madeira Beach will
consider approval of the Development Agreement between the City of Madeira Beach and Madeira Beach Development Co.,
L.L.C. and will conduct the second and final reading ofOrdinance 2016-01, at Madeira Beach City Hall, 300 Municipal Drive, Madeira
Beach, Florida on Tuesday, May 10th, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. Notice of such hearing will be provided as prescribed by Florida Statutory
requirements and the Madeira Beach Code of Ordinances.
The title of the Development Agreement and said Ordinance are as follows:
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT between the City of Madeira Beach and Madeira Beach Development Co., L.L.C., for the property
located at 15026 Madeira Way, 0 Gulf Blvd, 0 150th Avenue, 15023 Gulf Blvd, 15031 Gulf Blvd, 0 Madeira Way, 15000 Madeira Way,
15006 Madeira Way,15015 Madeira Way, 15040 Madeira Way,15042 Madeira Way, 0 150th Avenue, 200 150th Avenue, 206 150th
Avenue, 210 150th Avenue, 212 150th Avenue, 352 150th Avenue, 388 150th Avenue, 390 150th Avenue, 410 150th Avenue and 420
150th Avenue, Madeira Beach, Florida 33708.

ORDINANCE 2016-01
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA, REZONING CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY
GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS 15026 MADEIRA WAY, 0 GULF BLVD, 0 150th AVENUE, 15023 GULF BLVD,
15031 GULF BLVD, 0 MADEIRA WAY, 15000 MADEIRA WAY, 15006 MADEIRA WAY,15015 MADEIRA WAY,
15040 MADEIRA WAY,15042 MADEIRA WAY, 0 150th AVENUE, 200 150th AVENUE, 206 150th AVENUE,
210 150th AVENUE, 212 150th AVENUE, 352 150th AVENUE, 388 150th AVENUE, 390 150th AVENUE, 410
150th AVENUE, 420 150th AVENUE, FROM RETAIL COMMERCIAL (C-3) TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
(PD) DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR READING BY TITLE ONLY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE
THEREOF.

DESCRIPTION:
Parcel 09-31-15-54180-000-0012 MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER W 75FT OF E 224.99FT OF TRACT ‘A’
09-31-15-00000-420-0200 PT GOVT LOT 2 DESC AS FROM N LINE OF GOVT LOT 2 & C/L OF GULF BLVD TH N88DE 121 FT (S) FOR POB TH CONT
NE 137FT TH S02E 150FT (S) TO RD R/W TH NW’LY ALG CURVE TO RT 220FT (S) TH NE’LY 31.6FT TO POB
09-31-15-00000-420-0100 PT GOVT LOT 2 DESC AS FROM N LINE OF GOVT LOT 2 & C/L OF GULF BLVD TH N88DE 260 FT (S) FOR POB TH CONT
NE 196.56FT TO RD R/W TH SW’LY 242FT (S) TH N02DW 150FT (S) TO POB
09-31-15-00000-130-1000 (LORO INC LEASE) DESC AS BEG AT S LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & SW COR OF TR A MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL
CENTER TH S88DW 1.54FT TH S41DW 31.6FT TO N R/W OF GULF BLVD TH N52DW 71FT(S) TH N22DE 52FT(S) TH S48DE 81.67FT TH S 20.3FT TO
POB
09-31-15-00000-130-0900 (TRIANGLE LAND CO LEASE) DESC AS FROM NW COR OF TR A OF MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER RUN
S88DW 40FT FOR POB TH CONT S88DW 84.1FT TH SW’LY 36.32FT TO N R/W OF GULF BLVD TH S48DE 90.6FT) TH N22DE 100FT (S) TO POB
09-31-15-00000-130-1600 (VIKING MARINE INC LEASE) BEG NE COR OF TRACT B, MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER TH W 280.6FT TH N
8.85FT TH E’LY & NE’LY 531 FT(S) TH S44DW 140FT TH S46DE 17FT(S) TH S44DW 60 FT TH N46DW 28FT TH W 69.62FT TH N 25FT TO POB
09-31-15-00000-130-1200 PT OF GOVT LOT 1 & PT OF TRACT A OFMADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER (CAVIN DINER LEASE 1396/293) DESC
AS BEG AT INTERSEC OF S LN OF GOVT LOT 1 & N LN OF 150TH AVE THW 49FT(S) TH N 120FT TO S R/W OF MADEIRA WAY TH E 112.6FT TH SE’LY
ALG CUR TO RT 53.69FT TH S46DE 5FT TH SW’LY 100.07FT TO POB
09-31-15-54180-000-0010 MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER (WM B HARVARD LEASE 1451/614 ) W 135FT OF E 149.99FT OF TRACT A
09-31-15-54180-000-0020 MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER (A & B MARINE INC LEASE) E 192FT OF TRACT B
09-31-15-54180-000-0013 MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER (SERVICE HARDWARE CO LEASE) W 75.01FT OF TRACT A
09-31-15-130-1100 (MITCHELL LEASE) DESC AS BEG NW COR OF TRACT A MADEIRA BEACH COMMERICAL CENTER TH S88DW 40FT TH S21DW
47.87FT TH S48DE 81.61FT TH N 99.70FT TO POB
09-31-15-00000-140-0400 PART OF SE 1/4 OF SEC DESC FR SE COR TR B MADEIRA BCH COMMERCIAL CTR RUN E 76.46 FT TH N63DE 21.34FT
TH ALG W’LY LN OF 150TH AVE NE’LY 914FT(S) FOR POB TH N46DW 132FT(S) TH N40DE 94FT(S) TH S46DE 136.86FT TH S40DW 94FT(S) TO POB
09-31-15-00000-130-1500 (STANDARD OIL LEASE) DESC AS BEG SE COR OF TR B MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER TH E N88DE 76.4FT
TH N63DE 21.34FT TH N44DE 94.5FT TH N46DW 138FT(S) TH S88DW 69.62FT TH S 175 FT TO POB
09-31-15-00000-130-1700 (RIZZUTO & WELCH LEASE) DESC AS FROM S LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH S88DW 55.93FT TH N44DE
381.34FT FOR POB TH N44DE 60FT TH N46DW 110FT TH S44DW 60FT TH S46DE 1FT TO POB
09-31-15-00000-130-1800 (RIZZUTO & WELCH LEASE) DESC AS FROM S LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH S88DW 55.93FT TH N44DE
441.34FT FOR POB TH N44DE 40FT TH N46DW 127FT (S) TH S44DW 40FT TH S46DE 127FT(S) TO POB
09-31-15-00000-130-1900 (O’DONALD HOLLAND LEASE) DESC AS FROM S LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH S88DW 55.93FT TH
N44DE 481.34FT FOR POB TH NE’LY ALG R/W 100FT TH N46DW 135FT(S) TH S44DW 100FT TH S46DE 127FT(S) TO POB

09-31-15-00000-140-1000 (M. A. ADAMS LEASE) DESC FROM S LINE OF
GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH S88DW 55.93FT TH N44DE 581.34FT
FOR POB TH N44DE 250FT TH N46DW 140FT TH SW’LY 275FT ALG
SEAWALL TH S46DE 152FT(S) TO POB
09-31-15-00000-140-0900 FROM S LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH
AVE TH S88DW 55FT(S) TH N44DE 831.34FT FOR POB TH N44DE 44FT(S) TH
N46DW 140FT TH S44DW 44FT(S) TH S46DE 140 FT TO POB
09-31-15-00000-140-0700 (ALVIN C. TAYLOR LEASE) DESC AS FROM S
LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH S88DW 55.96FT TH N44DE
875.24FT FOR POB TH N44DE 96.1FT TH N46DW 140 FT(S) TH S44DW 96FT
TH S46DE 140FT(S) TO POB
09-31-15-00000-140-0600 (DR KIRK LEASE) DESC AS FROM S LINE OF
GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH N88DW 55.93FT TH N44DE 971.34FT
FOR POB TH N46DW 140FT(S) TH NE’LY 110.74FT TH S46DE 121FT(S) TH
S44DW 100FT(S) TH S46DE 3FT TH S44DW 10FT(S) TO POB
09-31-15-00000-140-0500 (PENINSULAR CABLE LEASE) FROM S LINE OF
GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH N44DE 1082.01FT TH N46DW 58FT
FOR POB TH N46DW 132 FT(S) TH N44DE 115FT(S) TH S46DE 132FT(S) TH
S44DW 115FT(S) TO POB
FLOOD STATEMENT:

THIS PROPERTY LIES IN FLOOD ZONE AE (EL 11), ACCORDING TO THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FLOOD INSURANCE
RATE MAP 12103C0191G, EFFECTIVE DATE SEPTEMBER 3, 2003.

Copies of the proposed Development Agreement and Ordinance are available for inspection in the
office of the City Clerk between the hours of 8 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday.
All persons are hereby advised that any presentation they make to the Planning Commission or the Board of Commissioners will be
encouraged to be as concise as possible and the Planning Commission and/or Board of Commissioners may limit the time of each
individual to permit maximum participation by the public at large. Any person who decides to appeal any decision of the Planning
Commission and/or the Board of Commissioners with respect to any matter considered at these hearings will need to ensure a
record of proceedings, and for such purpose, may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record
includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based-per Florida Statute 286.0105
Aimee Servedio, City Clerk
City of Madeira Beach

2/26/16
261775-1

4



LEGAL NOTICE LEGAL NOTICE

CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA
LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY AND BOARD OF

COMMISSIONERS
NOTICE OF ZONING CHANGE AND CONSIDERATION
OF DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH AND MADEIRA BEACH

DEVELOPMENT CO., L.L.P.
NOTICE IS HEREBYGIVEN that the LOCALPLANNINGAGENCY (THE PLANNINGCOMMISSION) of the City of Madeira Beach
will hold a PUBLIC HEARING of the Local PlanningAgency to consider theDevelopmentAgreement between the City of Madeira
Beach and Madeira Beach Development Co., L.L.C. and Ordinance 2016-01, in Madeira Beach City Hall, 300 Municipal Drive,
Madeira Beach, Florida on Thursday, April 28, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, the Board of Commissioners of the City of Madeira Beach will conduct the first reading and
proposes to adopt Ordinance 2016-01, at Madeira Beach City Hall, 300 Municipal Drive, Madeira Beach, Florida on Tuesday May
10, 2016 at 6:00 p.m.
Upon the passage of Ordinance 2016-01, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, the Board of Commissioners of the City of Madeira
Beach will consider approval of the Development Agreement between the City of Madeira Beach and Madeira Beach
Development Co., L.L.C. and will conduct the second and final reading and proposes to adopt Ordinance 2016-01, at Madeira
Beach City Hall, 300 Municipal Drive, Madeira Beach, Florida on Tuesday, June 14th, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. Notice of such hearing will
be provided as prescribed by Florida Statutory requirements and the Madeira Beach Code of Ordinances.
The title of the Development Agreement and said Ordinance are as follows:
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT between the City of Madeira Beach and Madeira Beach Development Co., L.L.C., for the
property located at 15026 Madeira Way, 0 Gulf Blvd, 0 150th Avenue, 15023 Gulf Blvd, 15031 Gulf Blvd, 0 Madeira Way, 15000
Madeira Way, 15006 Madeira Way,15015 Madeira Way, 15040 Madeira Way,15042 Madeira Way, 0 150th Avenue, 200 150th
Avenue, 206 150th Avenue, 210 150th Avenue, 212 150th Avenue, 352 150th Avenue, 388 150th Avenue, 390 150th Avenue, 410
150th Avenue and 420 150th Avenue, Madeira Beach, Florida 33708.

ORDINANCE 2016-01
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA, REZONING CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY
GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS 15026 MADEIRA WAY, 0 GULF BLVD, 0 150th AVENUE, 15023 GULF BLVD,
15031 GULF BLVD, 0 MADEIRA WAY, 15000 MADEIRA WAY, 15006 MADEIRA WAY,15015 MADEIRA WAY,
15040 MADEIRA WAY,15042 MADEIRA WAY, 0 150th AVENUE, 200 150th AVENUE, 206 150th AVENUE,
210 150th AVENUE, 212 150th AVENUE, 352 150th AVENUE, 388 150th AVENUE, 390 150th AVENUE, 410
150th AVENUE, 420 150th AVENUE, FROM RETAIL COMMERCIAL (C-3) TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
(PD) DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR READING BY TITLE ONLY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE
THEREOF.

DESCRIPTION:
Parcel 09-31-15-54180-000-0012 MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER W 75FT OF E 224.99FT OF TRACT ʻAʼ
09-31-15-00000-420-0200 PT GOVT LOT 2 DESC AS FROM N LINE OF GOVT LOT 2 & C/L OF GULF BLVD TH N88DE 121 FT (S) FOR POB TH
CONT NE 137FT TH S02E 150FT (S) TO RD R/W TH NWʼLY ALG CURVE TO RT 220FT (S) TH NEʼLY 31.6FT TO POB
09-31-15-00000-420-0100 PT GOVT LOT 2 DESC AS FROM N LINE OF GOVT LOT 2 & C/L OF GULF BLVD TH N88DE 260 FT (S) FOR POB TH
CONT NE 196.56FT TO RD R/W TH SWʼLY 242FT (S) TH N02DW 150FT (S) TO POB
09-31-15-00000-130-1000 (LORO INC LEASE) DESC AS BEG AT S LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & SW COR OF TR A MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL
CENTER TH S88DW 1.54FT TH S41DW 31.6FT TO N R/W OF GULF BLVD TH N52DW 71FT(S) TH N22DE 52FT(S) TH S48DE 81.67FT TH S
20.3FT TO POB
09-31-15-00000-130-0900 (TRIANGLE LAND CO LEASE) DESC AS FROM NW COR OF TR AOF MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER RUN
S88DW 40FT FOR POB TH CONT S88DW 84.1FT TH SWʼLY 36.32FT TO N R/W OF GULF BLVD TH S48DE 90.6FT) TH N22DE 100FT (S) TO POB
09-31-15-00000-130-1600 (VIKINGMARINE INC LEASE) BEG NE COROF TRACT B, MADEIRABEACH COMMERCIALCENTER THW 280.6FT TH
N 8.85FT TH EʼLY & NEʼLY 531 FT(S) TH S44DW 140FT TH S46DE 17FT(S) TH S44DW 60 FT TH N46DW 28FT TH W 69.62FT TH N 25FT TO POB
09-31-15-00000-130-1200 PT OF GOVT LOT 1 & PT OF TRACTAOF MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER (CAVIN DINER LEASE 1396/293)
DESC AS BEG AT INTERSEC OF S LN OF GOVT LOT 1 & N LN OF 150TH AVE TH W 49FT(S) TH N 120FT TO S R/W OF MADEIRA WAY TH E
112.6FT TH SEʼLY ALG CUR TO RT 53.69FT TH S46DE 5FT TH SWʼLY 100.07FT TO POB
09-31-15-54180-000-0010 MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER (WM B HARVARD LEASE 1451/614 ) W 135FT OF E 149.99FT OF TRACT A
09-31-15-54180-000-0020 MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER (A & B MARINE INC LEASE) E 192FT OF TRACT B
09-31-15-54180-000-0013 MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER (SERVICE HARDWARE CO LEASE) W 75.01FT OF TRACT A
09-31-15-130-1100 (MITCHELL LEASE) DESC AS BEG NW COR OF TRACT A MADEIRA BEACH COMMERICAL CENTER TH S88DW 40FT TH
S21DW 47.87FT TH S48DE 81.61FT TH N 99.70FT TO POB
09-31-15-00000-140-0400 PART OF SE 1/4 OF SEC DESC FR SE COR TR B MADEIRA BCH COMMERCIAL CTR RUN E 76.46 FT TH N63DE
21.34FT TH ALG WʼLY LN OF 150TH AVE NEʼLY 914FT(S) FOR POB TH N46DW 132FT(S) TH N40DE 94FT(S) TH S46DE 136.86FT TH S40DW
94FT(S) TO POB
09-31-15-00000-130-1500 (STANDARD OIL LEASE) DESC AS BEG SE COR OF TR B MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER TH E N88DE
76.4FT TH N63DE 21.34FT TH N44DE 94.5FT TH N46DW 138FT(S) TH S88DW 69.62FT TH S 175 FT TO POB
09-31-15-00000-130-1700 (RIZZUTO & WELCH LEASE) DESC AS FROM S LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH S88DW 55.93FT TH
N44DE 381.34FT FOR POB TH N44DE 60FT TH N46DW 110FT TH S44DW 60FT TH S46DE 1FT TO POB
09-31-15-00000-130-1800 (RIZZUTO & WELCH LEASE) DESC AS FROM S LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH S88DW 55.93FT TH
N44DE 441.34FT FOR POB TH N44DE 40FT TH N46DW 127FT (S) TH S44DW 40FT TH S46DE 127FT(S) TO POB
09-31-15-00000-130-1900 (OʼDONALD HOLLAND LEASE) DESC AS FROM S LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH S88DW 55.93FT TH
N44DE 481.34FT FOR POB TH NEʼLY ALG R/W 100FT TH N46DW 135FT(S) TH S44DW 100FT TH S46DE 127FT(S) TO POB
09-31-15-00000-140-1000 (M. A. ADAMS LEASE) DESC FROM S LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH S88DW 55.93FT TH N44DE
581.34FT FOR POB TH N44DE 250FT TH N46DW 140FT TH SWʼLY 275FT ALG SEAWALL TH S46DE 152FT(S) TO POB
09-31-15-00000-140-0900 FROM S LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH S88DW 55FT(S) TH N44DE 831.34FT FOR POB TH N44DE
44FT(S) TH N46DW 140FT TH S44DW 44FT(S) TH S46DE 140 FT TO POB

09-31-15-00000-140-0700 (ALVIN C. TAYLOR LEASE) DESC AS FROM S LINE
OF GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH S88DW 55.96FT TH N44DE 875.24FT
FOR POB TH N44DE 96.1FT TH N46DW 140 FT(S) TH S44DW 96FT TH S46DE
140FT(S) TO POB
09-31-15-00000-140-0600 (DR KIRK LEASE) DESC AS FROM S LINE OF GOVT
LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH N88DW 55.93FT TH N44DE 971.34FT FOR
POB TH N46DW 140FT(S) TH NEʼLY 110.74FT TH S46DE 121FT(S) TH S44DW
100FT(S) TH S46DE 3FT TH S44DW 10FT(S) TO POB
09-31-15-00000-140-0500 (PENINSULAR CABLE LEASE) FROM S LINE OF GOVT
LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH N44DE 1082.01FT TH N46DW 58FT FOR POB TH
N46DW 132 FT(S) TH N44DE 115FT(S) TH S46DE 132FT(S) TH S44DW 115FT(S)
TO POB

FLOOD STATEMENT:
THIS PROPERTY LIES IN FLOOD ZONE AE (EL 11), ACCORDING TO THE
FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FLOOD INSURANCE RATE
MAP 12103C0191G, EFFECTIVE DATE SEPTEMBER 3, 2003.

Copies of the proposed Development Agreement and Ordinance
are available for inspection in the office of the City Clerk between

the hours of 8 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday.
All persons are hereby advised that any presentation they make to the Planning Commission or the Board of Commissioners
will be encouraged to be as concise as possible and the Planning Commission and/or Board of Commissioners may limit the
time of each individual to permit maximum participation by the public at large. Any person who decides to appeal any decision
of the Planning Commission and/or the Board of Commissioners with respect to any matter considered at these hearings will
need to ensure a record of proceedings, and for such purpose, may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is
made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based-per Florida Statute 286.0105
Cheryl McGrady, Executive Assistant to the City Manager
City of Madeira Beach
4/14/2016 284003-1

5



LEGAL NOTICE LEGAL NOTICE

NOTICE OF ZONING CHANGE AND CONSIDERATION
OF DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH AND MADEIRA BEACH DEVELOPMENT CO., L.L.C.
CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, the Board of Commissioners of the City of Madeira Beach will conduct a public hearing for the second and final reading of, and proposes to adopt Ordinance 2016-01; and will
conduct a public hearing to consider theDevelopment Agreement between the City of Madeira Beach andMadeira Beach Development Co., L.L.C., at Madeira Beach City Hall, 300 Municipal Drive, Madeira
Beach, Florida on Tuesday, June 14, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. Notice of such hearings will be provided as prescribed by Florida Statutory requirements and the Madeira Beach Code of Ordinances.

ORDINANCE 2016-01
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA, REZONING CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS 15026 MADEIRA WAY, 0 GULF BLVD, 0 150th AVENUE, 15023
GULF BLVD, 15031 GULF BLVD, 0 MADEIRAWAY, 15000 MADEIRAWAY, 15006 MADEIRAWAY,15015 MADEIRAWAY, 15040 MADEIRAWAY,15042 MADEIRAWAY, 0 150th AVENUE, 200 150th AVENUE,
206 150th AVENUE, 210 150th AVENUE, 212 150th AVENUE, 352 150th AVENUE, 388 150th AVENUE, 390 150th AVENUE, 410 150th AVENUE, 420 150th AVENUE, AVENUE FROM RETAIL COMMERCIAL
(C-3) TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (PD) DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR READING BY TITLE ONLY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE THEREOF.

The proposedDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT between theCity of Madeira Beach andMadeira Beach Development Co., L.L.C., for property located at 15026 Madeira Way, 0 Gulf Blvd, 0 150th Avenue, 15023
Gulf Blvd, 15031 Gulf Blvd, 0 Madeira Way, 15000 Madeira Way, 15006 Madeira Way, 15015 Madeira Way, 15040 Madeira Way, 15042 Madeira Way, 0 150th Avenue, 200 150th Avenue, 206 150th Avenue, 210
150th Avenue, 212 150th Avenue, 352 150th Avenue, 388 150th Avenue, 390 150th Avenue, 410 150th Avenue and 420 150th Avenue, Madeira Beach, Florida 33708, provides for the following:

The Board of Commissioners, in approving a Development Agreement, is authorized, without limitation, to grant relief from any provision of the Land Development Regulations that is otherwise authorized to be
waived, varied or granted by the Land Development Regulations.
The properties that are subject to the Rezoning and Development Agreement are:
Parcel 09-31-15-54180-000-0012 MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER W 75FT OF E 224.99FT OF TRACT ‘A’
09-31-15-00000-420-0200 PT GOVT LOT 2 DESC AS FROM N LINE OF GOVT LOT 2 & C/L OF GULF BLVD TH N88DE 121 FT (S) FOR POB TH CONT NE 137FT TH S02E 150FT (S) TO RD R/W TH NW’LY ALG
CURVE TO RT 220FT (S) TH NE’LY 31.6FT TO POB
09-31-15-00000-420-0100 PT GOVT LOT 2 DESC AS FROM N LINE OF GOVT LOT 2 & C/L OF GULF BLVD TH N88DE 260 FT (S) FOR POB TH CONT NE 196.56FT TO RD R/W TH SW’LY 242FT (S) TH N02DW
150FT (S) TO POB
09-31-15-00000-130-1000 (LORO INC LEASE) DESC AS BEG AT S LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & SW COR OF TR A MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER TH S88DW 1.54FT TH S41DW 31.6FT TO N R/W OF
GULF BLVD TH N52DW 71FT(S) TH N22DE 52FT(S) TH S48DE 81.67FT TH S 20.3FT TO POB
09-31-15-00000-130-0900 (TRIANGLE LAND CO LEASE) DESC AS FROM NW COR OF TR A OF MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER RUN S88DW 40FT FOR POB TH CONT S88DW 84.1FT TH SW’LY
36.32FT TO N R/W OF GULF BLVD TH S48DE 90.6FT) TH N22DE 100FT (S) TO POB
09-31-15-00000-130-1600 (VIKING MARINE INC LEASE) BEG NE COR OF TRACT B, MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER TH W 280.6FT TH N 8.85FT TH E’LY & NE’LY 531 FT(S) TH S44DW 140FT TH
S46DE 17FT(S) TH S44DW 60 FT TH N46DW 28FT TH W 69.62FT TH N 25FT TO POB
09-31-15-00000-130-1200 PT OF GOVT LOT 1 & PT OF TRACT A OF MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER (CAVIN DINER LEASE 1396/293) DESC AS BEG AT INTERSEC OF S LN OF GOVT LOT 1 & N LN
OF 150TH AVE TH W 49FT(S) TH N 120FT TO S R/W OF MADEIRA WAY TH E 112.6FT TH SE’LY ALG CUR TO RT 53.69FT TH S46DE 5FT TH SW’LY 100.07FT TO POB
09-31-15-54180-000-0010 MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER (WM B HARVARD LEASE 1451/614 ) W 135FT OF E 149.99FT OF TRACT A

09-31-15-54180-000-0020 MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER (A & B MARINE INC LEASE) E 192FT OF TRACT B
09-31-15-54180-000-0013 MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER (SERVICE HARDWARE CO LEASE) W 75.01FT OF TRACT A
09-31-15-130-1100 (MITCHELL LEASE) DESC AS BEG NW COR OF TRACT A MADEIRA BEACH COMMERICAL CENTER TH S88DW 40FT TH S21DW 47.87FT TH S48DE 81.61FT TH N 99.70FT TO POB

09-31-15-00000-140-0400 PART OF SE 1/4 OF SEC DESC FR SE COR TR B MADEIRA BCH COMMERCIAL CTR RUN E 76.46 FT TH N63DE 21.34FT TH ALGW’LY LN OF 150TH AVE NE’LY 914FT(S) FOR POB
TH N46DW 132FT(S) TH N40DE 94FT(S) TH S46DE 136.86FT TH S40DW 94FT(S) TO POB

09-31-15-00000-130-1500 (STANDARD OIL LEASE) DESC AS BEG SE COR OF TR B MADEIRA BEACH COMMERCIAL CENTER TH E N88DE 76.4FT TH N63DE 21.34FT TH N44DE 94.5FT TH N46DW 138FT(S)
TH S88DW 69.62FT TH S 175 FT TO POB

09-31-15-00000-130-1700 (RIZZUTO & WELCH LEASE) DESC AS FROM S LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH S88DW 55.93FT TH N44DE 381.34FT FOR POB TH N44DE 60FT TH N46DW 110FT
TH S44DW 60FT TH S46DE 1FT TO POB

09-31-15-00000-130-1800 (RIZZUTO & WELCH LEASE) DESC AS FROM S LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH S88DW 55.93FT TH N44DE 441.34FT FOR POB TH N44DE 40FT TH N46DW 127FT
(S) TH S44DW 40FT TH S46DE 127FT(S) TO POB

09-31-15-00000-130-1900 (O’DONALD HOLLAND LEASE) DESC AS FROM S LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH S88DW 55.93FT TH N44DE 481.34FT FOR POB TH NE’LY ALG R/W 100FT TH
N46DW 135FT(S) TH S44DW 100FT TH S46DE 127FT(S) TO POB

09-31-15-00000-140-1000 (M. A. ADAMS LEASE) DESC FROM S LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE
TH S88DW 55.93FT TH N44DE 581.34FT FOR POB TH N44DE 250FT TH N46DW 140FT TH SW’LY 275FT ALG
SEAWALL TH S46DE 152FT(S) TO POB
09-31-15-00000-140-0900 FROM S LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH S88DW 55FT(S) TH N44DE
831.34FT FOR POB TH N44DE 44FT(S) TH N46DW 140FT TH S44DW 44FT(S) TH S46DE 140 FT TO POB

09-31-15-00000-140-0700 (ALVIN C. TAYLOR LEASE) DESC AS FROM S LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH
AVE TH S88DW 55.96FT TH N44DE 875.24FT FOR POB TH N44DE 96.1FT TH N46DW 140 FT(S) TH S44DW 96FT
TH S46DE 140FT(S) TO POB

09-31-15-00000-140-0600 (DR KIRK LEASE) DESC AS FROM S LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH
N88DW 55.93FT TH N44DE 971.34FT FOR POB TH N46DW 140FT(S) TH NE’LY 110.74FT TH S46DE 121FT(S) TH
S44DW 100FT(S) TH S46DE 3FT TH S44DW 10FT(S) TO POB

09-31-15-00000-140-0500 (PENINSULAR CABLE LEASE) FROM S LINE OF GOVT LOT 1 & C/L OF 150TH AVE TH
N44DE 1082.01FT TH N46DW 58FT FOR POB TH N46DW 132 FT(S) TH N44DE 115FT(S) TH S46DE 132FT(S) TH
S44DW 115FT(S) TO POB

FLOOD STATEMENT:
THIS PROPERTY LIES IN FLOOD ZONE AE (EL 11), ACCORDING TO THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
AGENCY, FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP 12103C0191G, EFFECTIVE DATE SEPTEMBER 3, 2003.

Copies of the proposed Rezoning Ordinance 2016-01 and the Development Agreement are available for
inspection in the office of the City Clerk between the hours of 8 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday.

All persons are hereby advised that any presentation they make to the Board of Commissioners will be encouraged to
be as concise as possible and the Board of Commissioners may limit the time of each individual to permit maximum
participation by the public at large. Any person who decides to appeal any decision of the Board of Commissioners
with respect to any matter considered at this hearing will need to ensure a record of proceedings, and for such

purpose, may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based-per Florida Statute 286.0105.
Cheryl McGrady, Executive Assistant to the City Manager
City of Madeira Beach

5/27/2016
303712-1

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



AVE

RE
DI

NG
TO

N

STREET

EAST

150
TH

144
TH

AVENUE

142
ND

(BLACKHAWK

141
ST

AMERICAN

137
TH

AV
EN

UE AVENUE

WEST

SALEM

SOUTH

STREET

PRUITT

COVE

3RD

BA
Y

E

CIEGA

131
ST

RO
AD

DR
IVE

BOCA

ALLE
Y

DRIVE

EAST

158
TH

157
TH

DR

153
RD

WAY

AVENUE

AVENUE

GULF

AVENUE

LEGION

PARSLEY

EAST

DRIVE)

DRIVE

WAY

E

AVENUE

DRIVE

BA
Y

BOCA

RO
AD

DRIVE

CIRCLE

AVE
NUE

VILLAGE

(WILLIAMS
AVE)

KIN
GFIS

H

AVE)

6TH

EAST

1ST
155

TH

DR
IVE

(15
1S

T

149
TH

BLVD

AVENUE

WELCH

CAUSEWAY
144

TH

BLVD

CAUSEWAY

136
TH

DRIVE

AV
ENUE

AVENUE

BAY

CIEGA

B

BOCA

BAYSHORE

CAUSEWAY)

DR
IVE

PELICAN

129
TH

AVENUE

E

BLVD

DRIVE

PLACE

JO
HN

'S
PA

SS

PA
SS

AVENUE

BLVD

EAST

DR

ST

ST

DR
IVE

AV
E

REDINGTON

RE
DIN

GT
ON

DRIVE

DR
IVE

SECOND

MADEIRA

150
TH

148
TH

CAUSEWAY

AVENUE BAYSHORE

RD

AVENUE

ST

137TH

PLYM
OUTH

CIRCLE

WAY

ST

SUNSET

DRIVE

DRIVE

STREET

GULF

NO
RM

AN
DY

POINT

AV
EN

UE

CIEGA

LANE

(699

129
TH

DR
IVE

CIEGA

(12
8TH

(1ST

DRIVE

126TH

CIRCLE

AV
EN

UE 2ND

RED
INGTO

N

EAST

EAST

AVENUE

MU
NI

CI
PA

L

147
TH

AVENUE

WEL
CH

AVENUE

AVENUE

AVENUE

WELCH

GULF

ST

(TO
M

MARGUERITE

135
TH

AVENUE

STUART

POINT

1ST AVE

PRUITT

AV
E

NO
RM

AN
DY

AVE

131
ST

BLVD

LIL
LIA

N

EAST)

DRIVE)

FIS
HERMAN'S

E)

AV
EN

UE

AVENUE

ST

GULF

156
TH

AV
E)

AV
E

EAST

STREET

N

PALM

BAYSHORE

DRIVE

ST

145
TH

ROAD

MIRAMAR

A

137TH

LYNN

(BAYSHORE

DRIVE

VIRGINIA

134
TH

AVE

AV
EN

UE

PARSLEY

2ND

132
ND

AVENUE

DRIVE

E

CR
YS

TA
L

LANE

END

JO
HN

'S

AV
EN

UE

4TH

5TH

ST

126TH

RED
INGTO

N

AV
E

AVENUE

STREET
DRIVE

MADEIRA

143
RD

NORTH

AVE

RD)

STREET

VIVIAN

DRIVE
WES

T

DRIVE

PARSLEY

ST

DRIVE

BOCA

AV
E

EAST

135
TH

ISLAND

DRIVE

133
RD BLVD

DR

LANE
STREET

132
ND

GULF

AVENUE
131ST

STREET

LIL
LIA

N

(GULF

DR
IVE

BOARDWALK

(ISLAND

AVE

AVENUE

LN

3RD

FIRST

154
TH

BLVD

AVENUE

HARBOR

GULF

FIRST

146
TH

AVENUE

145
TH

AVENUE

PALM

WAY

BAY

140TH

CIRCLE

PARSLEY

MAR
LY

N

DR
IVE

SUNSET

CO
VE

PO
INT

131
ST

AVE

ISLAND

130
TH

GULF
4TH

AV
EN

UE

AVE

BLVD

LIL
LIA

N

129TH

DR
IVE

FLAMINGO

AVENUE

AVENUE

125TH

N1 inch = 400 feet

City of Madeira Beach 
Zoning Map

City Limits
Madeira Beach Zoning
Zoning

C-1
C-2
C-3
C-4
P-SP
PD
R-1
R-2
R-3

Prepared By:

33



AVE

RE
DI

NG
TO

N

STREET

EAST

150
TH

144
TH

AVENUE

142
ND

(BLACKHAWK

141
ST

AMERICAN

137
TH

AV
EN

UE AVENUE

WEST

SALEM

SOUTH
STREET

PRUITT

COVE

3RD

BA
Y

E

CIEGA

131
ST

RO
AD

DR
IVE

BOCA

ALLE
Y

DRIVE

EAST

158
TH

157
TH

DR

153
RD

WAY

AVENUE

AVENUE

GULF

AVENUE

LEGION

PARSLEY

EAST

DRIVE)

DRIVE

WAY

E

AVENUE

DRIVE

BA
Y

BOCA

RO
AD

DRIVE

CIRCLE

AVE
NUE

VILLAGE

(WILLIAMS
AVE)

KIN
GFIS

H

AVE)

6TH

EAST

1ST

155
TH

DR
IVE

(15
1S

T

149
TH

BLVD

AVENUE

WELCH

CAUSEWAY
144

TH

BLVD

CAUSEWAY

136
TH

DRIVE

AV
ENUE

AVENUE

BAY

CIEGA

B

BOCA

BAYSHORE

DR
IVE

PELICAN

129
TH

AVENUE

E

BLVD

DRIVE

PLACE

JO
HN

'S
PA

SS

PA
SS

AVENUE

ST

ST

DR
IVE

AV
E

REDINGTON

RE
DIN

GT
ON

DRIVE

DR
IVE

SECOND

MADEIRA

150
TH

148
TH

CAUSEWAY

AVENUE BAYSHORE

RD

AVENUE

ST

137TH

PLYM
OUTH

CIRCLE

WAY

ST

SUNSET

DRIVE

DRIVE

STREET

GULF

NO
RM

AN
DY

POINT

AV
EN

UE

CIEGA

LANE

(699

129
TH

DR
IVE

CIEGA

(12
8TH

(1ST

DRIVE

126TH

CIRCLE 3RD

CAPRI

AVE

RED
INGTO

N

EAST

EAST

AVENUE

MU
NI

CI
PA

L

147
TH

AVENUE

WEL
CH

AVENUE

AVENUE

AVENUE

WELCH

GULF
ST

(TO
M

MARGUERITE

135
TH

AVENUE

STUART

POINT

1ST AVE

PRUITT

AV
E

NO
RM

AN
DY

AVE

131
ST

BLVD

LIL
LIA

N

EAST)

DRIVE)

FIS
HERMAN'S

E)

AV
EN

UE

AVENUE

ST

GULF

156
TH

AV
E)

AV
E

EAST

STREET

N

PALM

BAYSHORE

DRIVE

ST

145
TH

ROAD

MIRAMAR
A

137TH

LYNN

(BAYSHORE

DRIVE

VIRGINIA

134
TH

AVE

AV
EN

UE

PARSLEY

2ND

132
ND

AVENUE

DRIVE

E

CR
YS

TA
L

LANE

END

JO
HN

'S

AV
EN

UE

4TH

5TH

ST

126TH

AV
E

AVENUE

STREET

DRIVE

MADEIRA

143
RD

NORTH

AVE

RD)

STREET

VIVIAN

DRIVE

WES
T

DRIVE

PARSLEY

ST

DRIVE

BOCA

AV
E

EAST

135
TH

ISLAND

DRIVE

133
RD BLVD

DR

LANE
STREET

132
ND

GULF

AVENUE
131ST

STREET

LIL
LIA

N

(GULF

DR
IVE

BOARDWALK

(ISLAND

AVE

AVENUE

LN

7TH

3RD

FIRST

154
TH

BLVD

AVENUE

HARBOR

GULF

FIRST

146
TH

AVENUE

145
TH

AVENUE

PALM

WAY

BAY

140TH

CIRCLE

PARSLEY

MAR
LY

N

DR
IVE

SUNSET

CO
VE

PO
INT

131
ST

AVE

ISLAND

130
TH

GULF
4TH

AV
EN

UE

AVE

BLVD

LIL
LIA

N
129TH

DR
IVE

FLAMINGO

AVENUE

AVENUE

125TH

N1 inch = 400 feet

City of Madeira Beach 
Countywide Future Land Use Map

City Limits
Countywide Future Land Use
Residential

Residential Urban
Residential Low Medium
Residential Medium
Residential High

Mixed Use
Residential/Office/Retail
Resort Facilities Medium

Commercial
Commercial General

Public / Semi-Public
Preservation
Recreation/Open Space
Institutional
Transportation/Utility

Planned Redevelopment
Planned Redevelopment Mixed-Use

Special Designations
Water
Right-of-Way

Prepared By:

34



DIVISION 7. - C-3, RETAIL COMMERCIAL  

 

Sec. 110-316. - Definition; purpose and intent.  

The C-3, retail commercial district provides service to both permanent and transient residents where a 

full range of urban services and a high degree of accessibility is required. The C-3, retail commercial district 

correlates with the commercial general (CG) category and the ROR residential office retail category of the 

Countywide Plan. 

(Code 1983, § 20-404; Ord. No. 1138, § 7, 12-9-08) 

Cross reference— Definitions generally, § 1-2. 

 

Sec. 110-317. - Permitted uses.  

The permitted uses in the C-3, retail commercial district are as follows: 

(1)   Retail and personal service uses. 

(2)   Business office and financial service uses. 

(3)   Multifamily dwellings. 

(4)   Tourist dwelling units. 

(5)   Restaurants. 

(6)   Adult entertainment establishments (article VI, division 13 of this chapter). 

(Code 1983, § 20-404) 

 

Sec. 110-318. - Accessory uses.  

The accessory uses in the C-3, retail commercial district are as follows: 

(1)   Off-street parking and loading/unloading. 

(2)   Nonresidential signs. 

(3)   Essential services. 

(4)   Other accessory uses customarily permitted. 

(5)  Boat slips associated with a permitted business use, not for rental or commercial marine activities. 

(Code 1983, § 20-404) 

 

Sec. 110-319. - Special exception uses. Modified  

Upon application for a special exception to the special magistrate and favorable action thereon, the 

following uses may be permitted in the C-3, retail commercial district: 

(1)   Service stations. 

35



(2)   Commercial recreation and entertainment facilities provided that such facilities shall not be 

permissible when the underlying future land use category is R/O/R. 

(3)   Churches, synagogues or other houses of worship. 

(4)   Public service facilities. 

(5)   Drive-in or drive-through retail personal service, business and financial services. 

(6)   Private fraternal, social and recreational clubs. 

(7)   Outdoor storage areas, provided that the outdoor storage use is an accessory, is limited to areas 

in the CG land use category, and does not exceed 20 percent of the area of the building which is 

the principal use on the site. 

(8)   Single-family or duplex. 

(9)   Private schools. 

(10)  Exhibition of reptiles by permit. 

(11)  Medical marijuana dispensaries. 

(Code 1983, § 20-404; Ord. No. 1138, § 7, 12-9-08; Ord. No. 2015-03, § 1, 2-24-15) 

 

Sec. 110-320. - Minimum building site area requirements.  

The minimum building site area requirements in the C-3, retail commercial district are as follows: 

(1)   Lot size: 

a.   For all uses except multifamily/tourist dwelling units: 4,000 square feet.  

b.   Duplex and triplex units: 3,000 square feet per dwelling unit. 

c.   Multi-family dwelling units and above: 2,420 square feet per dwelling unit. 

d.   Public service facilities: Shall not exceed a maximum area of five acres. Like uses or contiguous 

like uses in excess of this threshold shall require the parcel to be amended to the P-SP zoning 

district and the appropriate land use category.  

(2)   Lot width: 

a.   All permitted uses except multifamily/tourist dwelling units: 40 feet. 

b.   Multifamily/tourist dwelling units: 60 feet.  

(3)   Lot depth: All permitted uses: 80 feet. 

(4)   Within the CG land use category, the density shall be a maximum of 15 residential dwelling units 

or 60 temporary lodging units per acre. A combination of both residential dwelling units and 

temporary lodging units may be permissible provided that the provisions of subsections 110-

326(e) and (g) are met. 

(5)   Within the ROR land use category, the density shall be a maximum of 18 dwelling units or 45 

temporary lodging units per acre. A combination of both residential dwelling units and temporary 

lodging units may be permissible provided that the provisions of subsections 110-326(e) and (g) 

are met. 

(Code 1983, § 20-404; Ord. No. 1043, § 2, 6-14-05; Ord. No. 1138, § 7, 12-9-08) 

36



Sec. 110-321. - Setback requirements.  

The following minimum setbacks shall apply in the C-3, retail commercial district: 

(1)  Front yard: 25 feet, measured from right-of-way to structure. 

(2)  Rear yard: ten feet, except waterfront lots which will have a rear setback of 18 feet. 

(3)  Side yard: 

a.   All permitted uses except multifamily/tourist dwelling units will have a side setback of ten 

feet. 

b.   Multifamily/tourist dwelling units: 

1.   For proposed uses located on properties between 60 and 80 feet in width, the minimum 

side yard setback shall be ten feet. 

2.   For lots greater than 80 feet in width, the minimum side yard setback is as follows: 

3.   A total of 33 percent of the lot width shall be reserved for side yard setbacks. In no event 

shall one side be less than the following: 

i.   Lots less than 120 feet: ten feet. 

ii.   Lots less than 240 feet: 15 feet. 

iii.   Lots 240 feet or greater: 20 feet. 

(Code 1983, § 20-404) 

 

Sec. 110-322. - Maximum building height.  

(a)   No structure in the C-3, retail commercial district shall exceed 30 feet in height or two stories, 

whichever is more restrictive, unless otherwise provided in the land development regulations. 

(b)   Multifamily/tourist dwelling units in the C-3, retail commercial district shall not exceed 40 feet in 

height or three stories, whichever is more restrictive. 

(Code 1983, § 20-404) 

 

Sec. 110-323. - Maximum lot coverage.  

The maximum lot coverage in the C-3, retail commercial district is as follows: 

(1)   Residential use: Floor area ratio (FAR) 0.80. The maximum area of a lot or parcel to be covered by 

structures shall be 40 percent. 

(2)   Temporary lodging units: Floor area ratio (FAR) as set forth in the following table, provided that 

the requirements of subsections 110-326(e) and (g) are met: 

Land Use Category:      FAR: 

Commercial general 1.2     1.2 

Residential/office/retail 1.0      1.0 

37



(3)   Commercial general and public service facilities: Floor area ratio (FAR) 0.55; 

Residential/office/retail: Floor area ratio (FAR) 0.40. 

(Code 1983, § 20-404; Ord. No. 1138, § 7, 12-9-08) 

 

Sec. 110-324. - Impervious surface ratio (ISR).  

(a)   The impervious surface ratio (ISR) in the C-3, retail commercial district for all uses, other than 

temporary lodging units, is 0.70. 

(b)   The impervious surface ratio (ISR) for temporary lodging units is 0.85. 

(Code 1983, § 20-404; Ord. No. 1138, § 7, 12-9-08) 

 

Sec. 110-325. - Buffering requirements.  

(a)   Parking lots/garages for tourist dwellings and nonresidential uses in the C-3, retail commercial 

district shall be designed to minimize their impacts to any adjacent residential uses as established 

in the land development regulations. 

(b)   During the development process, existing curb cuts in the C-3, retail commercial district shall be 

reoriented, if necessary, to minimize the negative impact on adjacent properties. 

(c)   All development within the C-3, retail commercial district in this category will meet or exceed the 

buffering/landscape requirements as outlined in chapter 106, article II. 

(Code 1983, § 20-404) 

 

Sec. 110-326. - Special requirements.  

(a)   In the C-3, retail commercial district residential dwelling units are permitted on the second floor 

above first-floor commercial or office units within this district. 

(b)   No structure in the C-3, retail commercial district may be wider than 150 feet parallel to the front 

yard right-of-way. If two structures are proposed on the same lot or parcel, the buildings shall be 

separated. A minimum of a ten-foot separation between structures or equal to 50 percent of the 

height of the tallest building on the same parcel, whichever is more restrictive. 

(c)   When a proposed use in the C-3, retail commercial district abuts a residential use an additional 

five-foot setback is required for such yard. This additional setback will be utilized to provide 

additional landscaped screening. 

(d)   The special requirement of subsection (c) of this section shall be exempt when this additional five-

foot setback utilized for the purpose of providing additional landscape screening, becomes 

ineffective due to the installation of a permanent solid masonry or poured concrete wall, with a 

minimum height of five feet and a maximum height of six feet, along the property line on lots 

38



greater than 80 feet in width. For the purpose of this exception, a permanent solid masonry or 

poured concrete wall shall mean a wall constructed as to be free of any openings whatsoever 

which would allow a view through the permanent solid masonry or poured concrete wall of an 

adjacent, abutting residential property use. This exception is contingent upon strict compliance 

with the above referenced requirements for the permanent solid masonry or poured concrete 

wall being maintained at all times. Failure to comply will negate the exception and require full 

compliance with the special requirements. 

(e)   Mixed uses in a single development shall not exceed, in combination, the respective number of 

units per acre and floor area ratio permitted, when allocated in their respective proportion to the 

gross land area of the property. 

(f)   Institutional, other than public educational facilities shall not exceed a maximum area of five 

acres. Transportation and/or utility uses shall not exceed a maximum area of three acres. 

(g)   Higher densities for temporary lodging shall be allowable only when a development agreement is 

adopted pursuant to the requirements of Section 4.2.7.6. of the Countywide Plan Rules. 

(Code 1983, § 20-404; Ord. No. 1138, § 7, 12-9-08) 

 

Secs. 110-327—110-345. - Reserved. 

39



DIVISION 10. - PD, PLANNED DEVELOPMENT  

 

Sec. 110-386. - Purpose of planned development (PD) district.  

The PD district is intended to accommodate integrated and well-designed developments in accordance 

with approved development plans. The district is intended to offer flexibility of design and to encourage 

imaginative, functional, high-quality land planning development for those uses consistent with the 

applicable future land use plan category and which are compatible with adjacent and nearby lands and 

activities. 

In particular the PD district is intended, and shall be required, to be used in conjunction with any resort 

facilities high plan category; and for any project in the Town Center Special Area Plan that proposes to 

utilize the additive density/intensity provided for in the commercial core and the enumerated portions of 

the causeway sub-districts. 

(Ord. No. 1040, § 1, 4-26-05; Ord. No. 2014-08, § 4, 11-12-14) 

 

Sec. 110-387. - Uses permitted.  

No specific list of uses permitted is established for the PD district. Land proposed for development under 

the PD district may contain a mixture of temporary lodging, residential, commercial, and recreational and 

other uses, as permitted by the future land use map designation on the site. 

(Ord. No. 1040, § 1, 4-26-05; Ord. No. 2014-08, § 4, 11-12-14) 

 

Sec. 110-388. - Application for PD zoning.  

Applicants seeking to rezone lands to the PD district shall submit, simultaneous with the application for 

rezoning, the site development plan that accompanies and is the basis for the rezoning application. The 

applicant shall apply for a rezoning to the property and pay the application fee for a zoning change and 

pay the fee associated with the accompanying site development plan review process. The site 

development plan shall include all items required under the provisions of article II, site plans and further 

address all information required by this division. 

(Ord. No. 1040, § 1, 4-26-05; Ord. No. 1050, § 12, 8-9-05; Ord. No. 2014-08, § 4, 11-12-14) 

 

Sec. 110-389. - Procedure for approval of PD zoning.  

The city shall review the application and required exhibits submitted pursuant to this division and shall 

determine that the documents are adequate as to form and informational content. The city manager or 

his/her designee shall then review the submittal with the appropriate city departments for their 

comments. 

40



 

Subsequent to the review comments and discussion of the submittal, and of such modifications as the 

developer may make to it, the city manager or his/her designee shall prepare the recommendation and 

present it and the applicant's application to the local planning agency at a public hearing, which has been 

posted at least 15 days prior to the public hearing. For further details regarding the procedure for rezoning 

property, see chapter 2. 

(Ord. No. 1040, § 1, 4-26-05; Ord. No. 1050, § 12, 8-9-05) 

 

Sec. 110-390. - Reimbursement of expenses.  

The applicant shall provide for reimbursement of all expenses incurred by the city, deemed necessary by 

the city manager or his/her designee, to review and process a planned development (PD) district. 

Expenses may include, but are not limited to any technical, engineering, planning, landscaping, surveying, 

legal or architectural services, and advertising. 

Within 30 days of the date of receipt of any invoice for such services, the applicant shall reimburse the 

city for such costs. Failure by the applicant to make such reimbursement when due shall delay the 

recording of the approved development order, until paid. 

(Ord. No. 1040, § 1, 4-26-05; Ord. No. 1072, § 6, 3-28-06) 

 

Sec. 110-391. - Review by local planning agency.  

The local planning agency shall review the rezoning application to ensure that the following zoning 

standards are met and shall recommend denial of the application if the following standards are not met. 

The following criteria shall be used to make such assignments and to make changes in assignments, 

whether initiated by the city or by a property owner. 

(1)   Consistency with the comprehensive plan. All zoning district assignments shall be 

consistent with the comprehensive plan, including the future land use map and future 

land use element goals, objectives and policies. The zoning district assigned shall be 

consistent with the land use category of the future land use map. 

(2)   Land use compatibility. The assigning of zoning districts shall promote the compatibility 

of adjacent land uses. 

(3)   Adequate public facilities. The assigning of zoning districts shall be consistent with the 

public facilities available to set the types of uses allowed in the proposed zoning district. 

The level of service standards shall be considered in assigning zoning districts and there 

shall be reasonable assurance that the demand for services allowed in the proposed 

zoning district can be met. 

(4)   Public interest. Zoning district designations shall not be in conflict with the public interest 

and will promote the public health, safety and welfare. 

41



(5)   Consistency with land development regulations. Zoning district designations shall be 

consistent with the purpose and intent of these land development regulations. 

(Ord. No. 1040, § 1, 4-26-05; Ord. No. 1050, § 12, 8-9-05) 

Editor's note— Ord. No. 1050, § 12, adopted August 9, 2005, changed the title of § 110-391 from "Review 

by planning commission" to "Review by local planning agency." 

 

Sec. 110-392. - Neighborhood information meeting.  

Prior to consideration of the rezoning application and the proposed development plan by the board of 

commissioners, the applicant shall hold a neighborhood information meeting with property owners within 

200 feet of the proposed development. The meeting must be held at a location and time convenient to 

the surrounding property owners to maximize attendance, subject to the following requirements: 

(1)   Notification. Two weeks prior to the meeting date, the applicant shall mail notices of the 

meeting date, time and place for all property owners inside a radius of 200 feet from the 

boundary of the proposed development, to the board of commissioners and shall post 

the property. The applicant shall inform the city manager or his designee of the proposed 

meeting date and time prior to sending out the notices. The city manager or his designee 

may require a change of time and/or date due to schedule conflicts or in order to 

accommodate advertising requirements for the upcoming board of commissioners’ 

consideration. Documentation of the mailed notice shall be provided to the city manager 

or his/her designee for verification. The city manager or his/her designee may require 

additional properties be issued a notice, if deemed appropriate. 

(2)   Applicant's presentation. At the meeting, the applicant shall explain the proposed use of 

the subject property and make a copy of the preliminary site plan available for review by 

attendees. The applicant may also discuss the project's development objectives, design 

philosophy and proposed time schedule for completion. 

(3)   Question and answer period. Upon completion of the presentation, time shall be reserved 

for a question and answer period. Questions should be limited to the proposal as 

presented, not to the question of whether the site should be developed or redeveloped. 

The applicant shall identify how potential conflicts will be mitigated. 

(4)   Record. The applicant shall provide to the city both a written and video record of the 

neighborhood information meeting, including any representations made by the applicant 

to the attendees which shall become a requirement for the project. 

Failure to conduct a neighborhood meeting when directed by the staff shall be cause for denial of an 

application for development or redevelopment. 

(Ord. No. 1040, § 1, 4-26-05) 

 

Sec. 110-393. - Review by board of commissioners.  

42



In their analysis of the rezoning application and the proposed development plan submitted pursuant to 

this division, and prior to official action the board of commissioners shall consider the recommendation 

of the local planning agency and ensure the rezoning application is in conformance with the criteria listed 

in section 110-390. 

The board of commissioners shall review the proposed development plan for compliance with the 

provisions of article II, site plans and the following general conditions: 

(1)   Land uses within the development shall be appropriate in their proposed location, in their 

relationships to each other, and in their relationships with uses and activities on adjacent 

and nearby properties. 

(2)   The development shall comply with applicable city plans and planning policies, and shall 

have a beneficial effect both upon the area of the city in which it is proposed to be 

established and upon the city as a whole. 

(3)   Stipulations of approval of a planned development plan may include requirements to 

construct improvements, dedicate needed property and easements or contribute money 

to improvements to public facilities such as roadways, new medians, sanitary sewer and 

water facilities, drainage facilities, street lighting, landscaping, signage, parks and 

recreational facilities, walkways and sidewalks, burying of utility lines along abutting 

rights-of-way or adopted planned streetscape improvements. 

(4)   A minimum of a five-foot sidewalk shall be provided along any street right-of-way or on 

private property by easement dedication if the right-of-way is of insufficient width. 

(5)   The total land area within the development and the area devoted to each functional 

portion of the development shall be adequate to serve its intended purpose. 

(6)  Streets, utilities, drainage facilities, recreation areas, building heights, sizes and yards, and 

vehicular parking and loading facilities shall be appropriate for the particular use involved, 

and shall equal or exceed the level of design and construction quality required of similar 

land development elsewhere in the city. 

(7)  Visual character and community amenities shall be equal or better in quality than that 

required by standard zoning districts for similar development. 

(8)   Open space shall be adequate for the type of development and the population density of 

the proposed development. 

(9)   Outdoor storage of merchandise or materials shall be prohibited. 

(10)   Areas proposed for common ownership shall be subject to a reliable and continuing 

maintenance guarantee. 

(11)   All existing nonconforming signs or sign structures shall be removed. 

(12)   In the case of developments, which are to be constructed in several phases, the proposed 

phases shall be shown on the overall development plan. The proposed construction 

phases shall individually comply with the standards set forth in this section in order that, 

43



if for any reason construction ceases prior to completion of the entire planned 

development, the resulting partially complete project will adequately serve its purchasers 

and occupants and will not cause a general public problem. 

Lastly, the board of commissioners must review the plans, drawings, and schematics for the proposed 

development plan in detail. Such drawings shall define the physical character of the project, including all 

building and architectural treatments. The board of commissioners' review will ensure conformance with 

the following design standards: 

(1)   Treatment of the sides and rear of all buildings within the planned development shall be 

compatible in amenity and appearance to treatment given to street frontages of the same 

buildings. 

(2)   All buildings in the layout and design shall be an integral part of the development and 

have convenient pedestrian access to and from adjacent uses. 

(3)   Individual buildings shall be related to each other in design, mass, materials, placement 

and connections to provide a visually and physically integrated development. 

(4)   Landscape treatments for walkways, plazas, arcades, roads, and service and parking areas 

shall be designed as an integral part of a coordinated landscape design for the entire 

project area. The landscape plan submittal shall include the anticipated appearance of 

the trees and landscape materials after five years of growth to visually provide their size 

and proportion relative to the proposed buildings, view corridors, curb appeal, pedestrian 

corridors, etc. 

(5)   The project's scale, and the size, color and proportion of building elements, components 

and materials are appropriate and harmonious with surrounding neighborhood 

structures. 

(6)   All mechanical equipment, electrical equipment, roof top equipment, refuse areas 

associated with this project shall be screened. 

(7)   Appropriate building materials are being used. The use or employment of any of the 

following is generally considered inappropriate and will not be permitted unless 

appropriately integrated into a project meeting all other criteria, including aesthetic 

criteria, of this article: 

a.   Corrugated metal siding; 

b.   Prefabricated metal buildings or their components; 

c.   Primary colors or black; 

d.   False windows or doors; and 

e.   Unmodified formula and trademark buildings and structures. 

(8)   The project's location and design adequately protects or enhances unique site 

characteristics such as those related to scenic views, natural vistas, waterways or similar 

features. 

44



(9)   The project appropriately integrates landscape elements into the site plan and building 

design. Plantings shall be of a size to give the appearance that the project is settled into 

a mature landscape. The landscape submittal shall include a description of each tree and 

plant proposed on site by type and details relative to maximum height/size and color at 

maturity. 

(10)   Signage and other building appurtenances are integral components of the building, 

appropriately scaled, and consistent in character with the building's overall design. 

(11)   The project incorporates defensible space concepts of crime prevention through 

environmental design. A lighting plan shall be provided to review safety considerations 

for pedestrians and motorists, as well as, environmental impacts. 

(Ord. No. 1040, § 1, 4-26-05; Ord. No. 1050, § 12, 8-9-05; Ord. No. 1090, § 1(Exh. A), 9-26-06) 

 

Sec. 110-394. - Methods of documenting all approvals and conditions.  

All plans, schematics, and conditions of a planned development approval will become part of a 

development order for the project. The development order shall state with specificity the development 

plan approved by the board of commissioners. The executed development order shall be recorded in the 

public records of Pinellas County prior to issuance of any building permit for the project. 

(Ord. No. 1040, § 1, 4-26-05; Ord. No. 1113, § 1, 6-26-07) 

 

Sec. 110-395. - Effect of PD zoning.  

Upon the rezoning of land to a PD district, the approved development plan, along with such requirements, 

safeguards, modifications or stipulations as may have been included by the board of commissioners in its 

rezoning action shall be substantially complied with relative to the issuance of all building permits, zoning 

clearances and certificates of occupancy by the city. 

Deviation from the approved development plan or failure to comply with any requirement, safeguard, 

modification or stipulation imposed by the city at the time of rezoning land to the PD district shall 

constitute a violation of the Land Development Code, chapter 82. 

(Ord. No. 1040, § 1, 4-26-05) 

 

Sec. 110-396. - Changes in development plan.  

Minor modifications to an approved development order may be approved by the board of commissioners. 

A minor modification is one which does not increase the density or intensity of the development to occur 

upon the property; does not result in a reduction or change of previously approved setbacks, open space 

or public improvements; does not increase the height of the development to occur upon the property; or 

does not substantially alter the location of any improvements approved for the site. 

45



There shall be no other modifications of any approved development order permitted by the board of 

commissioners, without a public hearing. Any applicant desiring such other modifications to an approved 

development order or development plan must commence the planned development approval process 

anew. Any such applicant must pay the applicable fee and submit the application for a modification to the 

development order. Such application shall be processed in the same manner as the board of 

commissioners considered the original development plan, including a public hearing. An amended 

development order issued pursuant to section 110-394 shall reflect any changed or modified approvals 

and be recorded in the public records of Pinellas County. 

(Ord. No. 1040, § 1, 4-26-05; Ord. No. 1113, § 1, 6-26-07) 

 

Sec. 110-397. - Time limitations.  

(a)   Upon failure to complete plans, drawings, and schematics for the proposed development 

plan within six months of the neighborhood information meeting; the application shall be 

null and void. No further review or processing of that application shall occur and there 

shall be no refund of the application fee. The city manager may grant an extension of up 

to three months upon determination that a good faith effort to submit plans has been 

made. 

(b)   Upon failure to complete plans, drawings, and schematics for the proposed development 

plan within six months of receiving the technical review comments of the city staff and 

reviewing agencies; the application shall be null and void. No further review or processing 

of that application shall occur and there shall be no refund of the application fee or any 

site plan review fee. The city manager may grant an extension of up to three months upon 

determination that a good faith effort to submit plans has been made. 

(c)   Upon the effective date of an ordinance authorizing a PD district, construction shall 

commence within 12 months. 

(d)   Upon application filed prior to or on the date of commencement set forth in (c), the city 

manager may grant a one year extension of the commencement date upon a 

determination that a good faith effort to commence construction prior to the 

commencement date has been made. Thereafter, the board of commissioners by 

resolution may grant a one-year extension of the commencement date upon a 

determination that a good faith effort to commence construction prior to the 

commencement date has been made. 

(e)   Upon failure to commence construction within the specified time or failure to comply 

with Section 104.5 of the Florida Building Code: 

(1)  The ordinance rezoning this site to PD shall be repealed; 

(2)  The zoning for the site shall revert to the zoning classification that existed on the 

site prior to approval thereof; and 

46



(3)  No further development shall occur on site and no building permit or 

development order shall be issued thereafter under the terms of the PD district. 

(f)   After the commencement date described in subsection (a), no building permit or 

development order for a new or expanded structure shall be issued under the terms of 

the PD district without the board of commissioner's approval. Authorization of the PD 

district shall not create a right to such issuance. 

(g)   "Construction" for purposes of this section, shall mean obtaining a building permit for a 

structure or structures authorized in the PD district and initiating substantial site and 

structural improvements, not including land clearing, land filling and soil compaction. 

All time limitations set forth in this section shall be applicable to all PD applications filed with the city, as 

of September 26, 2006. 

(Ord. No. 1040, § 1, 4-26-05; Ord. No. 1090, § 1(Exh. A), 9-26-06)) 

 

Secs. 110-398—110-400. - Reserved. 

47



   
Adoption Draft April 22, 2009  31 

 

48



   
Adoption Draft April 22, 2009  45 

ensure that all proposed uses and designs are consistent with the 
Town Center Special Area Plan.  As pointed out above, when a 
proposal is for a change to the PD zoning, the applicant provides a 
preliminary site plan with proposed site design standards and 
features.  This preliminary site plan can be reviewed with the 
Planning Commission to ensure that the concepts are acceptable and 
consistent with the Special Area Plan.  Once this preliminary site 
plan is approved, the final site plan can be reviewed and approved at 
the staff level to ensure that all standards are met. 
 
General Design Features of Each District 
During proposed redevelopment, the following design features will be 
required: 
 
Transition District 

 Access should be off of a street other than Gulf Boulevard 
 Properties qualify for shared parking provisions 

 
Peninsula District 

 Properties qualify for shared parking provisions 
 Civic building should be built on axis with Municipal Drive 
 Require easement for bayfront walk on Boca Ciega Bay 

 
Commercial Core District 

 First story commercial activity to be required 
 Inter-parcel access is required for properties north of Madeira 

Way 
 Access should be off of a street other than Gulf Boulevard 

where possible 
 Properties qualify for shared parking provisions 
 All buildings shall be a minimum of two stories 
 Require easement for bayfront walk on Boca Ciega Bay 
 No parking is required for the triangle of properties bounded 

by Madeira Way, Gulf Boulevard, and 150th Avenue 
 Require pedestrian easement from 1st Street East to Municipal 

Drive for the triangle of properties in the parking waiver area 
bounded by Madeira Way, Gulf Boulevard, and 150th Avenue 

 Consider a pedestrian easement across proposed 
redevelopment of the Carter property to provide access 
between the parking garage and the civic building area 

49



   
Adoption Draft April 22, 2009  46 

 Residential and/or temporary lodging units must be located on 
an upper floor 

 
Beachfront District 

 View from Madeira Way to the beach should be improved 
 View southeast from 150th Avenue should be re-established 

upon redevelopment 
 
Causeway District 

 Inter-parcel access is required for all properties 
 Properties qualify for shared parking provisions 

 
 
Design Guidelines – Site Design Requirements 
 
Building Setbacks 

 Throughout the Town Center , building setbacks should be no 
more than 20 feet 

 No parking, loading, or driveways should occur between the 
building and the right-of-way in the front setback; this area 
should be for landscaping and pedestrian uses only 

 On Madeira Way, the building should be at the right-of-way 
line, or it should have an extension such as an awning or 
arcade that extends to the right-of-way line. 

 

50



Madeira Beach, Florida
April 13, 2016

Madeira Beach Town Center
Madeira Beach Development Company
Mesh Architecture 51



Madeira Beach Town Center
Madeira Beach, Florida

April 13, 2016
Madeira Beach Development Company
Mesh Architecture

53



AERIAL VIEW FROM EAST

54



Project Information      2 
Special Area Objectives      3

Project Data      4
Perspective View      5

Aerial View of Madeira Beach      6
Aerial View of Madeira Beach Town Center      7

Overall Site Plan      8
Perspective Views      9

Public Access Site Plan    18
Overall Parcel Map    19

Condo A Site Plan    20
Parcel 1 Design Guidelines    21

Condo A Elevations    22
Marina Site Plan    24

Parcel 3 Design Guidelines    25
Dock Master Elevations    26

Aerial View of Madeira Beach     27
Condo B Site Plan    28

Parcel 4 Design Guidelines    29
Condo B Elevations    30

Hotel A Site Plan    32
Parcel 5 Design Guidelines    33

Hotel A Elevations    34
Hotel B Site Plan    36

Parcel 6 Design Guidelines    37
Hotel B Elevations    38

 
Appendix      41

Survey of East Property      42
Survey of West Property      43
Civil Site Plan and Data      44

Traffi c Analysis      48

MBDC 

 
Madeira Beach Development Co., LLC 

Index

1

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 55



PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The Madeira Beach Town Center project is envisioned to be just that, a new gathering place 
for the local community. The master plan is organized around two new civic places. Madeira 
Way has been reconceived and redesigned to be a two block long pedestrian-oriented 
street lined with shops and cafes. At the intersection of Gulf Boulevard and 150th Avenue is 
Madeira Plaza, a new half-acre town square designed to host events and activities, large 
and small throughout the day, week and year. In addition to these two spaces a substantial 
green space has been provided adjacent to 150th Avenue and a pedestrian/bike trail 
has been extended from Madeira Way to Causeway Park. Also an elevated crosswalk is 
proposed to provide safe passage across Gulf Boulevard.

The 6.7-acre mixed-use project consists of two properties, both with frontage onto Madeira 
Way. All of the existing buildings will be demolished as new construction proceeds. Distributed 
across the two properties are fi ve new buildings. Two new 8-story condominium buildings, 
totaling 90 units, front onto 150th Avenue. Parking is located on the fi rst two fl oors with six 
fl oors of residential units above. These buildings are the same height as Boca Vista across the 
street and have been separated by over 430 feet in order to provide unobstructed views 
north and south across the peninsula. Between the condominium buildings the existing 43-
slip marina will be completely redeveloped. The existing buildings will be demolished in order 
to create a park-like setting south of the marina. A new one or two-story dockmaster building 
with up to 5,000 square feet will be built to service the marina.

North of Madeira Way a new suites hotel with up to 180 rooms will be developed. This building 
will have 11 fl oors. On the fi rst fl oor will be the hotel lobby, up to 5,000 square feet of retail 
and restaurant space and the entry to the parking garage. The second and third fl oors 
will contain parking and above will be eight fl oors of hotel rooms. The building has been 
designed to reinforce the pedestrian character of Madeira Way.

Across the street, on the triangular block, will be a new full-service hotel with up to 250 rooms. 
This building will also have 11 fl oors, the same as the Ocean Sands Condominiums located 
across Gulf Boulevard. On the fi rst fl oor will be the hotel lobby, up to 40,000 square feet of 
retail and restaurant space and the parking garage entry with covered drop-off for the 
hotel. In addition, a pedestrian arcade through the building will connect Madeira Way to 
the public plaza. The parking garage will be on the second through fourth fl oors and will be 
shielded with a decorative living green wall. The hotel amenities are located on the fi fth fl oor 
with direct access to a large roof terrace. The hotel rooms comprise the 6th through 11th 
fl oors.

In total there will be up to 575,000 square feet within the new buildings (875,000 square feet 
including the proposed parking structures). This is more than 290,000 square feet less than the 
maximum allowed by current zoning, representing a 25% reduction.

Automobile traffi c has been carefully considered. The traffi c signal at the intersection of 150th 
Avenue and Madeira Way is proposed to be removed. This will reduce congestion on 150th 
Avenue by allowing for a smoother fl ow of traffi c. Currently between Causeway Park and 
Madeira Way there are eight curb cuts on the north side of 150th Avenue. These will all be 
eliminated except for one new entry to the marina and proposed condominiums. This too will 
reduce traffi c confl icts.

As previously mentioned Madeira Way will be completely re-built as a two-lane, two-way 
pedestrian oriented street with parallel parking and generous sidewalks. It will no longer function 
as a shortcut by through traffi c due to its slow speed and because vehicles will no longer be 
allowed to make a left turn at the east end of the street onto 150th Avenue. On the triangular 
block, the existing curb cuts onto 150th Avenue and Gulf Boulevard will be eliminated. All 
vehicular access for the two hotels and their accessory retail space will be via Madeira Way, 
thereby minimizing confl icts with the two major streets.

The parking needs for the proposed new development have also been thoughtfully designed. 
Consistent with the Madeira Beach Town Center Special Area Plan parking has been designed 
to improve pedestrian fl ow throughout the project and minimize confl icts with vehicular traffi c. 
Enough parking has been provided to slightly exceed the city’s required standards; and except 
for a small surface parking lot servicing the marina all other parking has been consolidated into 
four parking garages. This minimizes the land area occupied by automobile parking and allows 
more area to be devoted to landscaped green spaces and lively public spaces.

2 56



SPECIAL AREA PLAN OBJECTIVES

As described below, special consideration has been given to meeting the Objectives of the 
Madeira Beach Town Center Special Area Plan as this proposal was developed.

Create a unique sense of place for the Town Center, and create a sense of arrival for those 
entering the area.

The design emphasis has been on creating distinctive pedestrian oriented places including 
a redeveloped pedestrian-oriented Madeira Way, a one-half acre public plaza at the 
intersection of Gulf Boulevard and 150th Avenue and a landscaped green space fronting the 
marina. Special care has been taken to create scenic gateways and views when entering 
the district from the east, south and north.

Promote a wide variety of uses to create an activity center for both local residents and tourists.

This is a true mixed-use project with a balance of residences, tourist accommodations, retail, 
restaurant, entertainment and recreational uses. And all of these uses are connected via 
sidewalks allowing for safe, convenient access across the district.

Set a standard for urban design so that new development and redevelopment in the Town 
Center contributes to the public realm.

As a result of this project two major public spaces will either be greatly improved (Madeira 
Way) or newly created (Madeira Plaza). This project proposes a carefully calibrated balance 
between new private development and public enhancement. These improvements will be 
codifi ed through the Development Agreement as well as the Design Guidelines contained 
within this document.

Promote redevelopment of older properties in a manner that contributes to the quality of 
urban design in the Town Center.

Although the majority of the property is currently developed, it is at a density and pattern 
that does not create a sense of place for the community. The goal of the proposed project 
is to redevelop the area into a memorable destination for both locals and visitors.

Increase the number of temporary lodging units and maintain existing residential units in the 
Town Center that have the quality characteristics included in the Special Area Plan.

The proposal will add 430 hotel rooms and 90 dwelling units to the core of the Town Center. 
Although the residents and guests will bring new life to the community, the proposed density 
is substantially less than the maximum allowed. All will have thoughtful architectural design 
that refl ect the relaxed, subtropical character of Madeira Beach while simultaneously working 
together to create a coherent character for the Town Center.

Improve pedestrian and bicycling access to all major destinations with the Town Center, 
including the parks, the beach, retail properties and civic destinations.

Numerous improvements are proposed to enhance pedestrian and bicycle access. A 12-foot-
wide combined pedestrian/bicycle trail will connect Madeira Way to Causeway Park. Madeira 
Way will be redeveloped as a pedestrian oriented shopping street. A new public plaza will be 
located at the intersection of Gulf Boulevard and 150th Avenue with a direct pedestrian access 
to Madeira Way. An elevated crosswalk is proposed to provide safe, pedestrian access across 
Gulf Boulevard.

Increase connections and access to parks, ensuring that views of the Gulf and Boca Ciega Bay 
are preserved.

A new pedestrian/bicycle trail will connect Causeway Park back to the Town Center. A 
new public space will be created at the intersection of Gulf Boulevard and 150th Avenue. 
Along the marina the new buildings have been spaced out to preserve view corridors. The 
new condominium buildings have been separated by 430 feet. And there is a 60 foot opening 
between Condominium B and Hotel A. Although sometimes controversial, allowing for taller 
buildings in waterfront districts reduces the size of the structure’s footprint and results in better 
views overall to and from neighboring properties. It also allows a greater percentage of the site 
to be dedicated to green space.

Develop parking and access strategies that help to make the most effi cient use of scarce land 
and contribute to the quality of the public realm in the Town Center.

The site plan proposes to eliminate all curb cuts along 150th Avenue and Gulf Boulevard except 
for one access point providing consolidated service to the marina and two new condominiums. 
All vehicular access for the two hotels will be via Madeira Way. Except for a small, 39 space, 
surface parking lot serving the marina, all other parking for the development will be located 
within four parking structures at the base of the new buildings. This allows for a signifi cant increase 
in the amount of landscaped green space and lively public areas.

3

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 57



Land Use
Land Area 43,416 s.f. 21,929 s.f. 38,298 s.f. 45,017 s.f. 50,514 s.f. 92,511 s.f. 291,685 s.f.
Acreage 0.997 ac. 0.503 ac. 0.879 ac. 1.033 ac. 1.160 ac. 2.124 ac. 6.696 ac.
Hotel - Density Allowed 125 rooms/ac.
Hotel - Rooms Allowed 837 rooms
Hotel - Density Proposed 64.2 rooms/ac.
Hotel - Rooms Proposed 180 rooms 250 rooms 430 rooms
Condos - Density Allowed 15 units/ac.
Condos - Units Allowed 100 units
Condos - Density Proposed 13.4 units/ac.
Condos - Units Proposed 45 units 45 units 90 units
Retail Space 4,000 s.f. 3,000 s.f. 28,000 s.f. 35,000 s.f.
Restaurant Space 1,000 s.f. 2,000 s.f. 12,000 s.f. 15,000 s.f.
Gross Building Area - Allowed 1,166,740 s.f.
Gross Building Area - Proposed 150,000 s.f. 5,000 s.f. 150,000 s.f. 200,000 s.f. 370,000 s.f. 875,000 s.f.
F.A.R. - Allowed 4.00
F.A.R. - Proposed 3.00
Boat Slips - Allowed 43 slips
Boat Slips - Proposed 43 slips 43 slips
Parking - Minimum Required 90 spaces 36 spaces 90 spaces 201 spaces 392 spaces 809 spaces
Parking - Proposed 95 spaces 39 spaces 95 spaces 210 spaces 400 spaces 839 spaces

Parking Ratios  -  Residential: 2 spaces per unit / Hotel: 1 space per room / Retail: 2 spaces per 3,000 s.f. / Restaurant: 1 space per 4 seats (120 s.f.) / Marina: 1 space per 2 slips

Parcel 6
Hotel B

TotalsParcel 5
Hotel A

Parcel 3 Parcel 4
Marina Condo B

Parcel 1
Condo A

Parcel 2
Common Area

PROJECT DATA

4 58



VIEW FROM 150TH AVENUE LOOKING SOUTHWEST

5

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 59



AERIAL VIEW OF MADEIRA BEACH

GOOGLE EARTH IMAGE

CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH

The city of Madeira Beach is strategically located 
midway along the 30 plus miles of Pinellas 
beaches. It’s a small town with a big waterfront 
– over two miles of gulf beaches and many more 
miles of frontage onto Boca Ciega Bay. With 4,300 
residents in its one square mile, Madeira Beach 
is almost completely built out with relatively little 
new development in the last 15 years. A new 
Courtyard Marriott hotel opened last year on the 
mainland, but no new hotels have been built on 
the island since the 1970’s. Although the residential 
housing stock is reasonably stable, much of 
the commercial property consists of older one-
story buildings with large, surface parking lots.

6 60



AERIAL VIEW OF MADEIRA BEACH TOWN CENTER

GOOGLE EARTH IMAGE

MADEIRA BEACH TOWN CENTER

As described within the city’s Special Area Plan, 
the overall Town Center district is approximately 
80 acres in size. The subject property’s 6.7 acres is 
located right in the heart of the district. This property 
is signifi cantly under-developed containing only 
63,000 square feet of commercial space across 
multiple parcels. With very little green space the 
majority of the land consists of surface parking 
lots. However, as noted within the plan the 
location is superb. Serviced by two major arterial 
roadways, Gulf Boulevard and 150th Avenue, the 
property enjoys over 1,200 feet of frontage on 
the intercoastal waterway and is within walking 
distance of the Gulf beaches, the town civic center, 
public parks and a drug store and grocery store.

7

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 61



OVERALL SITE PLAN

8 62



VIEW FROM ARCHIBALD PARK LOOKING EAST

9

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 63



VIEW ACROSS GULF BOULEVARD LOOKING SOUTHEAST

10 64



VIEW OF MADEIRA WAY LOOKING EAST

11

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 65



VIEW FROM ACROSS 150TH AVENUE LOOKING WEST

12 66



VIEW OF MADEIRA WAY LOOKING WEST

13

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 67



AERIAL VIEW OF MADEIRA PLAZA

14 68



VIEW OF MADEIRA PLAZA

15

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 69



AERIAL VIEW LOOKING WEST TOWARDS ARCHIBALD PARK

16 70



GULF BOULEVARD VIEW LOOKING NORTHWEST

17

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 71



PUBLIC ACCESS SITE PLAN

18 72



OVERALL PARCEL PLAN

150TH AVENUE

G
ULF BO

ULEV
A

RD

MADEIRA WAY

MUNIC
IPA

L D
RIV

E

CONDO ACONDO B

DOCK
MASTERHOTEL A

HOTEL B

LEGEND

19

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 73



CONDO A SITE PLAN

LEGEND

45 UNITS
8 FLOORS
95 PARKING  SPACES

This building will have up to 45 dwelling units 
averaging approximately 1,900 square feet 
each. The building’s fi rst fl oor lobby faces 150th 
Avenue to provide a visible front door. Parking is 
located on the lower two fl oors with two spaces 
per unit plus a few extra for visitors. Above are six 
fl oors of units. The building is designed to take full 
advantage of the water views in all directions. A 
rear amenity area includes a swimming pool and 
fi ve slips for 10 boats.

CONDO A 

20 74



PARCEL 1 DESIGN GUIDELINES

PARCEL 1

Site Area 43,416 s.f. (0.997 ac.)
Maximum Dwelling Units 45 units
Maximum Building Height 80 feet
Maximum Impervious Surface Ratio 70% of site area
Maximum Building Footprint 50% of site area
Maxmimum Building Gross Area* 150,000 s.f.
Minimum Required Parking Residential: 2 spaces per unit
* Includes structured parking

21

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 75



CONDO A ELEVATIONS

North Elevation

South Elevation

22

S th El ti

76



CONDO A ELEVATIONS

East Elevation

West Elevation

23

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 77



MARINA SITE PLAN

5,000 S.F.
2 FLOORS
39 PARKING SPACES

The existing 43 slip marina will be rebuilt with new 
seawall and docks. Serving the marina will be a 
one or two story Dockmaster building located on 
axis with the new entry drive off of 150th Avenue. 
The Dockmaster structure may include a small 
café or snack stand. Adjacent to the building is 
a 39-space landscaped parking lot. Except for 
the fenced off areas around the condominium 
buildings the waterfront along the marina will be 
publicly accessible for pedestrians.

MARINA

LEGEND

24 78



PARCEL 3 DESIGN GUIDELINES

PARCEL 3

Site Area 38,298 s.f. (0.879 ac.)
Maximum Commercial Space 5,000 s.f.
Maximum Boat Slips 43
Maximum Building Height 30 feet
Maximum Impervious Surface Ratio 70% of site area
Maximum Building Footprint 50% of site area
Maxmimum Building Gross Area 5,000 s.f.
Minimum Required Parking Marina: 1 space per 2 boat slips

Retail: 2 spaces per 3,000 s.f.
Restaurant: 1 space per 4 seats

25

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 79



DOCK MASTER ELEVATIONS

East Elevation

West Elevation

North Elevation

South Elevation

26

East Elevation

West ElevationSouth Elevation

North Elevation

80



AERIAL VIEW

27

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 81



CONDO B SITE PLAN

45 UNITS
8 FLOORS
95 PARKING SPACES

This building will have up to 45 dwelling units 
averaging approximately 1,900 square feet 
each. The building’s fi rst fl oor lobby faces 150th 
Avenue to provide a visible front door. Parking is 
located on the lower two fl oors with two spaces 
per unit plus a few extra for visitors. Above are six 
fl oors of units. The building is designed to take full 
advantage of the water views in all directions. A 
rear amenity area includes a swimming pool.

CONDO B

LEGEND

28 82



PARCEL 4 DESIGN GUIDELINES

PARCEL 4

Site Area 45,017 s.f. (1.033 ac.)
Maximum Dwelling Units 45 units
Maximum Building Height 80 feet
Maximum Impervious Surface Ratio 70% of site area
Maximum Building Footprint 50% of site area
Maxmimum Building Gross Area* 150,000 s.f.
Minimum Required Parking Residential: 2 spaces per unit
* Includes structured parking

29

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 83



CONDO B ELEVATIONS

30

North Elevation

South Elevation

84



CONDO B ELEVATIONS

31

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A

East Elevation

West Elevation

85



HOTEL A SITE PLAN

180 ROOMS
5,000 S.F. RETAIL
11 FLOORS
210 PARKING SPACES

This is programmed to be a suites hotel with up to 
180 rooms. The fi rst fl oor of the building contains 
the lobby, up to 5,000 square feet of retail and 
restaurant space, parking and support and 
service spaces. Above are two additional fl oors 
of parking. The 4th fl oor will have hotel amenities 
opening onto a roof terrace as well as some hotel 
rooms. The remainder of the hotel rooms will be 
on fl oors 5 through 11. The design of the building 
reinforces the pedestrian nature of Madeira 
Way by its close relationship to the sidewalk and 
ground level active uses.

HOTEL A

LEGEND

32 86



PARCEL 5 DESIGN GUIDELINES

PARCEL 5

Site Area 50,514 s.f. (1.160 ac.)
Maximum Hotel Rooms 180
Maximum Commercial Space 5,000 s.f.
Maximum Building Height 115 feet
Maximum Impervious Surface Ratio 85% of site area
Maximum Building Footprint 70% of site area
Maxmimum Building Gross Area* 200,000 s.f.
Minimum Required Parking Hotel: 1 space per room

Retail: 2 spaces per 3,000 s.f.
Restaurant: 1 space per 4 seats

* Includes structured parking

33

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 87



HOTEL A ELEVATIONS

North Elevation

South Elevation

34

South Elevation

North Elevation

88



HOTEL A ELEVATIONS

East Elevation

West Elevation

35

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A

West Elevation

E t El tiEast Elevation

89



HOTEL B SITE PLAN

This is a true mixed-use block designed to be a 
recognizable landmark at the heart of Madeira 
Beach. It combines 40,000 square feet of retail 
and restaurant space on the ground fl oor with 
a full-service hotel with up to 250 rooms above. 
All sides of the fi rst fl oor are lined with active uses 
fronting onto Madeira Way to the north and a 
new public plaza to the south. These two spaces 
are connected by a mid-block pedestrian 
arcade through the building. The parking garage 
is located on the 2nd through 4th fl oors. The 5th 
fl oor is dedicated to the hotel’s amenity spaces 
(fi tness center, spa, meeting rooms, business 
center, etc.). These open onto a generous roof 
terrace with swimming pool, spa and bar. The 
hotel rooms are located on the 6th through 11th 
fl oors and are oriented to maximize water views.

HOTEL B

LEGEND

36 90



PARCEL 6 DESIGN GUIDELINES

PARCEL 6

Site Area 92,511 s.f. (2.124 ac.)
Maximum Hotel Rooms 250
Maximum Commercial Space 40,000 s.f.
Maximum Building Height 120 feet
Maximum Impervious Surface Ratio 85% of site area
Maximum Building Footprint 70% of site area
*Maxmimum Building Gross Area 370,000 s.f.
Minimum Required Parking Hotel: 1 space per room

Retail: 2 spaces per 3,000 s.f.
Restaurant: 1 space per 4 seats

* Includes structured parking

37

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 91



HOTEL B ELEVATIONS

North Elevation

South Elevation

38

B ELEVATIONS

atio

vation

on

92



HOTEL B ELEVATIONS

East Elevation

West Elevation

39

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A

st Elevation

ation

93



40 94



APPENDIX SECTION
Surveys

Civil Site Plan and Data
Traffi c Analysis

41

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 95



MADEIRA WAY

PARCEL 2

TBM#1

TBM#2

565 SOUTH HERCULES AVENUE
CLEARWATER, FL 33764

ph 727.822.4151    fax 727.821.7255
WWW.DEUELENGINEERING.COM

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 26320
LICENSED BUSINESS NUMBER 107

D  euel          ssociatesA
CONSULTING ENGINEERS                    LAND SURVEYORS                    LAND PLANNERS

&

CURVE TABLE

SURVEY OF EAST PROPERTY

42 96



PARCEL   1B(L) PARCEL   1A(L)

TRACT   A(P)

TBM#1

PARCEL DESCRIPTION

RECORDED IN

OR 12187, PG 824(L2)

S
TA

TE
 R

O
A
D
 N

O
. 2

33
 / 

69
9-

A
 -1

50
TH

 A
V
E
N
U
E

G
U
LF BO

U
LEVAR

D
 - STATE R

O
AD

 699

MADEIRA WAY

TBM#2

565 SOUTH HERCULES AVENUE
CLEARWATER, FL 33764

ph 727.822.4151    fax 727.821.7255
WWW.DEUELENGINEERING.COM

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 26320
LICENSED BUSINESS NUMBER 107

D  euel          ssociatesA
CONSULTING ENGINEERS                    LAND SURVEYORS                    LAND PLANNERS

&

LINE TABLE

CURVE TABLE

SURVEY OF WEST PROPERTY

43

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 97



X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

RECREATIONAREA

LOBBY

RETAIL

ELEVATED  CROSSWALK

DOCK

MASTER

MARINA

MADEIRA WAY

G
ULF BO

ULEVA
RD

A
RC

HIBA
LD

BEA
C

H PA
RK

M
UN

IC
IP

AL
 D

RI
VE

CAUSEWAY

PARK

AR
C

AD
E

RETAIL

LO
BB

Y

HOTEL A

MARINA PARKING

150th AVENUE

CONDO B

CONDO A

RETAIL

HOTEL B

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL

LOBBY

LOBBY

O
C

EA
N

 SA
N

D
S

C
O

N
D

O
M

IN
IUM

O
C

EA
N

 SA
N

D
S

C
O

N
D

O
M

IN
IUM

CVS PHARMACY

E  MADEIRA AVENUE

1ST ST. E

150th AVENUE

US POST OFFICE

BEACH FOOD MART

MADEIRA  PLAZA

7-ELEVEN

W
EIC

HERT,

REALTO
RS - SUN

SAND & SEA

HO
M

ES

M
ADEIRA BEAC

H

G
ARAG

E

JEFF THE JEW
ELER

MADEIRA BEACH TOWN CENTER
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

SNUG
 HARBO

R C
O

NDOBO
C

A VISTA C
O

NDO

M
A

D
EIRA

 C
O

VE A
C

C
ESS

RETAIL PLAZA

CIVIL SITE PLAN AND DATA

44 98



X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

RECREATIONAREA

LOBBY

RETAIL

ELEVATED  CROSSWALK

MADEIRA WAY

G
ULF BO

ULEVA
RD

A
RC

HIBA
LD

BEA
C

H PA
RK

M
UN

IC
IP

AL
 D

RI
AR

C
AD

E

RETAIL

LO
BB

Y

HOTEL A

RETAIL

HOTEL B

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL

O
C

EA
N

 SA
N

D
S

C
O

N
D

O
M

IN
IUM

CVS PHARMACY

E  MADEIRA A

150th AVENUE

W

W W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

4
" 

P
O

T
A

B
L
E

1
2
" 

P
O

T
A

B
L
E

4"

4
" R

E
C

L
A

IM
E

D

6" RECLAIMED

2
4
" R

E
C

L
A

IM
E

D

4" RECLAIMED

6
" 

R
E

C
L
A

IM
E

D

6"  RECLAIMED

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

US POST OFFICE

BEACH FOOD MART

MADEIRA  PLAZA

MADEIRA BEACH TOWN CENTER
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

CIVIL SITE PLAN AND DATA

45

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 99



X
X

X
X

X
X

X

DOCK
MASTER

MARINA

CA

MARINA PARKING

150th AVENUE

CONDO B

CONDO A

LOBBY

LOBBY

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W
W

W

W

W
W

W

W

W

W
W

W

W
W

6" POTABLE

6" POTABLE

24" POTABLE

16" POTABLE6" RECLAIMED

W

W
W

W

W

W
W

W

MADEIRA BEACH TOWN CENTER
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

  SHARED PEDESTRA N B CYCLE PATHI     /     I12'

CIVIL SITE PLAN AND DATA

46 100



MADEIRA BEACH TOWN CENTER
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

CIVIL SITE PLAN AND DATA

47

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 101



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

48 102



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

49

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 103



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

50 104



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

51

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 105



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

52 106



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

53

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 107



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

54 108



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

55

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 109



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

56 110



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

57

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 111



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

58 112



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

59

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 113



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

60 114



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

61

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 115



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

62 116



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

63

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 117



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

64 118



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

65

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 119



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

66 120



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

67

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 121



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

68 122



END OF DOCUMENT

69

Madeira Beach Town Center
MADEIRA BEACH,  F L O R I D A 123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



  







ATTACHMENT(S): Public Notice 
Alcoholic Beverage Application 
Location Map 
Photo 

Agenda Item:  J-4.







































  







Stqff-Ana!Jsis: The applicant has no outstanding fines, or penalties owed to 
the City under any section of the code. 

BUDGETARY 
IMPACT: N/A 

STAFF 
RECOMMENDATION: 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

Staff recommends approval for Alcoholic Beverage Permit #16-04 to 
allow a ZCOP alcoholic beverage license for the sale of beer and wine 
(beer and wine only/ sale by the drink for consumption on premises 
and package sales in sealed containers) at Castaway Beach Bar located 
at 13437 Gulf Boulevard for the reasons contained in this agenda 
report. 

Public Notice 
Alcoholic Beverage Pennit Application Submittal 
Location map 
Site Photographs 

Agenda Item:         J-5.









































  



Agenda Item: 

MADEIRA BEACH BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

June 10, 2016 – Agenda Report 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

Vincent M. Tenaglia, Assistant City Manager 

RESOLUTION 2016-21: AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET BY INCREASING 
GENERAL FUND REVENUE IN THE AMOUNT OF $39,000; INCREASING GENERAL 
FUND CAPITAL OUTLAY EXPENDITURES IN THE AMOUNT OF $18,000; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

The City Manager has requested authorization for an unbudgeted capital outlay 

expenditure, scheduled for discussion at the June 14, 2016 Board of Commissioners 

Special Workshop.  If consensus direction is provided to proceed, the anticipated 

project cost is $18,000.  To offset this expenditure increase, the City Manager has 

requested to recognize several unbudgeted revenue sources: 

As of June 10, Finance has not received payment relating to any of the three 

revenue items.  

BUDGETARY 
IMPACT: 

The net effect of the requested budget changes is a $21,000 increase to budgetary 

balance.

RECOMMENDED 
BY STAFF: 

The City Manager recommends approval of Resolution 2016-21. 

ATTACHMENT(S): Resolution 2016-21 

Old Salt Fishing Foundation field rental fees: 10,000    

Rotary Club of the Gulf Beaches special event fees: 20,000    

John's Pass Village Association donation: 9,000      
39,000$ 

Account

Adopted 

budget

Revised 

budget

 Current 

request Total revised

Revenue:

001.362.025  $ - $ - $  10,000 10,000$   

001.366.366  $ - $  5,000  $  9,000 14,000$   

001.369.386  $  1,800  $  1,800  $  20,000 21,800$   

 $  1,800  $  6,800  $  39,000  $  45,800 

Expenditures:

001.8000.6300 (700,000)$   (327,000)$   (18,000)$   (345,000)$   

(700,000)$   (327,000)$   (18,000)$   (345,000)$   

J-6.



RESOLUTION 2016-21 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA AMENDING THE 
FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET BY INCREASING GENERAL FUND REVENUE IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $39,000; INCREASING GENERAL FUND CAPITAL OUTLAY 
EXPENDITURES IN THE AMOUNT OF $18,000; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Madeira Beach Board of Commissioners has approved a municipal budget 

for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2015 and ending September 30, 2016; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 10.5 of the Madeira Beach City Charter authorizes the Board of 

Commissioners to amend the adopted budget by resolution; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires to amend the budget. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF 
MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA:  

 
Section 1.  The Board of Commissioners authorizes an increase to General Fund revenue, in the 

amount of $39,000. 
 
Section 2.  The Board of Commissioners authorizes an increase to General Fund expenditures, in 

the amount of $18,000. 
 
Section 3.  The Board of Commissioners authorizes staff to allocate the budget amendment 

pursuant to the account level detailed provided as Exhibit A.  
 
Section 4.  This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

 

[REMAINDER OF THE PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

  



Resolution 2016-21 Page 2 of 2 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA 

BEACH, THIS 14th DAY OF JUNE, 2016. 

TRAVIS PALLADENO, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

AIMEE SERVEDIO, City Clerk 



Account Adopted budget

Revised 

budget

 Current 

request Total revised

Revenue:

001.362.025  $                  -    $                 -    $      10,000 10,000$      

001.366.366  $                  -    $           5,000  $        9,000 14,000$      

001.369.386  $            1,800  $           1,800  $      20,000 21,800$      

 $            1,800  $           6,800  $      39,000  $      45,800 

Expenditures:

001.8000.6300 (700,000)$        (327,000)$      (18,000)$      (345,000)$   

(700,000)$        (327,000)$      (18,000)$      (345,000)$   

Resolution 2016-21: Exhibit A



Agenda Item: J-6a. 

 

 

MADEIRA BEACH BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

June 10, 2016 – Agenda Report 

FROM: Sea Marshall-Barley, Administrative Support Specialist 

SUBJECT: WAIVER OF BID REQUIREMENTS AND AUTHORIZATION OF EXPENDITURES IN 

THE AMOUNT OF $16,625 TO MEND IT ASPHALT & CONCRETE SERVICES, INC. 

BACKGROUND: The approval of this item is contingent on the direction given during the Board of 

Commissioners Special Workshop on June 14, 2016 at 5:00 p.m. 

This item is related to the budget amendment in Resolution 2016-21.  In order to 

approve the authorization of expenditures, the Board must also make a formal 

motion to waive the bid requirements for these services.   

A proposal from Mend It Asphalt & Concrete Services, Inc. dated May 19, 2016 

has been attached to this item. 

BUDGETARY 
IMPACT:  See Resolution 2016-21 

RECOMMENDED 
BY STAFF: 

The City Manager recommends the authorization of expenditures and waiver of 
bid requirements relating to the John’s Pass Parking Area project proposal as 
submitted by Mend It Asphalt & Concrete Services, Inc. 

ATTACHMENT(S): John’s Pass Parking Area Proposal dated May 19, 2015 

 





  



Agenda Item:    

 

 

MADEIRA BEACH BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

June 9, 2016 – Agenda Report 

FROM: Vincent M. Tenaglia, Assistant City Manager 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION 2016-22: AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET BY 
DECREASING SANITATION FUND CAPITAL OUTLAY EXPENDITURES IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $202,000; DECREASING MARINA FUND CAPITAL OUTLAY 
EXPENDITURES IN THE AMOUNT OF $50,000; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE 

BACKGROUND: Finance has received a request to re-budget the following planned equipment 

purchases from fiscal year 2016 to fiscal year 2017: 

 Vehicle no. 37 replacement (2004 Peterbilt packer truck): $202,000 

 Boat acquisition: $50,000 

BUDGETARY 
IMPACT:  

Funding will be eliminated from the FY 2016 budget, while the FY 2017 proposed 

budget will include funding for each piece of equipment.  The practice of deferring 

scheduled capital improvements into the future exposes the City to the potential 

for cost increases, both relating to the maintenance of current equipment and any 

applicable inflationary factors for acquisition. 

 

RECOMMENDED 
BY STAFF: 

The City Manager recommends approval of Resolution 2016-22. 

ATTACHMENT(S): Resolution 2016-22 

 

Account

Adopted 

budget

Revised 

budget

 Current 

request 

Total 

revised

Sanitation Fund:

402.7000.6400 202,000$        246,000$       (202,000)$   44,000$     

202,000$        246,000$       (202,000)$   44,000$     

Marina Fund:

405.9300.6400 105,000$        105,000$       (50,000)$     55,000$     

105,000$        105,000$       (50,000)$     55,000$     



RESOLUTION 2016-22 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA AMENDING THE 
FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET BY DECREASING SANITATION FUND CAPITAL OUTLAY 
EXPENDITURES IN THE AMOUNT OF $202,000; DECREASING MARINA FUND 
CAPITAL OUTLAY EXPENDITURES IN THE AMOUNT OF $50,000; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Madeira Beach Board of Commissioners has approved a municipal budget 

for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2015 and ending September 30, 2016; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 10.5 of the Madeira Beach City Charter authorizes the Board of 

Commissioners to amend the adopted budget by resolution; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires to amend the budget. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF 
MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA:  

 
Section 1.  The Board of Commissioners authorizes a decrease to Sanitation Fund expenditures, 

in the amount of $202,000. 
 
Section 2.  The Board of Commissioners authorizes a decrease to Marina Fund expenditures, in 

the amount of $50,000. 
 
Section 3.  The Board of Commissioners authorizes staff to allocate the budget amendment 

pursuant to the account level detailed provided as Exhibit A. 
 
Section 4.  This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

 

[REMAINDER OF THE PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

  



Resolution 2016-22  Page 2 of 2 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH,  

THIS  day of  ,2016. 
 

 

 

TRAVIS PALLADENO, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 

 

 

AIMEE SERVEDIO, City Clerk 
 



Account Adopted budget

Revised 

budget

 Current 

request 

Total 

revised

Sanitation Fund:

402.7000.6400 202,000$         246,000$       (202,000)$   44,000$     

202,000$         246,000$       (202,000)$   44,000$     

Marina Fund:

405.9300.6400 105,000$         105,000$       (50,000)$     55,000$     

105,000$         105,000$       (50,000)$     55,000$     

Resolution 2016-22: Exhibit A


	06-14-2016 BOC Regular Meeting Agenda
	06-14-2016 BOC Agenda Packet (WEBSITE)
	06-14-2016 BOC Regular Meeting Agenda
	Page Divider (2)
	H-1.  Ord. 2016-05 (Synthetic Drugs)
	H-1.  Ord. 2016-05 Memo
	Ord. 2016-05 (Synthetic Drugs)
	Ord. 2016-05 Legal Ad from 05-27-2016

	I-1.  PCSB Agreement for Bicentennial Park
	I-1.  Bicentennial Park Memo
	I-1.  PCSB Bicentennial Park Agreement

	I-2.  PCSB Joint Use Agreement
	I-2.  Joint Use Memo
	I-2.  PCSB Joint Use Agreement

	I-3.  EMS Continuing Education Agreement
	I-3.  EMS Memo
	I-3.  EMS Continuing Agreement

	I-4.  Audit Engagement Letter
	J-1.  Development Agreement (Holiday Isle Marina)
	J-1.  Development Agreement (Holiday Isle Marina)
	J-1.  Development Agreement (Holiday Isle Marina)
	J-1.  Development Agreement (Holiday Isle) - Staff Report
	J-1.  Attachments
	1.  Holiday Isle Marina DA (06-01-2016)
	2.  Legal Notice Posting - Photo Evidence
	3.  Correspondence


	05-17-2016 Affected Party, John Lipa Testimony

	J-1, J-2, J-3.  Notice of Affected Party

	J-2.  Development Agreement (Madeira Beach Town Center)
	J-2.  Development Agreement (Madeira Beach Town Center)
	J-2.  Development Agreement (Madeira Beach Town Center)
	J-2.  Development Agreement (MBTC)
	J-2.  Memo from City Attorney
	J-2.  Development Agreement (06-10-2016)
	J-2.  Development Agreement Attachements
	J-2.  Development Agreement & Exhibits
	MBTC Developmet Agreement Attachements (04-14-2016)



	05-17-2016 Affected Party, John Lipa Testimony

	J-1, J-2, J-3.  Notice of Affected Party

	J-3.  Ord. 2016-01 (MBTC Rezoning)
	J-3.  Rezoning Ordinance Staff Report
	J-3.  Attachments
	1.  Ord. 2016-01 (Rezoning for MBTC) REVISED 04-29-2016 TJT
	Ord. 2016-01 (Rezoning for MBTC) REVISED 04-29-2016 TJT
	Ord. 2016-01 Legal Ad from 02-26-2016
	Ord. 2016-01 Legal Ad from 04-14-2016
	Ord. 2016-01 Legal Ad from 05-27-2016

	1a.  Legal Notice Postings
	2.  Zoning Map
	3.  Future Land Use Map
	4.  C-3, Retail Commercial
	5.  PD, Planned Development
	6.  Character District Map
	7.  Causeway District Standards
	8.  Site Plans & Renderings (04-13-2016)
	9.  Correspondence


	J-4.  ABP #16.03 (Angry Pepper)
	J-5.  ABP #16.04 (Castaways Beach Bar)
	J-6.  Res. 2016-21 (BA for JPV Island Removal $18,000)
	2016-21 BA Memo Donations and JPV Island Removal
	2016-21 BA Resolution Donations and JPV Island Removal
	2016-21

	J-6a.  AoE and Bid Waiver for Island Removal
	J-6a.  AoE and Bid Waiver for Island Removal
	J-6a.  Proposal for Island Removal

	J-7.  Res. 2016-22 (BA for Sanitation Fund $202,000)
	2016-22 BA Memo Capital Outlay Reductions
	2016-22 BA Resolution Capital Outlay Reductions
	2016-22

	Page Divider




